VIRGINIA JOURNAL OF PUBLIC HEALTH

Official Journal of the Virginia Public Health Association



Vol, 5, No. 1 Spring 2021







Connecting the Voices of Public Health in Virginia

VPHA Board Members

Muge Akpinar-Elci, MD, MPH, FSRPH, Old Dominion University

Lisa Anderson, MPH Virginia Commonwealth University

> Shannon Anderson, PhD Roanoke College

Kim Baskette, PhD, CHES Virginia Tech

Maria deValpine, RN, MSN, PhD James Madison University

Jennifer Hall, EdD, MCHES University of Lynchburg

Brian C Martin, PhD, MBA Eastern Virginia Medical School

Danielle Montoya, MPH Virginia Commonwealth University Aaron Pannone, PhD, MS University of Virginia

Benjamin Paul, MPA Virginia Commonwealth University

Kerry J. Redican, MPH, PhD, CHES Virginia Tech

Ashley Tharpe, M.A., EdD, MPH, CHES Liberty University

> Robert Weiler, PhD, MPH George Mason University

> Terry Wessel, MS, EdD James Madison University

Diana Willeman-Buckelew, PhD Radford University Carilion

> Callie Yakubisin, RDN The Dairy Alliance

Editor-in-Chief: Kim Baskette, PhD, CHES

Journal Reviewers: Maria deValpine, RN, MSN, PhD

Nicole Holt, DrPH, MPH

Kerry Redican, MPH, PhD, CHES

David Sallee, PhD

VJPH, published in the Fall and Spring, is the official journal of the Virginia Public Health Association. VPHA is a 501c3 notfor-profit alliance of multi-disciplinary health professionals from the public and private sectors committed to improving the health of all Virginians. Founded in 1950, VPHA represents the public's interest in the health of all Virginians and is an affiliate of the American Public Health Association.

TABLE OF CONTENTS		
STUDENT MANUSCRIPTS		
Air Quality Monitoring in the Southeast Community in the City of Newport News, VA	1-15	
COVID-19 in Congregate Settings: A Literature Review	16-29	
Social Determinants of Health and the Prevalence of Overweight Status and Mental Health Conditions Among Non-Hispanic Black and Hispanic Children in the United States	30-52	
Systemic Racial Bias in Health Care Delivery to Women	53-65	
STUDENT POSTER PRESENTATIONS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH/HEALTH EDUCATION		
Association Between Breastfeeding During Infancy and Obesity During Adolescence	66	
Association Between Meal Program Participation and Protein Intake in US Adults 65 and Older: A Cross-Sectional Analysis of the NHANES 2013-2018	67	
Examining Motor Outcomes of Infants in Three Virginia Regions	68	
Fear, Frustration, and Fatalism: The Association Between Cancer Beliefs and Colorectal Cancer Screening Compliance in Virginia	69	
Maternal Perceptions of the Child's Weight in Relation to the Actual Body Weight of Preschool Children: A Missed Opportunity for Health Promotion	70	
Sexual Function and Exercise in Perimenopausal and Postmenopausal Women	71	
Support and Depression Among Black Men	72	
The Impact of Military Base Presence on Tobacco Retailer Density in Texas	73	
Undergraduate Food Insecurity at a Private Liberal Arts College	74	
Understanding Undergraduate Students' Face Mask Use Through the Lens of the Theory of Planned Behavior	75	

TABLE OF CONTENTS		
Variations in Obesity Across the Lifespan: Why Zip Code Matters in the Roanoke Valley	76	
STUDENT POSTER PRESENTATIONS: HEALTH EQUITIES/HEALTH DISPARITIES		
Causes of Healthcare Disparity in Appalachia and What Needs to Change	77	
Improving Health Equity with Community-Based Actions: A Literature Review	78	
Racial Disparities Among Early-Onset Colorectal Cancer Patients in the United States: A Review	79	
STUDENT POSTER PRESENTATIONS: COVID-19		
Application of Whole Health Using the Donabedian Model During COVID-19 at Veteran Administration Facilities	80	
Comparing Age-Group Trends in COVID-19 Cases Across Virginia Heath Districts	81	
COVID-19 Trends & Their Impact on Populations in Portsmouth, VA	82	
Effects of the Pandemic on Nursing Schools in Virginia	83	
Evaluating the Effects of the COVID-19 Pandemic and Telehealth on University Student Access of Mental Health Resources	84	
Physical and Mental Health Care Recommendations for Healthcare Personnel During COVID-19 from January 1st, 2019 – April 24th, 2020: A Systematic Review	85	
Shifting from In-Person to Virtual Program Delivery: Lessons Learned from the COVID-19 Pandemic	86	
The Impact of COVID-19 on the Graduate Admissions for Master of Health Administration and Master of Business Administration Degree Programs in the United States	87	
Utilizing Community Health Worker Learning Modules to Increase Preventive Services During the COVID-19 Pandemic	88	

TABLE OF CONTENTS		
STUDENT POSTER PRESENTATIONS: ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH		
Association Between Mold and Asthma in Minority Children in the Urban Setting	89	
Comparing Source-Specific PM2.5 Between Rush Hour vs. Sporadic Commuters	90	
Exploration of the Spatial Relationships between Lead and Pesticide Exposures and Neurodegenerative Disease Age-Adjusted Mortality Risk in North Carolina	91	
Evaluating the Impact of Work Environments on ADHD Presentation in Adults	92	
Outdoor Air Pollution and Cancer in African American Men	93	
Particulate Matter Concentration Around Lamberts Point & Railroad, Norfolk, VA	94	
The Utility of Perceived Neighborhood Environments as a Predictor of Childhood Obesity	95	
STUDENT POSTER PRESENTATIONS: OTHER TOPICS		
Conducting Research as a First-Year Medical Student	96	
Establishing a Research Lab in Public Health: Opportunities and Challenges from a Faculty and Student Led Collaboration	97	
Introductory and Framing of Forthcoming Dissertation, Power and Politics in National Pharmaceutical Pricing: Implications of Power and the Political Dimensions of Health for Global Health Governance and Equity	98	
Guidelines for Manuscript Submission	99-100	

Air Quality Monitoring in the Southeast Community in the City of Newport News, VA

Michala L. Hendrick, Department of Human Movement Sciences, Old Dominion University
Hueiwang Anna Jeng, School of Community and Environmental Health, Old Dominion
University
Alexander M. Lasky, School of Community and Environmental Health, Old Dominion
University
Ryan Mace, School of Community and Environmental Health, Old Dominion University

Abstract

Purpose: The objective of this study was to assess air quality in the Southeast Community of Newport News, VA by monitoring air pollutants, including $PM_{2.5}$, PM_{10} , VOCs, NO₂, and SO₂. Currently, there is a lack of community specified air quality data in Newport News despite observed environmental degradation and public health problems.

Methods: Three air sampling sites were located within residential areas of the Southeast Community, while four industrial air sampling sites were chosen based on proximity to potential pollution sources, including traffic emissions, the coal pier, and industrial activities. All of the industrial sites were located on the boundaries of the community. Each site was continuously monitored for eight hours per day and was sampled at least twice for data accuracy. A GRIMM PM monitor was used to measure PM_{2.5} and PM₁₀ and a MultiRae PRO (model PGM-6248) was used to continuously quantify VOCs, NO₂, and SO₂.

Results: While average $PM_{2.5}$ and PM_{10} from all sample sites were within the acceptable range of EPA air quality criteria, averaged VOCs in the industrial and highway areas were higher than those in the community.

Conclusion: The findings of this research suggest a need for long-term monitoring air quality with a series of air pollutants in the community.

Keywords: Air Quality Monitoring, Newport News Virginia, Air Pollutants, GRIMM, Environmental Public Health

Introduction

The Southeast Community in the City of Newport News, Virginia is four miles long and two miles wide. The community has a total population of 34,707, with greater than 78% being African American, and a disproportionately high number of citizens being of a low socioeconomic status (U.S. Census Bureau, 2010). Air quality is of high concern to residents, with asthma, heart disease and chronic lower-respiratory disease age-adjusted death rates being higher for African Americans in Newport News than in other areas of the Peninsula Health District and in the Commonwealth of Virginia (United States Environmental Protection Agency (US EPA), 2017a). The aforementioned public health concerns partially stem from local sources of contamination including increased traffic on highway I-664, shipyard facilities, coal terminals, and the Newport News Port (US EPA, 2017a).

Currently in the city of Newport News, seven out of 16 known industrial facilities operate in the Southeast Community. Two out of these seven industrial facilities have been operating in the Southeast Community since 1890 (Newport News Shipyard and Dry Dock Company) and one since 1892 (Coal Pier, now Dominion Terminal and Pier IX Terminal). These terminals house a ground storing capacity of 1.7 million tons of coal and a dumper with a dumping capacity of 5200 tons per hour (Dominion Terminal Associates, n.d.). Coal dust can spread into the surrounding environment from these sites during the transportation and storing of coal. Additionally, port operations, Interstate 664 traffic emissions, and local transportation are probable mobile sources of air pollutants for residents, including particulate matter (PM), nitrogen oxide (NO₂), carbon monoxide (CO), sulfur dioxide (SO₂), greenhouse gases, volatile organic compounds (VOCs), and metals. According to the most recent annual data available from 2013, of the toxic air emissions in the city, 72% occurred in the Southeast Community with more than 246,759 lbs. of toxic air released including 39,000 pounds of toluene, a known developmental toxicant (Sierra Club, 2020).

Despite environmental degradation from air pollutants, both mobile and point source, and disproportionately high rates of asthma, heart disease and chronic lower-respiratory disease, there is a lack of air quality data in the community. While the state is required to monitor air criteria pollutants, state monitors are not close enough to the community to provide air quality data that are community specific and relevant. The closest Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) monitor tracking PM is located at the NASA Langley Research Center, more than 11 miles northeast of the community (Sierra Club, 2020). In order to fill the gaps of community specific data, the objective of this study was to monitor air quality in the Southeast Community by measuring air pollutants, including, PM_{2.5}, PM₁₀, VOCs, NO₂, and SO₂.

Methods and Materials

Sample locations

A total of seven sampling sites were selected (Table 1, Figure 1). Three sampling sites were designated *residential sites* (CA, CB, CC), and were selected to analyze residents' exposure to air pollution and obtain a representative spread of sites across the predominately residential housing area. Four sites were designated *industrial sites* (I1, I2, I3, I4), and sites I2, I3 and I4 were chosen based on their proximity to potential pollution sources, including the coal pier, Newport News Shipbuilding, and industrial activities (Figure 1). Site I1 was located closer to Highway I-664 in order to assess the impact of traffic emissions on air pollutants (Figure 1). All industrial sites were located on the outskirts of the predominately residential area (Figure 1). Specific sampling locations along with the latitude and longitude of each sampling site is provided in Table 1.

Table 1Southeast Community Sampling Sites

Site code	Sampling location	Latitude	Longitude
Residential			
CA	Jefferson Avenue & 21st Street	36.9781887	-76.4190854
СВ	25th Street & Wickham Avenue	36.9846619	-76.4129986
CC	Orcutt Avenue & 32nd Street	36.9897629	-76.4142359
Traffic			
I1	Marshall Avenue & 41st Street	36.9938189	-76.4220285
Industry			
I2	19th Street & Terminal Avenue	36.9758576	-76.4210056
I3	900 Jefferson Avenue	36.9707913	-76.4140951
I4	Washington Avenue & 49th Street	36.9930610	-76.4396819

Figure 1

Sampling Sites in the Southeast Community of Newport News, VA



Note. Blue stars indicate community sampling sites; orange stars indicate industrial and traffic sampling areas.

Sampling strategy

Each site was continuously monitored for eight hours per day and each site was sampled at least twice (two days) for data accuracy. This ensured peaks and trends during hours of greatest business and social activity were captured in the data. To avoid the effect of rain on air pollutant concentrations, sampling only took place at least two days after rain events. Meteorological data, including ambient temperature, wind direction, and speed, were recorded during the sampling. Sampling was conducted between the days of Monday and Friday in the late summer and early fall.

A GRIMM PM (particulate matter) monitor was used to detect PM_{2.5} and PM₁₀. The GRIMM monitor draws the air sample into a detection chamber where PM is classified and quantified by scattering light measurement. The particle size is proportional to the intensity of the reflected light beam. PM concentrations were determined from the particle count and the volumetric flow rate. Measurements were set at a 15-seconds interval. MultiRae PRO model PGM-6248 was used to continuously quantify VOCs (volatile organic compounds), NO₂ (nitrogen dioxide), and SO₂ (sulfur dioxide). This device uses PID photo ionization detectors, which meet EPA Method 21 compliance for the air pollutant detection, with detection limits of 10 ppb, 0.1 ppm, and 0.1 ppm for VOCs, NO₂ and SO₂, respectively. Each measurement was set at a 1-minute interval. Both devices were placed approximately 3 feet from ground level with the receiving valve of the instruments faced towards the road during sampling.

Quality control and assurance was conducted by following manufacturers' instructions. Each site monitoring session was recorded twice. Prior to daily sampling, the devices were calibrated according to manufacturer's recommendations. The machines were routinely checked during sampling to ensure correct operations. During monitoring, confounding factors such as nearby construction and lawn care were recorded in the field notebook. All of the readings were downloaded from the temporary memory of the devices to an excel sheet. Outliers were removed and all the data was laid out and presented as a times series to show a trend of PM. Mean and standard deviation were calculated for each pollutant. T-tests were utilized to measure for significance of pollutant measurements at the given locations.

Results

Particulate Matter (PM)

Figures 2-8 below display daily continuous measurements of PM_{10} and $PM_{2.5}$ for the seven sampling sites. As displayed in these figures, community PM concentrations fluctuated throughout the day with a stable trend. However, three sites located at the intersections of Marshall Avenue & 42^{nd} Street, Washington Ave & 49^{th} Street and Orcutt Ave & 32^{nd} Street, had spikes of PM concentrations in the morning (7:30 am – 9:30 am) or in the afternoon (3:30 pm-5:30 pm).

As shown in Table 2, daily average PM_{10} concentrations for the community sites, including Jefferson Avenue & 21^{st} Street (CA), 25^{th} Street & Wickham Avenue (CB) and Orcutt Avenue & 32^{nd} Street (CC), ranged from $10.86 \ \mu g/m^3$ to $12.69 \ \mu g/m^3$, while average $PM_{2.5}$ concentrations ranged from $6.09 \ \mu g/m^3$ to $10.87 \ \mu g/m^3$. The traffic site, Marshall Avenue & 41^{st} St. (I1), saw an average PM_{10} concentration of $23.05 \ \mu g/m^3$ and an average $PM_{2.5}$ concentration of $15.85 \ \mu g/m^3$. Daily average PM_{10} concentrations for the industrial sites, 19^{th} St. & Terminal Ave (I2), 900 Jefferson Ave (I3) and Washington Avenue & 49^{th} Street (I4), ranged from 9.18 $\mu g/m^3$ to $26.98 \ \mu g/m^3$ while daily average $PM_{2.5}$ concentrations ranged from $4.87 \ \mu g/m^3$ to $17.74 \ \mu g/m^3$ (Table 2).

The highest daily average PM_{10} concentration of the seven sites (26.98 µg/m³) was recorded at the industrial site located on the intersection between Washington Avenue and 49th

Street (I4) and closest to the shipbuilding lot. The lowest daily average PM_{10} concentration (9.18 $\mu g/m^3$) was recorded at the intersection between 19th St. & Terminal Avenue (I2) (Table 2). The highest daily average $PM_{2.5}$ concentration of the seven sites (17.74 $\mu g/m^3$) was recorded at the site closet to the shipbuilding lot, while the lowest average $PM_{2.5}$ concentration (4.87 $\mu g/m^3$) was recorded at 900 Jefferson Ave (I3), where a chemical operation complex is located. Both of the highest and lowest average PM_{10} and $PM_{2.5}$ concentrations were recorded at industrial sites (Table 2).

Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC)

The sampling sites in the community saw a range of daily average VOC concentrations from 19.15 ppb to 42.24 ppb. (Table 2). The traffic site, located at the intersection of Marshall Avenue & 41st St. (I1), saw a daily average VOC concentration of 268.8 ppb. The sites in the industrial area saw a range of daily average VOC concentrations from 32.23 ppb to 154.21 ppb (Table 2). The highest daily average VOC concentration of all sample sites was recorded at the traffic site, located at the intersection of Marshall Avenue & 41st St. (I1), with a measurement of 268.8 ppb (Table 2). In contrast, the lowest daily average VOC concentration was recorded at the community site located at the intersection of 25th St. & Wickham Ave (CB), with a value of 19.15 ppb (Table 2).

Nitrogen dioxide (NO₂) and Sulfur Dioxide (SO₂)

NO₂ and SO₂ were relatively stable with minute detection levels at the sample sites (Table 2). Of the community sites, the highest daily average NO₂ concentration was recorded at the intersection of Jefferson Avenue and 21^{st} Street (CA) with a value of 0.04 ppm. The highest NO₂ concentration of industrial and traffic sites was recorded at both 900 Jefferson Ave (I3) as well as at the intersection of Marshall Avenue & 41^{st} St. (I1) with a value of 0.15 ppm (Table 2).

Of the community sites, the highest average SO₂ concentration (0.15 ppm) was recorded at the intersection of 25th St. & Wickham Avenue (CB) (Table 2). The highest SO₂ concentration of the traffic and industrial sites were recorded at the intersections of 19th St. & Terminal Avenue (I2), 900 Jefferson Avenue (I3) and Washington Avenue & 49th Street (I4) with a value of 0.15 ppm (Table 2). The highest concentrations of NO₂ and SO₂ were both recorded at industrial sites.

Figure 2

Jefferson Avenue & 21st St. (CA)



Figure 3





Marshall Ave & 41st (11)





Figure 4

Orcutt Ave & 32^{nd} St. (CC)

Figure 6

19th St. & Terminal Ave (I2)



Figure 8

Washington Ave & 49th St (I4)



Figure 7

900 Jefferson Avenue (I3)



Table 2

Daily average concentrations of PM, VOC, NO2 and SO2 in the Southeast Community

Air Pollutant	Daily av	verage		
	М	\pm SD		
Jefferson A	venue & 21st Str	eet (CA)		
PM10	12.69	5.03		
PM2.5	7.99	3.59		
VOC	26.12	47.96		
NO_2	0.04	0.06		
SO_2	0.06	1.36		
25 th Street	& Wickham Aver	nue (CB)		
PM10	10.86	3.27		
PM2.5	6.09	1.48		
VOC	19.15	42.34		
NO_2	0.03	0.22		
SO_2	0.15	0.15		
Orcutt Av	enue & 32 nd Stre	et (CC)		
PM10	16.69	7.65		
PM2.5	10.87	3.55		
VOC	42.24	76.64		
NO_2	0.001	0.01		
SO_2	0.01	0.03		
Marshall A	Avenue & 41 st Str	reet (I1)		
PM10	23.05	7.05		
PM2.5	15.85	5.11		
VOC	268.8	178.2		
NO_2	0.15	0.15		
SO_2	0.05	0.01		
19 th Street	& Terminal Ave	nue (I2)		
PM10	9.18	3.21		
PM2.5	5.70	0.92		
VOC	154.21	243.3		
NO_2	0.10	0.13		
SO_2	0.15	0.15		
900 Jefferson Avenue (I3)				
PM10	12.16	4.98		
PM2.5	4.87	1.19		
VOC	32.13	49.23		
NO_2	0.15	0.15		
SO_2	0.15	0.15		

Washington Avenue & 49th Street (I4)			
PM10	26.98	5.23	
Air Pollutant	Daily Average		
-	М	\pm SD	
PM2.5	17.74	1.29	
VOC	45.92	54.32	
NO_2	0.05	0.06	
SO_2	0.15	0.15	

Discussion

Environmental degradation has affected the Southeast Community of Newport News for decades stemming from toxic air emissions, especially those from electric utilities, ports, heavy traffic, coal terminals and industry (Sierra Club, 2020). Several studies have cited that exposure to PM_{2.5} increases chance of cardiopulmonary problems and mortality due to lung cancer (Schwartz, 2000; Franklin et al., 2008). Additionally, VOC, while more of an exposure concern indoors, can cause photochemical smog under certain conditions outdoors, posing additional health concerns (US EPA, 2017b). This study is the first to record air quality monitoring results specific to the community. These results help provide baseline air quality readings for the community and a better understanding of the sources of observed environmental degradation.

Industrial activities and traffic emissions were possible pollution sources of VOCs, NO_2 and SO_2 in this community due to increased concentrations of air pollutants that were recorded at the sites adjacent to the ship building yard and Highway I-664. Both traffic and industrial emissions exhibited the greatest impact on air quality in the form of elevated VOC levels. Traffic emissions also attributed to elevated SO_2 and NO_2 concentrations.

The residential site of Orcutt Ave & 32nd Street was observed to have had higher VOC readings as compared to the other two residential sites. This site was located closest to the traffic site and two industrial sites as compared with other residential sites. Based on the weather

records, wind may have transported VOCs from these traffic and industrial sites to the intersection of Orcutt Ave & 32nd when sampling took place. In addition, a school was located three minutes from the sampling site where school buses may have contributed to the elevated VOC levels.

The trends of PM_{10} and $PM_{2.5}$ levels for most sampling sites remained stable. However, elevated trends and spikes in the morning and in the afternoon were observed at the traffic site (I1), which is the site closest to Highway 664. This suggests that traffic emissions from the highway may be attributed to increased PM levels. In addition, an elevated trend of PM at the residential site Orcutt Ave & 32^{nd} Street was observed. As mentioned previously, school buses in this area may have contributed to the elevated PM levels. Compared to VOCs, average PM concentrations were comparable among the residential, industrial and traffic sites. Average PM concentrations did not reflect impact from specific pollution sources. Based on the daily measurements, all recorded PM concentrations did not exceed EPA's criteria or the World Health Organization's recommended 25 µg/m³ and 50 µg/m³ 24-hour mean exposure limit for PM_{2.5} and PM₁₀ respectively (EPA, 2008; WHO, 2005). Due to the limited, short-term sampling period, future studies with robust data are needed for long-term monitoring to determine whether PM readings in the community meet the EPA's criteria.

The patterns observed in these recorded daily averages are not permanent but rather what was observed on the site during the individual sampling days. This data should be carefully interpreted and weighed against EPA standards which are calculated on a 30-day average as compared to daily averages, which can be impacted by fluctuations in temperature, weather and surrounding environmental conditions. Additionally, these sample sites may have seen a change in average traffic patterns that could skew daily averages and produce readings that are not representative of 30-day averages. Measuring PM only may not completely depict air quality status in the community. Future studies and research should incorporate more frequent and elongated sampling periods, with multiple air quality indicators, such as PM, VOC, NO₂ and SO₂ concentration readings for a robust data set. Additionally, this study did not include metals due to budget and time constrains; it is recommended future studies investigate metals in PM and soil.

Conclusion

Air quality data is important for community members who are concerned about environmental degradation due to air pollution as well as state and federal public health officials, who are tasked with identifying and addressing air quality related public health concerns in communities. These data will add to the expanding research surrounding air quality and pollution in the City of Newport News, Virginia. In this study, elevated concentrations of air pollutants, particularly VOCs, were observed. Industrial activities and traffic emissions may have attributed to the elevated concentrations of the air pollutants. While no EPA exceedances of PM was observed, NO₂ and SO₂ were detected at these data collection sites in the Southeast Community. It is recommended that air quality monitoring continue to gain a better understanding of air quality and contributing pollution sources, and to develop long term monitoring strategies for robust data.

References

- Dominion Terminal Associates. (n.d.). *Dominion terminal associates LLP facility description*. https://www.dominionterminal.com/?page_id=15151
- Franklin, M., Koutrakis, P., & Schwartz, J. (2008). The role of particle composition on the association between PM_{2.5} and mortality. *Epidemiology (Cambridge, Mass.)*, *19*(5), 680–689.
- Schwartz, J. (2000). Harvesting and long-term exposure effects in the relation between air pollution and mortality. *Am J Epidemiol*, *151*(5), 440-448.
- Sierra Club Virginal Chapter. (2020). *Giving a community a chance to breathe cleaner air*. https://www.sierraclub.org/virginia/york-river/blog/2020/01/giving-community-chance-breathcleaner-air
- United States Environmental Protection Agency. (2008). *National ambient air quality standards*. https://www.epa.gov/criteria-air-pollutants/naaqs-table
- United States Environmental Protection Agency. (2017a). A collaborative effort to assess environmental health in Newport News, Virginia.

https://cfpub.epa.gov/si/si_public_file_download.cfm?p_download_id=532162&Lab=NERL

- United States Environmental Protection Agency. (2017). *Technical overview of volatile organic compounds*. https://www.epa.gov/indoor-air-quality-iaq/technical-overview-volatile-organic-compounds.
- U.S. Census Bureau (2010). *Quickfacts. Newport News city, Virginia (County).* https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/newportnewscityvirginiacounty/PST040219
- World Health Organization (2005). WHO air quality guidelines for particulate matter, ozone, nitrogen dioxide and sulfur dioxide.

https://apps.who.int/iris/bitstream/handle/10665/69477/WHO_SDE_PHE_OEH_06.02_eng.pdf

COVID-19 in Congregate Settings: A Literature Review

Jennifer G. Jones, School of Nursing, James Madison University Maria G. deValpine, School of Nursing, James Madison University

<u>Abstract</u>

Purpose: Virginia has numerous and varying congregate living facilities, to include correctional facilities, skilled nursing facilities, and 13 state-operated mental/behavioral health/rehabilitation facilities. The purpose of this literature review is to review COVID-19 trends in congregate settings and identify suggested mitigation efforts.

Methods: The target population for the literature search was individuals in congregate living facilities. Both correctional facilities and nursing homes were included as congregate settings.

Findings: Studies reviewed reported on disease transmission, the use of universal and serial testing, and reported additional information. Early and frequent testing to guide resident cohorting and exclusion of individuals from work was recommended. This includes the testing of asymptomatic individuals. Pre-emptive testing was associated with significant lower overall disease prevalence in one study.

Conclusions: Researchers across studies recommended testing early and often to inform prompt cohorting of infected individuals and to guide infection control measure. As such, early and frequent testing of individuals living and working in congregate settings is an important tool in controlling the spread of COVID-19.

Recommendations: In addition to frequent and early testing, further research regarding the spread and control of COVID-19 within Virginia congregate living facilities is recommended to inform future mitigation efforts.

Background

The COVID-19 case rate as of June 5, 2020 for prisoners was 5.5 times higher than the US population case rate (Saloner et al., 2020). Evaluation of COVID-19 management at congregate living facilities and evaluation of facility case rates is necessary to determine how to adequately mitigate the spread of this disease in congregate settings.

The SARS-CoV-2 virus and the accompanying clinical syndrome, COVID-19, was identified by the World Health Organization on February 11, 2020, in Wuhan, China (CDC, 2020b). Person-to-person spread of the virus through respiratory droplets is significantly increased in spaces where individuals are less than 6 feet from one another (CDC, 2020b). As such, maintaining an appropriate distance is a challenge for individuals in congregate living facilities, such as nursing homes, prisons, detention centers, and rehabilitation centers. Individuals who are incarcerated or detained work, study, live, eat and participate in activities of daily living together, creating ample opportunity for virus proliferation (CDC, 2020a). Additionally, those individuals may transfer between facilities, have medical, legal, or family visits, or staff interactions; all of these create opportunities for virus introduction into the facility (CDC, 2020a).

Forty correctional facilities fall under the onus of the Virginia Department of Corrections (Virginia Department of Corrections, n.d.). The total number of incarcerated individuals in major Virginia correctional facilities as of December 2020 totaled 21,324 (Virginia Department of Corrections, 2020). Data from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) in 2015 counted 284 nursing homes in Virginia, with a majority (51.8%) having 100-199 beds (CMS, 2015). On February 4, 2020, just under 10% of reported COVID-19 in Virginia were associated with outbreaks in long-term care facilities, correctional facilities, and other congregate settings

(VDH, 2020). Additionally, the Commonwealth of Virginia currently provides care to individuals in 12 of 13 facilities for a variety of needs: individuals with psychiatric diagnoses, individuals with intellectual disabilities, individuals civilly committed for behavioral rehabilitation, and those seeking substance abuse services (Virginia Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services, n.d.).

Purpose

The purpose of this literature review was to review COVID-19 trends in congregate settings and identify suggested mitigation efforts.

Methods

The target population for the literature search was individuals in congregate living facilities. Both correctional facilities and nursing homes were included as congregate settings for this literature review. Eligibility criteria for articles included full-text availability, English language, and publication from January-December 2020. The following search terms were combined in the APA PsychInfo database, in the following format (covid-19 or coronavirus or 2019-ncov or sars-cov-2 or cov-19 AND corrections or prison or jail or incarceration) and (covid-19 or coronavirus or 2019-ncov or sars-cov-2 or cov-19 AND nursing homes or care homes or long-term care or residential care or aged care facility and mitigation or prevention or reduction). The National Criminal Justice Reference Service (NCJRS) database was also searched for (correctional facility or prison or jail or imprisonment or incarceration AND covid-19 or coronavirus or 2019-ncov or sars-cov-2 or cov-19). Additionally, the following terms were combined to search CINAHL; (corrections or prison or jail or incarceration AND covid-19 or coronavirus or 2019-ncov or sars-cov-2 or cov-19) and (covid-19 or coronavirus or 2019-ncov or sars-cov-2 or cov-19) and (covid-19 or coronavirus or 2019-ncov or sars-cov-2 or cov-19) and (covid-19 or coronavirus or 2019-ncov or sars-cov-2 or cov-19) and (covid-19 or coronavirus or 2019-ncov or sars-cov-2 or cov-19) and (covid-19 or coronavirus or 2019-ncov or sars-cov-2 or cov-19) and (covid-19 or coronavirus or 2019-ncov or sars-cov-2 or cov-19) and (covid-19 or coronavirus or 2019-ncov or sars-cov-2 or cov-19) and (covid-19 or coronavirus or 2019-ncov or sars-cov-2 or cov-19) and (covid-19 or coronavirus or 2019-ncov or sars-cov-2 or cov-19) and (covid-19 or coronavirus or 2019-ncov or sars-cov-2 or cov-19) and (covid-19 or coronavirus or 2019-ncov or sars-cov-2 or cov-19) and (covid-19 or coronavirus or 2019-ncov or sars-cov-2 or cov-19) and (covid-19 or coronavirus or 2019-ncov or sars-cov-2 or cov-19) and (covid-19 or

aged care facility AND mitigation or prevention or reduction). From the combined searches, 207 total results were returned and titles screened for relevance. Twenty-two relevant titles had abstracts reviewed, and from those, 13 articles were included in this literature review. Opinion/commentary pieces, studies including home-based participants, those evaluating quality of life issues or social support for policies, and studies outside the United States were excluded from this literature review (Figure 1).





Figure 1. PRISMA flow chart for article retrieval and selection. Adapted from Preferred Reporting Items for Systematic Reviews and Meta-analyses (Moher, Liberati, Tetzlaff, &Altman, 2009).

Findings

Studies reviewed reported on disease transmission, the use of universal and serial testing, and reported additional information.

Transmission

An epidemiologic investigation from a nursing home in Washington in the beginning of the COVID-19 pandemic in the U.S. highlights the deadly potential of SARS-CoV-2 in a longterm care facility. After an index case at Facility A in Washington was identified on February 28, 129 total positive cases were identified by March 9; of those, the case fatality rates were 27.2 % among residents, 7.1 % among visitors, and 0% among health care providers (McMichael et al., 2020). Regarding community incidence relating to facility incidence, in a study of 125 nursing homes, Hatfield et al. (2020) found no association between cumulative county incidence and odds of identifying a nursing home case.

In a point prevalence survey at a state psychiatric facility, Callaghan et al. (2020), reported hospital implemented admission screening and infection control and prevention appeared to mitigate the spread of infection to other residents and staff after the admission of two SARS-CoV-2 residents in April 2020. While this study is limited due to point prevalence and lack of staff participation, researchers indicated that infection control and prevention measures are important due to the linkage of psychiatric facilities to other facilities with higher SARS-CoV-2 risk (Callaghan et al., 2020). Davlantes et al.(2020) gave a case report of Puerto Rico's prison system avoiding any outbreak through stringent screening and cohorting of inmates, with only 0.3% of 8,619 inmates testing positive for immunoglobulin G antibodies (indicative of past infection) and 0.0% testing positive for immunoglobulin M antibodies (indicative of recent or current infection).

Universal testing

Findings from mass or universal testing in nursing homes or correctional facilities were reported in three studies. In a study of 16 jails and prisons from six jurisdictions (41,454 total persons studied), Hagan et al. (2020) reported that symptom-based testing underestimates the number of SARS-CoV-2 cases in a facility. In their study, mass testing increased known cases revealed a median 12.1-fold increase over symptom-based testing alone. Hatfield et al. (2020) studied 288 nursing homes in six U.S. jurisdictions and found the number of days from first known case to completion of facility-wide testing was a median of 29.5 days; each additional day was associated with 1.3 more cases. From this study, it was suggested that early facility-wide testing after the first known cases improved the feasibility and effectiveness of cohorting (Hatfield et al., 2020). McBee et al. (2020) echoed these suggestions in a study of West Virginia nursing homes.

Serial testing

Multiple studies reported on serial testing. Njuguna et al. (2020) discussed the significance of serial testing in Louisiana correctional facilities after finding 25% of 98 individuals quarantined for close contact with a case had positive results after one or two negative tests. Additionally, 45% of RT-PCR individuals were not symptomatic, with study authors making similar recommendations for testing to inform prompt cohorting of infectious individuals (Njuguna et al., 2020). Sanchez et al. (2020) made similar recommendations for serial testing to guide early cohorting and infection prevention and control measures in their study of serial testing in Detroit nursing homes. Taylor et al. (2020) echoed those recommendations and included testing of healthcare personnel in skilled nursing facilities to guide exclusion from work. Researchers further suggested serial testing of all residents and

health care providers until no new cases are detected after 14 days, infection prevention and control education, flexible medical leave, and personal protective equipment (Taylor et al., 2020). Telford et al. (2020) studied preemptive testing in relation to COVID-19 infections in long-term care facilities in Fulton, Georgia and found that preemptive testing resulted in lower overall prevalence when compared to response testing (testing due to known cases). The difference between the groups was found to be significant: response group: residents positive, 28% initially and 42.4 % on follow-up testing, staff positive, 7.4% and 11.8% on follow-up testing (Telford et al., 2020). Pre-emptive group residents were positive 0.5% initially, and 1.5% on follow-up testing; staff positives were 1.0% and 1.7% on follow up testing (Telford et al., 2020). Recommendations throughout the studies on serial testing included early and repeated testing to guide prompt cohorting and proper infection prevention and control education.

Additional Data and Implications

Evaluation of aggregate data by Wallace et al. (2020a) from correctional facilities in 54 jurisdictions showed a response rate of 69%, with 86% of responding jurisdictions reporting at least one positive case. While this data was evaluated relatively early in the pandemic, Wallace et al. (2020a) acknowledged testing and daily symptom screening as important mitigation strategies, and cited staff movement in and out of the facility to the community as a concern for transmission into other facilities. An additional study by Wallace et al. (2020b) evaluated data collected using the COVID-10 Management Assessment and Response Tool (CMAR) in Louisiana detention facilities. COVID-19 hospitalization and death rates for detainees and staff were nearly identical in this report (Wallace et. al., 2020b). Additionally, some facilities reported isolating infected individuals for longer than 14 days or using test-based instead of time-based release from isolation, increasing use of resources (Wallace et al., 2020b).

Conclusions

Individuals residing in congregate settings face an increased risk to contract COVID-19 due to difficulties maintaining social distance and the droplet transmission of the virus (CDC, 2020a). Based on this literature review, early and frequent testing of individuals living and working in congregate settings is an important tool in controlling the spread of COVID-19. Researchers across studies recommended testing early and often to inform prompt cohorting of infected individuals and to guide infection control measures. One study found that pre-emptive testing resulted in lower overall prevalence of COVID-19 cases when compared to testing in response to known cases. Testing in other studies revealed a significant percentage of asymptomatic cases, further supporting routine, facility-wide testing to identify and cohort or exclude individuals from work. Additionally, one study highlighted serial testing of individuals quarantined for close contact, as a positive test was preceded by one to two negative tests. Beyond testing, Taylor et al. (2020) went further to make recommendations regarding recommended duration of testing after detection of the last positive case, sick leave for employees, infection prevention and control education, and personal protective equipment. Another study identified increased use of resources due to extensive isolation periods and use of test-based release from isolation.

Available literature for this review included data from relatively early in the pandemic. Approaches to infection control in congregate settings may have changed since this review was completed, and literature may now reflect recommendations in addition to early and frequent testing.

Recommendations

Early and frequent testing per CDC and VDH guidelines is recommended for congregate settings. Further data collection from Virginia congregate living facilities regarding cases, morbidity, mortality, employee and resident infection control education, testing compliance, and personal protective equipment availability and use is recommended to understand the impact of these measures on the spread of COVID-19 in such facilities. This data can guide future mitigation efforts in order decrease morbidity and mortality in congregate settings in the Commonwealth. Additionally, it is recommended that facility clinicians and decision-makers be provided with the most-up-to date information regarding testing, quarantine, and isolation in order to minimize resident time away from intended activities and to avoid unnecessary use of resources.

References

Callaghan, A. W., Chard, A. N., Arnold, P., Loveland, C., Hull, N., Saraiya, M., Saydah, S.,
Dumont, W., Frakes, L. G., Johnson, D., Peltier, R., Van Houten, C., Trujillo, A. A., Moore,
J., Rose, D. A., Honein, M. A., Carrington, D., Harrist, A., & Hills, S. L. (2020). Screening
for SARS-CoV-2 infection within a psychiatric hospital and considerations for limiting
transmission within residential psychiatric facilities — Wyoming, 2020. *MMWR: Morbidity*& Mortality Weekly Report, 69(26), 825–829. https://doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.mm6926a4

- Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2020a, July 22). *Coronavirus disease (COVID-19)* 2019: Interim guidance on management of coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) in correctional and detention facilities. https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019ncov/community/correction-detention/guidance-correctional-detention.html
- Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2020b, September 18). *Coronavirus disease* (*COVID-19*) 2019: Frequently asked questions. https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019ncov/faq.html#Basics
- Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). (2015). *Nursing home data compendium* 2015. https://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Provider-Enrollment-and-Certification/CertificationandComplianc/Downloads/nursinghomedatacompendium_508-2015.pdf
- Davlantes, E., Toro, M., Villalobos, R., & Sanchez-Gonzalez, L. (2020). Notes from the field:
 COVID-19 prevention practices in state prisons—Puerto Rico, 2020. *MMWR: Morbidity & Mortality Weekly Report*, 69(33), 1144–1144. https://doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.mm6933a4

- Hagan, L. M., Williams, S. P., Spaulding, A. C., Toblin, R. L., Figlenski, J., Ocampo, J., Ross, T., Bauer, H., Hutchinson, J., Lucas, K. D., Zahn, M., Chiang, C., Collins, T., Burakoff, A., Bettridge, J., Stringer, G., Maul, R., Waters, K., Dewart, C., ... Handanagic, S. (2020).
 Mass testing for SARS-CoV-2 in 16 prisons and jails—six jurisdictions, United States, April-May 2020. *MMWR: Morbidity & Mortality Weekly Report*, 69(33), 1139–1143.
 https://doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.mm6933a3
- Hatfield, K. M., Reddy, S. C., Forsberg, K., Korhonen, L., Garner, K., Gulley, T., James, A.,
 Patil, N., Bezold, C., Rehman, N., Sievers, M., Schram, B., Miller, T. K., Howell, M.,
 Youngblood, C., Ruegner, H., Radcliffe, R., Nakashima, A., Torre, M., Donohue, K., ...
 Jernigan, J. (2020). Facility-wide testing for SARS-CoV-2 in nursing homes—Seven
 U.S. jurisdictions, March-June 2020. *MMWR: Morbidity & Mortality Weekly Report*, *69*(32), 1095–1099. https://doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.mm6932e5
- McBee, S. M., Thomasson, E. D., Scott, M. A., Reed, C. L., Epstein, L., Atkins, A., & Slemp, C. C. (2020). Notes from the field: Universal statewide laboratory testing for SARS-CoV-2 in nursing homes—West Virginia, April 21-May 8, 2020. *MMWR: Morbidity & Mortality Weekly Report*, 69(34), 1177–1179. CINAHL Plus with Full Text. https://doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.mm6934a4
- McMichael, T. M., Clark, S., Pogosjans, S., Kay, M., Lewis, J., Baer, A., Kawakami, V., Lukoff, M. D., Ferro, J., Brostrom-Smith, C., Riedo, F. X., Russell, D., Hiatt, B., Montgomery, P., Rao, A. K., Currie, D. W., Chow, E. J., Tobolowsky, F., Bardossy, A. C., ...Duchlin, J. (2020). COVID-19 in a long-term care facility—King County, Washington, February 27-March 9, 2020. *MMWR: Morbidity & Mortality Weekly Report*, 69(12), 339–342. https://doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.mm6912e1

- Njuguna, H., Wallace, M., Simonson, S., Tobolowsky, F. A., James, A. E., Bordelon, K., Fukunaga, R., Gold, J. A., Wortham, J., Sokol, T., Haydel, D., Kim, K., Fisher, K. A., Marlow, M., Tate, J. E., Doshi, R. H., Curran, K. G., & Tran, H. (2020). Serial laboratory testing for SARS-CoV-2 infection among incarcerated and detained persons in a correctional and detention facility—Louisiana, April-May 2020. *MMWR: Morbidity & Mortality Weekly Report*, 69(26), 836–840. https://doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.mm6926e2
- Saloner, B., Parish, K., Ward, J. A., Dilaura, G., & Dolovich, S. (2020). COVID-19 Cases and Deaths in Federal and State Prisons. *Journal of the American Medical Association*, 324(6), 602. https://doi.org/10.1001/jama.2020.12528
- Sanchez, G. V., Biedron, C., Fink, L. R., Hatfield, K. M., Polistico, J. M. F., Meyer, M. P., Noe, R. S., Copen, C. E., Lyons, A. K., Gonzalez, G., Kiama, K., Lebednick, M., Czander, B. K., Agbonze, A., Surma, A. R., Sandhu, A., Mika, V. H., Prentiss, T., Zervos, J., ... Rehman, N. (2020). Initial and repeated point prevalence surveys to inform SARS-CoV-2 infection prevention in 26 skilled nursing facilities Detroit, Michigan, March-May 2020. *MMWR: Morbidity & Mortality Weekly Report*, 69(27), 882–886.

https://doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.mm6927e1

Taylor, J., Carter, R. J., Lehnertz, N., Kazazian, L., Sullivan, M., Wang, X., Garfin, J., Diekman, S., Plumb, M., Bennet, M. E., Hale, T., Vallabhaneni, S., Namugenyi, S., Carpenter, D., Turner-Harper, D., Booth, M., Coursey, E. J., Martin, K., McMahon, M., ... Lynfield, R. (2020). Serial testing for SARS-CoV-2 and virus whole genome sequencing inform infection risk at two skilled nursing facilities with COVID-19 outbreaks—Minnesota, April-June 2020. MMWR:Morbidity & Mortality Weekly Report, 69(37), 1288–1295. https://doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.mm6937a3

- Telford, C. T., Onwubiko, U., Holland, D. P., Turner, K., Prieto, J., Smith, S., Jane Yoon, Brown, W., Chamberlain, A., Gandhi, N., Williams, S., Khan, F., Shah, S., & Yoon, J. (2020). Preventing COVID-19 outbreaks in long-term care facilities through preemptive testing of residents and staff members—Fulton County, Georgia, March-May 2020. *MMWR: Morbidity & Mortality Weekly Report*, 69(37), 1296–1299. https://doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.mm6937a4
- Virginia Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Services. (n.d.). *Facilities*. https://dbhds.virginia.gov/about-dbhds/facilities
- Virginia Department of Corrections. (2020). *Offender population reports*. https://vadoc.virginia.gov/general-public/offender-population-reports/
- Virginia Department of Corrections. (n.d.). *Facilities and offices*. https://vadoc.virginia.gov/facilities-and-offices/
- Virginia Department of Health (VDH). (2020, February 4). *COVID-19 in Virginia*. https://www.vdh.virginia.gov/coronavirus/covid-19-in-virginia/
- Wallace, M., Hagan, L., Curran, K. G., Williams, S. P., Handanagic, S., Bjork, A., Davidson, S.
 L., Lawrence, R. T., McLaughlin, J., Butterfield, M., James, A. E., Patil, N., Lucas, K.,
 Hutchinson, J., Sosa, L., Jara, A., Griffin, P., Simonson, S., Brown, C. M., & Smoyer, S., ...
 Marlow, M. (2020a). COVID-19 in correctional and detention facilities—United States,
 February-April 2020. *MMWR: Morbidity & Mortality Weekly Report*, 69(19), 587–590.
 https://doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.mm6919e1

Wallace, M., Marlow, M., Simonson, S., Walker, M., Christophe, N., Dominguez, O.,

Kleamenakis, L., Orellana, A., Pagan-Pena, D., Singh, C., Pogue, M., Saucier, L., Lo, T.,

Benson, K., & Sokol, T. (2020b). Public health response to COVID-19 cases in correctional

and detention facilities-Louisiana, March-April 2020. MMWR: Morbidity & Mortality

Weekly Report, 69(19), 594–598. https://doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.mm6919e3

Social Determinants of Health and the Prevalence of Overweight Status and Mental Health Conditions Among Non-Hispanic Black and Hispanic Children in the United States

Mackenzie Hunt, Eastern Virginia Medical School Arianna Jensen-Wachspress, Eastern Virginia Medical School Nicole Holt, DrPH, MPH, Eastern Virginia Medical School

Abstract

Purpose: A growing concern in the United States has been the rise of anxiety and depression and its relation to excessive weight status among non-Hispanic Black and Hispanic children, racial groups with higher-than-average rates of overweight status and obesity. This study explored this prevalence by analyzing individual, interpersonal, and community factors among this population. The study also sought to determine if a correlation exists between elevated weight and mental health issues in the study population.

Methods: Using data from the 2017's National Survey of Children Health (NSCH), the prevalence of anxiety and depression was investigated among Black and Hispanic children ages 10-17 years old with a BMI greater than the 85th percentile, defined by the CDC as being overweight/obese (N=10,839).

Results: Two-way chi square tests were conducted in SPSS, determining that statistically significant correlates (p < 0.05) existed between the prevalence of overweight/obesity in children and individual, interpersonal, and community factors, with the most significant correlates being individual factors. A significant correlate was found to exist between overweight/obesity and the prevalence of anxiety and depression (p < 0.05, for both); however, when categorized by either race, no significant correlate was observed (p = 0.40, 0.26). Using a simple linear regression model, the most significant variables that correlated with overweight/obese were age, Mental Health Index, Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACE) score, and *Family Received Assistance in*

Last 12 Months. Family Received Assistance in Last 12 Months was indicated as a question on the NCSH.

Conclusion: The results of the study found the most significant correlates to be between individual factors and overweight/obesity in children. The multiple logistic regression model demonstrated that only three variables were significant predictors of overweight/obesity in children after running stepwise selection. Additional studies investigating mental health (MH) and behavioral health factors among children who are overweight or obese (o/o) is recommended.
Purpose

Increased rates of childhood overweight and obesity status has been a public health issue in the United States for the past decade, as it is a comorbidity of multiple, preventable diseases (Bhadoria et al., 2015; Mannan et al., 2016). In 2019, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) estimated that 18.5% of children in the United States were obese. Childhood obesity is most common in Hispanic (25.8%) and non-Hispanic Black children (22.0%) while non-Hispanic, upper class White children were cited to have the least prevalence of childhood obesity (CDC, 2019)¹.

A national effort to reduce racial and ethnic disparities, including education, income, location, and other social factors, can be exhibited in the establishment of the Racial and Ethnic Approach to Community Health (REACH) program (CDC, 2020). This program is focused on reducing health disparities in specific ethnic and racial groups of communities with high rates of chronic diseases, such as obesity, through a variety of means, including support for tobacco free living and providing more healthy nutrition options. According to the literature, obesity intervention and prevention strategies that use behavioral components, such as dietary and physical activity behaviors, are effective strategies towards weight loss (Ewart-Pierce et al., 2016; Castillo et al., 2015; Gariepy et al., 2009).Within the framework of targeting behavior to address childhood obesity, considerations include community, interpersonal, and individual factors (Loring & Robertson, 2014; CDC, 2019). Prominent individual factors associated with

¹ "Obese," "overweight," "healthy weight," and "underweight" are defined by the CDC in terms of Body Mass Index (BMI) quartile percentages in age and sex-specific growth charts. Obese is at or greater than the 95th percentile, overweight is between the 85th and 94th percentiles, "healthy weight is between the 5th and 84th percentile, and underweight is at or less than the 5th percentile ("Childhood," 2020).

childhood obesity include mental health factors such as anxiety and depression (Rankin et al., 2016).

A more recent concern among public and pediatric health is the increasing rates of anxiety and depression among children (CDC, 2020; Bitsko et al., 2018). According to data from the CDC, family, community, and healthcare factors are related to children's mental health status. Common mental health disorders that have been diagnosed in children include attentiondeficit/hyperactivity disorder (ADHD), anxiety, and behavior disorders. Additionally, among children living below 100% of the federal poverty level, more than 1 in 5 (22%) were found to have a mental, behavioral, or developmental disorder (CDC, 2020). Few studies have investigated mental health and obesity prevalence among non-White children in the framework of social determinants of health. This study further investigated this association to contribute to the narrative surrounding health disparities and inequities in health-vulnerable communities.

Objective

This study aims to investigate if significant correlates exist between the prevalence of overweight status and obesity in children among individual, interpersonal, and community factors in the social determinants of health model. Additionally, the study aims to investigate if a significant correlate exists between the prevalence of overweight and obesity and anxiety or depression among Non-Hispanic African American and Hispanic children.

Hypothesis

There will be a significant difference in the prevalence of overweight status and obesity in children among individual, interpersonal, and community factors within the social determinants of health framework. Additionally, it is hypothesized that there will be a significant difference in the prevalence of mental health factors such as anxiety and depression in NonHispanic African American and Hispanic overweight and obese children as compared to children who are not who are not overweight or obese.

Methods

Data from the 2017 National Survey of Children's Health (NSCH) was used for this study². The population examined were children aged 10-17 years old who were overweight or obese (N = 10,839). Data was analyzed using IBM SPSS Statistics (Version 26) predictive analytics software (IBM, 2019).

Independent variables were selected and coded into a Mental Health Index (MH Index) and race. The MH Index was calculated by the addition of *"ever having had anxiety or depression"*. The question for MH Index asked if the child had ever had depression and anxiety. The question pertaining to race asked what race the child was. Responses for MH Index were *none reported mental health issues, one reported mental health issue,* and *reported mental health issues.* Responses for race included *Hispanic, White non-Hispanic, Black non-Hispanic,* and *Other/Multi-Racial Non-Hispanic.*

Dependent variables for individual, interpersonal, and community factors were selected and coded by weight status. The question was *"What is the current weight of the child?"* with responses as *Underweight*, *Healthy Weight*, and *Overweight* or *Obese*. Simple descriptive statistics including frequencies and percentages were conducted for the primary independent variable of MH Index and race and the dependent variables of weight status as grouped by

² The National Survey of Children's Health is sponsored by the Health Resources and Services Administration's (HRSA) Maternal and Child Health Bureau (MCHB) under the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS). The survey provides detailed data regarding health, well-being, and access to amenities for non-institutionalized children, ages 0-17 years (2018).

children ages 10-17. Chi square tests were performed on weight status and MH Index as filtered by race and age of child.

A simple logistic regression method was performed individually, which included odds ratios and confidence intervals for various independent variables such as race, gender, and other index scores. The dependent variable, weight status, was dichotomized as underweight or normal weight (0) and obese or overweight (1) and weight status was filtered as equal to obese or overweight as grouped by children ages 10-17. A multiple logistic regression method including odds ratios and confidence intervals was performed for MH Index, ACE score, and *family receiving assistance within the last 12 months* as our independent variables simultaneously via stepwise selection to determine the significant predictors for obese or overweight status as grouped by children ages 10-17. The ACE score was a composite of adverse childhood experiences measured by parental divorces, deaths, a parent being in jail, and discrimination, which could lead to anxiety or depression among children. Families receiving assistance within the last 12 months were chosen as a variable due to access to food stamps and other programs has been shown to improve nutritional access and affect obesity rates.

Results

Individual factors of social determinants of health that were tested for significant associations (n=20) with prevalence of overweight or obese children aged 10-17 included anxiety, behavioral problems, depression, emotional support for parents (counselor, health care provider, (peer) support group, family and friends, place of worship, intellectual disability, learning disability, race/ethnicity, and sex of child (Table 1). Interpersonal factors (n=8) of social determinants of health that were tested for significant associations with the prevalence of overweight or obese children (ages 10-17) included, hard to cover basics such as food and

housing, ACE (parents divorced or separated), food stamp recipient in the past 12 months,

mental health status of mother, ACE (parent died), ACE (parent in jail), ACE (discrimination),

and anyone in house uses cigarettes (Table 1). Community factors (n=3) of social determinants

of health that were tested for a significant association with the prevalence of overweight or obese

children (ages 10-17) were community participation, safe neighborhood, and safe school (Table

1).

Individual Factors	p-value
Anxiety	0.000
Anxiety Currently	0.000
Autism – ASD	0.000
Behavioral Problems (previously)	0.000
Behavioral Problems (currently)	0.000
Depression (previously)	0.000
Depression (currently)	0.000
Emotional Support – Counselor	0.001
Emotional Support - Health Care Provider	0.011
Emotional Support - Support Group	0.000
Emotional Support – Other	0.000
Emotional Support - Family, or Friend	0.001
Emotional Support - Peer Support Group	0.011
Emotional Support - Place of Worship	0.015
Emotional Support – Spouse	0.000

Table 1: Significant Associations between Individual, Interpersonal, and CommunityFactors and BMI > 85th Percentile in Children, ages 10-17

Intellectual Disability	0.000
Learning Disability (previous)	0.000
Learning Disability (currently)	0.000
Race/Ethnicity	0.000
Sex of the selected child	0.000
Interpersonal Factors	p-value
Hard to cover basics like food and bousing	0.000
hard to cover basics like food and housing	0.000
ACE (i.e. parents divorced or separated)	0.000
Food stamp recipient past 12 months	0.000
Mental health status of mother	0.000
ACE (i.e. parent died)	0.000
ACE (i.e. parent in jail	0.000
ACE (i.e. discrimination)	0.037
Anyone in house uses cigarettes	0.000
Community Factors	p-value
Community Participation	0.000
Safe neighborhood	0.000
Safe school	0.000

At the national level, out of 10,839 children, 6.4% were found to be underweight, 66.2% were of healthy weight, and 27.4% were found to be obese (Table 2). Within the children found to be overweight or obese, 11.1% were Hispanic, 69.4% were non-Hispanic White, 6.9% were non-Hispanic Black, and 12.6% were other multi-racial or non-Of the 10,839 children (N), 6.1% noted ever having anxiety and depression and 10.2% indicated ever having either anxiety or

depression. In the MH Index, the responses consisted of no reported mental health issues, one reported mental health issue, and more than one reported mental health issue. Of the 10,839 responses, 83.7% reported having no mental health issue, 10.2% reported having one mental health issue, and 6.1% reported having more than one mental health issue. Hispanics.

Variable	Responses	n (%)
MH Index ¹	No reported mental health issues	11256 (83.7)
	One reported mental health issue	11256 (10.2%)
	Two reported mental health issues	11256 (6.1%)
Race	Hispanic	10839 (11/1%)
	White non-Hispanic	100839 (69.4%)
	Black non-Hispanic	10839 (6.9%)
	Other /Multi-Racial Non-Hispanic	10839 (12.6%)
Weight Status	Underweight = $<5^{th}$ Percentile	11315 (6.4%)
	5th to 84th Percentile=Healthy Weight	11315 (66.2%)
	85th Percentile or Above=Overweight or Obese	11315 (27.4%)

 Table 2: Frequencies of MH Index, Race, and Weight Status Among non-Hispanic Black

 and Hispanic Children²

Note:

1: Mental health index composite of two variables (ever had or currently has anxiety and depression)

² Percentages in table may not add up to 100% due to missing data.

A two-way chi-square value of 5.233 (p = 0.05) statistical test was then used to investigate the correlation between obesity and anxiety and obesity and depression in Hispanic children. A two-way chi square value of 4.021 (p=0.05) statistical test was also used to investigate the correlation between obesity and anxiety and obesity and depression in African American children. The p-values for both the Hispanic and non-Hispanic African American populations indicated that a significant association did not exist (p > 0.05) (Table 3). All pvalues were greater than the accepted p-value (p > 0.05), indicating that there was not a significant correlation between these variables. Using data from the 2017's NSCH, statistically significant associations were identified between the prevalence of childhood obesity and individual, interpersonal, and community factors via a two-way chi-square statistical test (X^{2}_{1} -9,CI 95%, p < 0.05) (Table 3).

 Table 3: Chi Square Results of Association between MH Index and Weight Status Among non-Hispanic Black and Hispanic Children

Variable	Responses	X ² (p-value)
Race	Hispanic	5.233 (0.264)
	African American	4.021 (0.403)

Note:

Not shown: MH Index and Weight Status as variables were filtered by race but are included in p-value

Using descriptive statistics, the study scope was expanded by including individual factors along with age and race. The total surveyed population was broken down into subgroups or representative samples based on each variable to gain a better, more comparable collection of responses. Of 2,968 children, 100% were ages 10-17 years old. Of 1,678 children, 56.5% were male. Of 1,290 children, 43.5% were female. Of 417 children, 14% were Hispanic. Of 1,926 children, 64.9% were white non-Hispanic. Of 285 children, 9.6% were black non-Hispanic. Of 316 children, 10.6% were other, multi-racial, non-Hispanics. Of 2,380 children, 80.2% noted never ever having had a mental health issue. Of 307 children, 10.3% noted having at least one mental health issue. Of 266 children, 9% reported having had more than one mental health issue. Of 233 children, 7.9% reported having had at least one behavioral health issue. Of 2,490 children, 84.9% reported no developmental disability. Of 306 children, 10.4% reported having had at least one

developmental disability. Of 112 children, 3.8% reported having had more than one developmental disability. Of 1,995 children, 67.2% reported having no difficulty keeping or making friends in the past 12 months. Of 693 children, 23.3% reported having a little difficulty keeping or making friends in the last 12 months. Of 252 children, 8.5% reported having a lot of difficulty keeping or making friends in the last 12 months. Of 248 children, 8.4% reported no emotional support. Of 961 children, 43.4% reported having emotional support (Table 4).

 Table 4: Descriptive Statistics for Individual Factors of Obese and Overweight Children, aged 10-17⁵

Individual Factors	Responses	Frequency (%)
		Mean (SD)
Gender of Study Child	Male	1678 (56.5)
	Female	1290 (43.5)
Race	Hispanic	417 (14.0)
	White Non-Hispanic	1926 (64.9)
	Black Non-Hispanic	285 (9.6)
	Other/Multi-Racial Non-Hispanic	316 (10.6)
Mental Health Index ¹	No Mental Health Issues	2380 (80.2)
	One Mental Health Issue	307 (10.3)
	Two Mental Health Issues	266 (9.0)
Behavioral Health Index ²	No Behavioral Health Issues	251 (8.5)
	One Behavioral Health Issue	2344 (79.0)
	Two Behavioral Health Issues	233 (7.9)

Developmental Disability Index ³	No Developmental Disabilities	2490 (84.9)
	One Developmental Disability	306 (10.4)
	Two Developmental Disabilities	112 (3.8)
Difficulty Keeping or Making	No difficulty	1995 (67.2)
Friends in the Past 12 Months	A little difficulty	693 (23.3)
	A lot of difficulty	252 (8.5)
Parenting Emotional Support ⁴	No emotional support	248 (8.4)
	Emotional support	961 (43.4)

Note: weight-status was defined as overweight and obese.

1: Mental Health Index was a composite of: two variables if the study child had ever had or has depression or anxiety.

2: Behavioral Health Index was a composite of: two variables of children currently have behavioral or conduct problems – age 3-17 years and ADD/ADHD ever.

3: Developmental Disability Index was a composite of: ASD ever, intellectual disability ever, and learning disability.

4. Parental emotional support included: spouse, family or close friend, health care provider, place of worship or religious leader, specific

condition support group, peer support group, mental health professional, and other.

⁵ Percentages in table may not add up to 100% due to missing data.

Using a logistic regression model, odds ratios was determined for each of the individual factors along with age and race. A significant relationship was not found between children aged 10 years and older and weight status (85th percentile) due to the odds ratio was within the confidence interval. The odds of male children being overweight or obese was 2.35 times as likely compared to females. Of the children aged 10-17 years old, the odds of Hispanic, non-Hispanic White, and non-Hispanic Black children being obese or overweight were 0.956 times more likely as compared to other multi-racial children. Of the children aged 10-17 years old, the odds of ever having had no mental health issue or one mental health issue were 1.30 times as likely compared to having had more than one mental health issue or one behavioral health issue were 1.211 times as likely compared to having had no behavioral health issue or one developmental disability were 1.396 times as likely compared to ever having had no or one developmental

disability. Of the children aged 10-17 years old, the odds of having no or a little difficulty making or keeping friends within the past 12 months was 0.997 as likely compared to having a lot of difficulty making or keeping friends. Of the children aged 10-17 years old, the odds of no emotional support were 0.997 times as likely compared to having emotional support (Table 5).

Table 5: Simple Logistic Regression for Individual Factors related to obesity i	n non-
Hispanic Black and Hispanic Children, ages 10-17	

BMI Obese or Overweight BMI %ile (ref: 1)		
Individual Factors	OR (95% CI)	
Age of Child (years)	0.953 (0.936,0.971)	
Gender of Study Child		
Male vs Female	2.35 (1.23,3.44)*	
Race	0.956 (0.906,1.009)*	
Hispanic		
White Non-Hispanic		
Black Non-Hispanic		
Other/Multi-Racial Non-Hispanic ^R		
Mental Health Index ¹	1.30 (1.208,1.399)*	
No Mental Health Issues		
One Mental Health Issue		
Two Mental Health Issues ^R		
Behavioral Health Index ²	1.211 (1.126,1.302)*	
No Behavioral Health Issues		
One Behavioral Health Issue		
Two Behavioral Health Issues ^R		

Developmental Disability Index ³ No Developmental Disabilities One Developmental Disability Two Developmental Disabilities ^R	1.396 (1.283,1.518)*
Difficulty Keeping or Making Friends in the Past 12 Months	0.997 (0.993,1.001)*
A little difficulty A lot of difficulty ^R	
Parenting Emotional Support	0.997 (0.954,1.043)*
No emotional support Emotional support ^R	

1: Mental Health Index was a composite of two variables if the study child had ever had depression or anxiety.

2: Behavioral Health Index: was a composite of two variables if the children currently have behavioral or conduct problems, age 3-17 years and ADD / ADHD Ever.

3: Developmental Disability Index: was a composite of three variables ASD Ever, intellectual disability ever, and learning disability. R: Reference Group

* p<0.05, **p<0.01, ***p<0.001

Using descriptive statistics, the study scope was expanded by including interpersonal factors along with age and race. The total surveyed population was broken down into subgroups or representative samples to gain a better, more comparable collection of responses. Of 220 children, 7.4% reported definitely being bullied, picked on, or excluded by others. Of 683 children, 23% reported being somewhat bullied, picked on, or excluded by others. Of 2,035 children, 68.6% reported never being bullied, picked on, or excluded by others. Of 1,251 children, 42.8% reported no adverse childhood experience. Of 772 children, 26.4% reported having two or more adverse childhood experience. Of 902 children, 30.8% reported having two or more adverse childhood experiences. Of 551 children, 19.2% reported that the family received assistance in the last 12 months. Of 1,919 children, 62.2% reported that the mental health status of the mother was excellent or very good. Of 737 children, 24.8% reported that the mental

health status of the mother was good, fair, or poor. Of 474 children, 82.7% reported no tobacco

use in the house. Of 99 children, 17.3% reported tobacco use in the house (Table 6).

 Table 6: Descriptive Statistics for Interpersonal Factors of Obese and Overweight

 Children, ages 10-17³

Variable	Variable	Variable
Interpersonal Factors		Frequency (%)
Bulled, Picked-on, or Excluded by	Definitely true	220 (7.4)
Others	Somewhat true	683 (23.0)
	Not true	2035 (68.6)
ACE Score ⁵	Child Experienced 0 ACEs	1251 (42.8)
	Child Experienced 1 ACE	772 (26.4)
	Child Experienced ≥ 2 ACEs	902 (30.8)
Family Received Assistance in Last 12	Assistance	551 (19.2)
Months ⁶	No assistance	1919 (67)
Mental Health Status of Mother	Excellent or very good	1845 (62.2)
	Good, fair or poor	737 (24.8)
Tobacco Use in House	No tobacco use	474 (82.7)
	Tobacco use	99 (17.3)

Note:

5. (ACEs) Adverse Childhood Experiences

Using a logistic regression model, an odds ratio was determined for each of the

interpersonal factors along with age and race. A significant relationship was not found between

children ages 10-17 years old being bullied, picked on, or excluded by others and being obese or

overweight due to the odds ratio being within the confidence interval. A significant was not

found between children ages 10-17 years old having had an adverse childhood experience and

 $^{^{3}}$ Percentages in table may not add up to 100% due to missing data.

Child Experienced: Hard to Cover Basics Like Food or Housing, Parent or Guardian Divorced, Parent or Guardian Died, Parent or Guardian Time in Jail, Adults Slap, Hit, Kick, Punch Others, Victim of Violence, Lived with Mentally Ill Person, Lived with Person with Alcohol/Drug Problem, Treated Unfairly Because of Race)

^{6.} Family received assistance in the past 12 months included: food stamps, WIC, cash, and free or reduced lunch.

being obese or overweight due to the odds ratio being within the confidence interval. Of the children ages 10-17 years old, the odds of the family receiving assistance was 1.473 times as likely as having received no assistance. Of the children ages 10-17 years old, the odds of the mental health status of the mother being excellent or good was 1.426 times as likely compared to being good, fair, or poor (Table 7).

Table 7: Simple Logistic Regression for Interpersonal Factors related to Obesity in Non-Hispanic Black and Hispanic Children, Aged 10-17

BMI Obese or Overweight BMI %ile (ref: 1)			
Variable	OR (95% CI)		
Interpersonal Factors			
Bulled, Picked-on, or Excluded by Others Definitely true Somewhat true Not true ^R	0.996 (0.992,1.000)		
ACE Score ⁵ Child Experienced 0 ACE Child Experienced 1 ACE Child Experienced $\ge 2 \text{ ACE}^{R}$	1.003 (1.000,1.007)		
Family Received Assistance in Last 12 Months ⁵ Assistance No assistance ^R	1.473 (1.391, 1.559)*		
Mental Health Status of Mother Excellent or very good Good, fair or poor ^R	1.426 (1.288, 1.580)*		
Tobacco Use in House No tobacco use Tobacco use ^R	1.303 (0.982, 1.731)		

Note:

Weight-status was defined as overweight and obese.

5. ACEs) Adverse Childhood Experiences (need to include a list of what these are in the methods:

Child Experienced: Hard to Cover Basics Like Food or Housing, Parent or Guardian Divorced, Parent or Guardian Died, Parent or Guardian Time in Jail, Adults Slap, Hit, Kick, Punch Others, Victim of Violence, Lived with Mentally Ill Person, Lived with Person with Alcohol/Drug Problem, Treated Unfairly Because of Race)

6: Assistance included, food stamps, WIC, cash, and free or reduced lunch.

Using descriptive statistics, the study scope was expanded by including community

factors along with age and race. The total surveyed population was broken down into subgroups

or representative samples to gain a better, more comparable collection of responses. Of 710 children, 23.9% reported no neighborhood cohesion. Of 364 children, 12.3% reported neighborhood cohesion. Of 453 children, 15.7% reported having no neighborhood amenities. Of 350 children, 12.1% reported having neighborhood amenities. Of 2,254 children, 78% reported not having neighborhood elements. Of 403 children, 13.9% reported having neighborhood elements (Table 8).

 Table 8: Descriptive Statistics for Community Factors in Obese and Overweight Children,

 ages 10-17

Variable	Responses	Frequency (%)
Neighborhood Cohesion ⁶	No Cohesion Cohesion	710 (23.9) 364 (12.3)
Neighborhood Amenities ⁷	Does not have neighborhood amenities Has neighborhood amenities	453 (15.7) 350 (12.1)
Detracting Neighborhood Elements ⁸	Does not have neighborhood elements Has neighborhood elements	2,254 (78.0) 403 (13.9)

Note:

Weight-status was defined as overweight and obese.

6: Neighborhood Cohesion includes: people helping each other out, people watching out for each other's children, child being safe in

neighborhood, and us knowing where to go for help in our community.

7. Neighborhood amenities includes: sidewalks/walking paths, park/playground, recreation center, and library/book mobile.

8. Detracting Neighborhood Elements include: litter/garbage, poorly kept rundown housing, and vandalism/graffiti.

Using a logistic regression model, an odds ratio was determined for each of the

community factors along with age and race. A significant relationship was not found between

children aged 10-17 having tobacco use in the house and being obese or overweight. A

significant relationship was also not found between children aged 10-17 having neighborhood

cohesion and being obese or overweight due to the odds ratio being within the confidence

interval. Of the children aged 10-17, the odds of not having neighborhood amenities was .931

times as likely as having neighborhood amenities. Of the children aged 10-17, the odds of not

having neighborhood elements was 1.205 times as likely as having neighborhood elements

(Table 9).

Table 9: Simple Logistic Regression for Community Factors Related to Obesity for non-Hispanic Black and Hispanic Children, Aged 10-17

BMI Obese or Overweight BMI %ile (ref: 1)						
Variable	OR (95% CI)					
Community Factors						
Neighborhood Cohesion ⁶ No Cohesion Cohesion ^R	1.000 (0.999, 1.001)					
Neighborhood Amenities ⁷ Does not have neighborhood amenities Has neighborhood amenities ^R	0.931 (0.903, 0.959)*					
Detracting Neighborhood Elements ⁸ Does not have neighborhood elements Has neighborhood elements ^R	1.205 (1.133, 1.282)*					

Note:

6: Neighborhood cohesion included people helping each other out, people watching out for each other's children, child being safe in neighborhood, and us knowing where to go for help in our community.

7: Neighborhood amenities included sidewalks/walking paths, park/playground, recreation center, and library/book mobile.

8: Detracting neighborhood elements included litter/garbage, poorly kept rundown housing, and vandalism/graffiti.

R: Reference Group

* p<0.05, **p<0.01, ***p<0.001

A stepwise selection method was used within the multiple logistic regression model to

determine which factors significantly contributed to being obese or overweight. Results showed

age of child, mental health index, adverse childhood experiences score, and family receiving

assistance in the last 12 months to be significant (Table 10).

Table 10: Combined Model of Individual, Interpersonal, and Community Factors Related to Obesity for non-Hispanic Black and Hispanic Children, Aged 10-17

BMI Obese or Overweight BMI %ile (ref: 1)						
Variable	OR (95% CI)					
Age of Child (years)	1.057 (1.036,1.077)*					
Mental Health Index ¹	1.649 (1.332,2.040)*					
ACE Score ²	0.801 (0.757,.848)*					
Family Received Assistance in Last 12 Months ³	0.686 (0.281, 1.676)*					

Note:

1: Mental Health Index was a composite of two variables if the study child had ever had depression or anxiety.

2: (ACEs) Adverse Childhood Experiences: Child Experienced: Hard to Cover Basics Like Food or Housing, Parent or Guardian Divorced, Parent or Guardian Died, Parent or Guardian Time in Jail, Adults Slap, Hit, Kick, Punch Others, Victim of Violence, Lived with Mentally III Person, Lived with Person with Alcohol/Drug Problem, Treated Unfairly Because of Race)

3: Assistance included, food stamps, WIC, cash, and free or reduced lunch.

R: Reference Group

* p<0.05, **p<0.01, ***p<0.001

Discussion

Significant associations were found between the prevalence of overweight and obese children and individual, interpersonal, and community factors. A significant association was also found between the prevalence of overweight status or obesity and prevalence of anxiety or depression in children aged 10-17 years old. However, when further broken down by race, non-Hispanic Black and Hispanic children, a significant association was not found. A follow-up study investigating childhood obesity among non-Hispanic Black and Hispanic populations and the prevalence of mental health conditions, including but not limited to anxiety and depression, as well as behavioral health conditions, could further contribute to findings on health disparities and inequities based on the social determinants of health. This could also identify potentially under-funded communities or barriers, such as access, to services such as preventative and mental health.

Data from this study supports the greater narrative that social determinants of health affect health outcomes among different populations. Low-income and non-White communities are known to have poorer health outcomes. If these communities have a higher prevalence of childhood obesity, a comorbidity of other chronic and serious conditions, and are the most disproportionately affected by social health disparities, then the health outcomes will be more severe if the current trend is upheld. Therefore, recommendations to local policy-makers would be to implement accessible programs for preventative health care and mental health services, in addition to health educational resources among low-income and non-White communities.

Conclusions

Using data from the 2017 NSCH and SPSS statistical analytical software, the study concluded that a significant correlate was not observed between non-Hispanic African-American and Hispanic obese children and the prevalence of anxiety and depression. These findings are consistent among national data (Mannan, Mamum, Doi, and Clarvino, 2016). The study literature review demonstrated that many variables contribute to childhood obesity including behavior and social determinants of health (includes mental health factors such as anxiety and depression). The study concluded that further investigation between the prevalence of mental health factors and childhood obesity should be conducted in order to determine if modifications are needed in program interventions on community, intrapersonal, and individual levels of social determinants of health.

References

- Bhadoria, A., Sahoo, K., Sahoo, B., Choudhury, A., Sufi, N., & Kumar, R. (2015). Childhood obesity: Causes and consequences. Journal of Family Medicine and Primary Care, 4(2), 187-192. doi:10.4103/2249-4863.154628
- Bitsko, R. H., Holbrook, J. R., Ghandour, R. M., Blumberg, S. J., Visser, S. N., Perou, R., & Walkup, J. T. (2018). Epidemiology and impact of health care provider–diagnosed anxiety and depression among US children. *Journal of Developmental & Behavioral Pediatrics*, 39(5), 395-403. <u>https://doi.org/10.1097/dbp.00000000000571</u>
- Castillo, E. G., Ijadi-Maghsoodi, R., Shadravan, S., Moore, E., Mensah, M. O., Docherty, M., . . .
 Wells, K. B. (2019). Community interventions to promote mental health and social equity. *Current Psychiatry Reports*, 21(5), doi:10.1007/s11920-019-1017-0
- Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2019, June 24). *Childhood obesity facts*. https://www.cdc.gov/obesity/data/childhood.html
- Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2020, April 3). *Anxiety and depression in children: Get the facts*. <u>https://www.cdc.gov/childrensmentalhealth/features/anxiety-depression-</u> <u>children.html</u>
- Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2020, June 11). *Causes and consequences of childhood obesity*. <u>https://www.cdc.gov/obesity/childhood/causes.html</u>
- Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2020, October 6). *Racial and ethnic approaches to community health (REACH)*. https://www.cdc.gov/nccdphp/dnpao/state-localprograms/reach/index.htm
- Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2020, September 2). *Children's mental health research*. <u>https://www.cdc.gov/childrensmentalhealth/research.html</u>

- Ewart-Pierce, E., Ruiz, M. J., & Gittelsohn, J. (2016). "Whole-of-community" obesity prevention: A review of challenges and opportunities in multilevel, multicomponent interventions. *Current Obesity Reports*, 5(3), 361-374. doi:10.1007/s13679-016-0226-7
- Gariepy, G., Nitka, D., & Schmitz, N. (2009). The association between obesity and anxiety disorders in the population: A systematic review and meta-analysis. *International Journal* of Obesity, 34(3), 407-419. doi:10.1038/ijo.2009.2
- Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) Maternal and Child Health Bureau. (2020) National Survey of Children's Health (NSCH).

https://mchb.hrsa.gov/data/national-surveys

- IBM Corp. (2019). IBM SPSS Statistics for Windows, Version 26.0. Armonk, NY: IBM Corp. [Computer software]
- Loring, B., & Robertson, A. (2014). *Obesity and inequities: Guidance for addressing inequities in overweight and obesity*. Copenhagen: World Health Organization.
- Mannan, M., Mamun, A., Doi, S., & Clavarino, A. (2016). Prospective associations between depression and obesity for adolescent males and females - A systematic review and metaanalysis of longitudinal studies. *Plos One*, 11(6) doi:10.1371/journal.pone.0157240
- Rankin, J., Matthews, L., Cobley, S., Han, A., Sanders, R., Wiltshire, H. D., & Baker, J. S.
 (2016). Psychological consequences of childhood obesity: Psychiatric comorbidity and prevention. *Adolescent Health, Medicine and Therapeutics*, *7*, 125-146.
 doi:10.2147/ahmt.s101631

World Health Organization (WHO). (2012). Population-based approaches to childhood obesity prevention. <u>https://apps.who.int/iris/bitstream/handle/10665/80149/</u> 9789241504782_eng.pdf;jsessionid=22A1B4B5B2886BF6ED3D5DB95EAB8ED7? sequence=1

Systemic Racial Bias in Health Care Delivery to Women

Tiffany M. Edwards, MPH, Center for Global Health, College of Health Sciences; School of Community and Environmental Health, Old Dominion University, Norfolk, VA **Deanne Shuman, PhD,** Center for Global Health, College of Health Sciences; School of Community and Environmental Health, Old Dominion University, Norfolk, VA **Muge Akpinar-Elci, MD, PhD,** Center for Global Health, College of Health Sciences; School of Community and Environmental Health, Old Dominion University, Norfolk, VA

Abstract

Introduction: The main hypothesis is that racial bias towards minority women perpetuates systemic racism in the U.S., health care system resulting in negative health outcomes and detrimental incidences.

Methods: In this semi-systematic and literature review, an informational web-based search was used from the U.S. National Library of Medicine at the National Institutes of Health, Elsevier, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, and ResearchGate. Inclusion criteria were adult women over the age of eighteen, women of color restricted to the United States only, and different areas of health care delivery.

Results: This review found that women of color, especially black women, faced substantially more systemic racial bias in the United States health care delivery system and felt more excluded from adequate health care from clinicians due to racial discrimination.

Discussion: There is very little literature on how to combat racial bias in health care delivery in the U.S. The mainframe of this stereotypical behavior from health care workers is conventional conscious and subconscious biases. Change needed for this type of behavior needs to start at the cognitive level.

Keywords: Health care delivery, minority women, racial bias, implicit racial bias, gender bias

Introduction

Minorities face societal biases in the United States health care system that are a result of prejudicial and discriminatory acts and behaviors yielding depraved health outcomes (Lewis et al., 2016). Women, especially minority women, are often subjected to these experiences, leaving them feeling marginalized, avoiding wellness visits, and scheduled physician appointments because of these racially bias incidences (Lewis et al., 2016; Gary, et al., 2015). Minority women face racial disparities in many aspects in health care delivery in the U.S. health care system as in the United States, African American women represented 60% of new HIV infections and had a 2.8-3.7 times higher likelihood of dying from pregnancy-related deaths (Prather, et a., 2016). The aim of this study was to identify documented incidents of systemic racism in health care delivery against minority women in the U.S. health care system. The overall goal of the present review was to investigate racial biases towards minority women, which perpetuates systemic racism in the U.S. health care system resulting in negative health outcomes and detrimental incidences.

Methods

For this study, a semi-systematic review was conducted following the Preferred Reporting Items for Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis (PRISMA) guidelines (Snyder, 2019; Moher et al., 2009). In addition, a literature review was conducted when PRMISA guidelines were not met (Snyder, 2009). The review included quantitative and qualitative, English only published studies. The timeframe of this study was conducted within the last 18 years from 2002 to 2020, in order to capture the more recent data. This research review was conducted using the National Center for Biotechnology Information (NCIB/PubMed), and U.S. National Library of Medicine databases. The following search terms, "racial bias", "gender bias", "health care delivery, and the "United States" were used for the review. Additional research sources included Elsevier, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), ResearchGate, and Google search engine to locate additional articles, using the same search terms. The study's semi-systematic and literature review was conducted during the months of October and November 2020.

The study reviewed qualitative and quantitative research articles that studied the impacts of racial and gender bias in health care delivery in the U.S. for women of color. Research articles included in this search were adult women over the age of eighteen, women of color, restricted to the U.S. only, and different areas of health care delivery. Research articles excluded from this search were women under the age of eighteen, men regardless of race, Caucasian women, and racial and gender bias in health care delivery outside of the United States.

Data extraction was conducted based on the area of health care delivery, the aim and/or objective of the study, methodological study and data collection methods, and the research study design (CASP, 2018; Moher et al., 2009). This data extraction resolved the issue of duplications. A total of 33 references were considered for this research review based on the title and abstract. Of the 33 references considered, 15 articles were excluded that did not meet the inclusion criteria based on their aims and/or objectives. A total of 18 articles were considered to have met the inclusion criteria.

Findings

Areas of racial bias identified in the U.S health care delivery system were maternal mortality and pregnancy-related mortality rates, health care provider interactions, insurancebased discrimination in health care delivery, and racial and gender bias in labor pain management. These topics were chosen due to the high rates of racial disparities, unconscious racial bias impacting health care delivery, and the unique perspective of the victim's point of view.

Racial Bias Impacting Maternal Mortality and Pregnancy-Related Mortality Rates

Maternal mortality in the U.S. exhibits one of the most notable racial disparities in women's health outcomes (Maternal Health Task Force, n.d.). Despite the significant increase in financial support in hospital-based maternity care and its participation in the Millennium Development Goals (MDGs), the maternal mortality ratio, as of 2018, was 17.4 deaths per 100,000 live births (CDC, 2019a; Maternal Health Task Force, n.d.). The National Center for Health Statistics reported disproportionate rates of racial and ethnic maternal deaths in 2018; 37.3 deaths per 100,000 live births were reported for non-Hispanic black women, 14.9 deaths per 100,000 live births for non-Hispanic white women, and 11.8 deaths per 100,000 live births for Hispanic women (CDC, 2019a). African American women were three to four times more likely to have a higher maternal mortality rate (Maternal Health Task Force, n.d.). Conversely, African American women also experienced higher pregnancy-related mortality deaths (PRMRs) with 40.8 deaths per 100,000 live births as compared to their white counterparts, (Maternal Health Task Force, n.d.).

From 2007-2016, PRMR's increased from 15.0 to 17.0 per 100,000 live births from 2007–2016 (CDC, 2019b). The CDC's implementation of the Pregnancy Mortality Surveillance System, that tracked pregnancy-related deaths from 1987 to 2017, saw an increase from 7.2 deaths per 100,000 births to 17.3 deaths per 100,000 live births, respectively in the U.S. (CDC, 2020a). Black, American Indian, and Alaska Native women were found to be two to three times more likely to die from pregnancy-related deaths, with disparities increasing over the age of 30 and PRMRs four to five times higher in this group than their white counterparts (CDC, 2019b).

Non-communicable diseases, such as cardiomyopathy, thrombotic pulmonary embolism, and hypertensive disorders, contributed to more pregnancy-related deaths in black women than their white counterparts (CDC, 2019b; Maternal Health Task Force, n.d.). Delayed prenatal care visits also contributed to pregnancy-related deaths, with 25% of women in the U.S. not receiving the recommended prenatal visits (Maternal Health Task Force, n.d.). This decline in prenatal care visits was found to occur in 34% of African American women and 41% of American Indian and Alaska Native women (Maternal Health Task Force, n.d.). From 2000 to 2017, while the world saw a reduction in maternal mortality deaths by 38%, the U.S failed to not only meet its national goals of a reduction in MMR by 10% between 2007 and 2020, but also the Healthy People 2020 goal of decreasing the MMR from 12.7 maternal deaths per 100,000 live births in 2007 to 11.4 maternal deaths per 100,000 live births (Maternal Health Task Force, n.d., USHHS, 2014).

Interactions with Health Care Providers

Unconscious, implicit cultural, and stereotypical characterization has led to racial and gender biases which have inadvertently socially grouped individuals into a categorically accepted minority of social norm(s) (Burgess et al., 2016; Burgess et al., 2007). This, in turn, has influenced the interpretation of behaviors and symptoms, under the assumption that it is typical conduct for an individual's race, ethnicity, and sex (Burgess et al., 2016; Burgess et al., 2007). These unconscious biases have led to poor health care delivery for women of color, often leading to prolonged undiagnosed health problems or poor treatment of a diagnosed issue (Burgess et al., 2016; Gary et al., 2015; Burgess et al., 2007). Gary et al., (2015) stated that the lack of communication and poor clinician-to-patient interactions often led to incomplete diagnostic information and curative recommendations for women, particularly for black women. As cited in one patient's experience:

When the doctor come in he'd cross his leg, and say "How you doing; you doing fine? Well, is there anything bothering you?" "Well," I'd say, "my back is still bothering me." He'd say, "Well, it'll get better. Sign this paper. Take this." That doctor did not put his hands on me. Never touched me! (Gary et al., 2015, p. 7).

Clinicians' aversion to performing proper physical assessments of their patient's issues can create an unwelcoming environment, furnished with racial undertones, sending an implicit, yet strong message, that the patient is to the clinician, subhuman, disgusting, or dirty in some way (Gary et al., 2015). Okoro et al., (2020) reported one participant's experience with a health care provider:

They treat you different, even with the way they greet you. - ...because you African American. You do get treated a little bit different, because they don't even have the compassion a lot of times to Afro Americans. They don't consider that a lot of things is serious with us when it is – (Participant #2) (p. 4).

Insufficient time spent with patients by clinicians and other health care providers has jaded many black women, knowing they have been unheard and underserved. This type of behavior from clinicians can influence women of color's perception of clinicians, often delaying them in scheduling or not scheduling follow-up appointments at all as reported in one participant's experience by Okoro et al.(2020):

I thought about not going to that dentist office anymore because when we go there I feel we're stared at. It's super uncomfortable in there. I called it, "We're ink on paper." We are the spot on paper, ink on paper. That's how I feel when I go in there with all the white people around. 'I was gonna stop going because of the stares, because of the feeling I have because I'm in there telling my kids, "Be still. Don't do anything." Even though all these little white kids are running around. "Don't you stand up, don't move because we will be look at. You will destroy it. If something is broke, it will be because of you. If you are there and it's over there, it'll be because of you." I do that with my kids. That's not right, so I stopped. (Participant #4) (p.4).

Insurance-Based Discrimination in Health Care Delivery:

Insurance-based discrimination can have negative health outcomes for women of color and can impact their perceptions of care from clinicians and other health care providers (Weech-Maldonado et al., 2012). Research by Weech-Maldonado et al., (2012) reported that Medicaid enrolls roughly 60 million Americans, providing health insurance coverage to an estimated 27% of all blacks or African Americans. This same study also reported that women of color were three times more likely to experience insurance-based and racial and ethnic discrimination when enrolled in the Medicaid program. Medicaid and Medicare beneficiaries also expressed grievances about their hospital experiences, reporting a lack of quality of care and a more hostile environment because due to their type of insurance (Gary et al., 2015; Weech-Maldonado et al., 2012). Women of color, especially African American women who are economically disadvantaged and living in low-income areas, have significantly wider health gaps and lower health statuses compared to their white counterparts living in suburban areas (Okoro et al., 2020).

Racial and Gender Bias in Labor Pain Management

The Institute of Medicine (IOM) determined that implicit racial bias, stereotyping, and prejudice exist in health care providers' conscious and subconscious thinking contributing to discriminatory behaviors in health care practice (Dehon et al., 2017). As reported by the 2012 National Healthcare Disparities, black patients received poorer health care service than white

patients for 40% of the quality and disparity measures (Dehon et al., 2017). For example, patients of color were 22% to 30% less likely to receive analgesic medication and 17% to 30% were less likely to receive narcotic analgesics (Dehon et al, 2017). Patients of color also had an increased chance of experiencing longer wait times and were less likely to be admitted to the hospital as compared to their white counterparts (Dehon et al, 2017).

In women of color, labor pain has been found to be interpreted differently by clinicians based on the perceptions of the individuals' culture, race, and ethnicity (Mathur et al., 2020). A study by Mathur et al., (2020) suggested that prior evidence has shown that clinicians show racial maternal bias in childbirth pain, contributing to the unequal distribution of pain management for women of color. According to Mathur et al., (2020), White American women were perceived to have experienced more significant labor pain than all women of color and Hispanic American women were perceived to experience less significant labor pain. The same study noted that women overall in the U.S. did report variations in pain sensitivity according to different races; however, African Americans reported greater pain sensitivity compared to both Hispanic and White women (Mathur et al., 2020).

During childbirth, women of color's opinion about their pain management were commonly not sought after, with the stigmatization of being uncooperative if they requested or declined the same treatment as white patients (Mathur et al., 2020). The lack of understanding and the inaccurate understanding of how labor affects women of all cultures can influence maternal racial bias resulting in the inequitable treatment of labor pain management (Mathur et al., 2020). Conversely, the dehumanization of women of color by clinicians who presumed that they experience less pain during childbirth also suggests the inequitable management of labor pain (Mathur et al., 2020). Conversely, the cultural super humanization of the African American woman as a "Strong Black Woman/Superwoman," who is resilient in the face of adversity, may lead to undermining labor pain and inappropriate health care treatment (Mathur et al., 2020, p. 8). This type of stereotyping can lead to decreased reasons to help women of color and a decline in the welfare of women during labor pain (Mathur et al., 2020). This same study found that socio-demographic and -geographic factors did not influence presumptive stereotypes, but rather stereotypical cultural constructs held by clinicians significantly influenced their application of pain management for women of color (Mathur et al., 2020).

Summary

Women of color, especially black or African American women, face more racial bias in health care delivery as compared to Caucasian women. The IOM found that clinicians stereotyping, and prejudicial behaviors have led to the inequitable distribution of health care delivery to women of color in the U.S. Women of color also experienced diminished health care delivery in hospital settings, especially those insured with Medicare and Medicaid, as some reported being met with hostile and dismissive attitudes from health care providers. The presumptive stereotypical constructs held by providers have also led to the bias and mismanagement of labor pain sensitivity for women of color. The mainframe of this stereotypical behavior from providers is the conventional conscious and subconscious biases, which infects and becomes relevant in the health care delivery system. The change needed for this type of behavior needs to start at the cognitive level, with health care providers being made aware of their prejudices and learning how to correct their behaviors.

Discussion

Despite the racial biases that plague health care delivery to women of color, there is extraordinarily little literature on direct interventions to improve health care delivery in the U.S. The social determinants of health constructs of race/ethnicity, socioeconomic status, and gender are stereotypically reinforced by both individuals and society, altering the psychosocial behaviors of how women of color are perceived individually, versus how they are stereotypically perceived socially (Okoro et al., 2020). Advocating for a social medicine curriculum that includes the social determinants of health in medical school education, may also afford health care providers with a more complete understanding of the social constructs surrounding the various minority populations they serve (Axelson et al., 2017). Incorporating the Social-Ecological Model in health care will help clinicians to better understand how the influential and overlapping complexities of each level can address and prevent racism in health care on a multilevel system (CDC, 2020b).

Further, literature and systematic reviews of cognitive-behavioral therapies on racial biases could be helpful to clinicians' psychological thinking in overcoming racial prejudices (Zeidan et al., 2018; Burgess et al., 2016; Burgess et al., 2007). Health care facilities could also incorporate cognitive-behavioral and mindful-based therapies that address behavioral biases towards systemic racism in health care delivery (Zeidan et al., 2018; Burgess et al., 2016). Implicit racial bias training programs should be introduced into health care settings to see if implicit racial bias does contribute to the reduction in the quality of care delivered to women of color (Zeidan et al., 2017). Tracking racial disparities in health care delivery at the government and non-profit levels, while at the same time addressing racial biases through structural competency, can help to access the inequalities in institutionalized social conditions that determine health-related resources (CDC, 2019; Metzl and Hansen, 2014).

References

- Axelson, D. J., Stull, M. J., & Coates, W.C. (2017). Social determinants of health: A missing link in emergency medicine training. AEM Education and Training A Global Journal of Emergency Care, (2)1, 66-68. https://doi.org/10.1002/aet2.10056
- Burgess, D., Beach, M., C. & Saha, S. (2016). Mindfulness practice: A promising approach to reducing the effects of clinician implicit bias on patients. *Patient Education and Counseling*. 100(2), 372-376. https://doiorg.proxy.lib.odu.edu/10.1016/j.pec.2016.09.005
- Burgess, D., van Ryn, M., Dovidio, J., & Saha, S. (2007). Reducing racial bias among health care providers: Lessons from social-cognitive psychology. *Journal of General Internal Medicine*, 22(6), 882–887. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11606-007-0160-1
- CASP. (2018). Critical Appraisal Skills Programme. https://casp-uk.net/

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2019a). *Maternal mortality*. https://www.cdc.gov/nchs/maternal-mortality/index.htm

- Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2019b). *Racial and ethnic disparities continue in pregnancy related deaths*. https://www.cdc.gov/media/releases/2019/p0905-racial-ethnicdisparities-pregnancy-deaths.html
- Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2020a). *Pregnancy mortality surveillance system*. https://www.cdc.gov/reproductivehealth/maternal-mortality/pregnancy-mortalitysurveillance-system.htm#trends

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2020b). *The Social-Ecological Model: A framework for prevention*. https://www.cdc.gov/violenceprevention/publichealthissue/ social-ecologicalmodel.html Cornelius, L. J., Smith, P. L., & Simpson, G. M. (2002). What factors hinder women of color from obtaining preventive health care? *American Journal of Public Health*, 92(4), 535– 539. https://doi.org/10.2105/ajph.92.4.535

Dehon, E., Weiss, N., Jones, J., Faulconer, W., Hinton, E., and Sterling, S. (2017). A systematic review of the impact of physician implicit racial bias on clinical decision making. *Journal* of the Society for Academic Emergency Medicine, 24(8), 895-904. https://doi.org/10.1111/acem.13214

- Gary, F., Still, C., Mickels, P., Hassan, M., & Evans, E. (2015). Muddling through the health system: Experiences of three groups of black women in three regions. *Journal of National Black Nurses' Association*. 26(1), 22–28.
- Lewis, K. H., Gudzune, K. A., Fischer, H., Yamamoto, A., & Young, D. R. (2016, December 1). Racial and ethnic minority patients report different weight-related care experiences than non-Hispanic Whites. *Preventive Medicine Report*, *4*, 296-302. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.pmedr.2016.06.015
- Maternal Health Task Force. (n.d.) *Maternal health in the United States*. https://www.mhtf.org/topics/maternal-health-in-the-united-states/
- Mathur, V. A., Morris, T., & McNamara, K. (2020). Cultural conceptions of women's labor pain and labor pain management: A mixed method analysis. *Social Science & Medicine*, 261. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.socscimed.2020.113240
- Metzl, J. M., & Hansen, H. (2014, September 20). Structural competency: theorizing a new medical engagement with stigma and inequality. *Social Science & Medicine (1982),103*, 126–133. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.socscimed.2013.06.032

- Moher, D., Liberati, A., Tetzlaff, J., & Altman, D. G. (2009, July 21). Preferred reporting items for systematic reviews and meta-analyses: The PRISMA statement. *Annals of Internal Medicine*, *151*(4), 264-269. https://doi.org/10.7326/0003- 4819-151-4-200908180-00135
- Okoro O. N., Hillman L.A., & Cernasev A. (2020, August 28). "We get double slammed!" Healthcare experiences of perceived discrimination among low-income African American women. *Women's Health*, 16, 1-12 https://doi.org/10.1177/1745506520953348
- Office of Disease Prevention and Health Promotion (ODPHP) (2014). Healthy people.gov: *Morbidity and mortality*. https://www.healthypeople.gov/2020/topicsobjectives/objective/mich-5
- Snyder, H. (2019, August 1). Literature review as a research methodology: An overview and guidelines. *Journal of Business Research*, 104, 333-339. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jbusres.2019.07.039
- Weech-Maldonado, R., Hall, A., Bryant, T., Jenkins, K. A., & Elliott, M. N. (2012). The relationship between perceived discrimination and patient experiences with health care. *Medical Care*, 50(9), S62–S68. https://doi.org/10.1097/MLR.0b013e31825fb235
- Zeidan, A. J., Khatri, U. G., Aysola, J., Shofer, F. S., Mamtani, M., Scott, K. R., Conlon, L. W., & Lopez, B. L. (2018). Implicit bias education and emergency medicine training: Step one? Awareness. *AEM Education and Training*, 3(1), 81–85. https://doi.org/10.1002/aet2.10124

Association Between Breastfeeding During Infancy and Obesity During Adolescence

Sharaf Alddin R, AlMathkoor R, Kostakis H, Albatineh A, Al-Taiar A, Akpinar-Elci M.

Healthcare Analytics and Delivery Science Institute, Eastern Virginia Medical School, Norfolk, VA, USA

Introduction

- The short-term benefits of breastfeeding for both mothers and their infants are now well-recognized beyond any doubt.
- Childhood obesity and its consequences represent a major public health problem. Globally, it has been estimated that 18% of children and adolescents aged 5-19 years old were either obese or overweight.
- While the short-term benefits of breastfeeding are well-recognized for infants and young children, there is currently a huge interest in whether breastfeeding also has long-term benefits beyond early childhood, such as during adolescence or adulthood.
- According to the Developmental Origin of Health and Disease (DOHaD), breastfeeding, as an early life exposure, has been proposed to play a role in reducing the risk of overweight/obesity throughout life.
- Several epidemiological studies have attempted to demonstrate the link between breastfeeding during infancy and the risk of obesity in adolescence or adulthood, but the findings remained inconclusive.

Purpose

This study almed to investigate the association between breastfeeding during infancy and overweight/obesity during adolescence.

Methods

- Study Site and Participants: This is a cross-sectional study in which data were collected on schoolgirls attending public and private high schools (age range; 14 22 years).
- Data Collection: Data were collected from schoolgirls by self-administered questionnaire.
- Mothers were considered the only source of information about history of breastfeeding. Data from mothers were collected through telephone interview using structured questionnaire.
- Body weight was measured to the nearest 0.1 kg using calibrated digital scales (Beurer QS 19) without shoes or heavy clothing.
- Height was measured to the nearest 0.1 cm using a stadiometer with full extended knees and shoes off,
- Statistical Methods:
- Body mass index (BMI) was calculated as weight in kg + height in meters.
- BMI-for-age z-scores were calculated using WHO growth charts. Overweight was defined as >1 SD to 52 SD & obesity > 2 SD using WHO growth reference median.
- BMI cut off points for adults was used for schoolgirls aged >18 years. (<18.5 kg/m2 underweight, 18.5-24.9 kg/m2 normal weight, 25.0-29.9 kg/m2 overweight, > 30.0 kg/m2 obese).
- Prevalence Ratio was calculated using Stata command "oddsrisk".
- Univariable and multivariable logistic regression was used to assess the association between obesity and breastfeeding during infacny while adjusting for potential confounders.

Results

• The sch	total number of schoolgirls included in this analysis was 775 oolgirl.	Table (1): Prevalence o by school type (public	of overweigh and private	nt or obesi +}	ity in 77	temale st	tudents		Table (3): Association bet practices during Infancy b	ween ow	erweight/obesity id after adjustin	/ during ad g for potent	al contor	e and feedic unders	ng
• The	i mean (SD) age was 16.7 (1.1) years.	RP Characteristics	Ratio		Private Institut	-	Table .	-			1210020-	-		100	
• The	prevalence of overweight and obesity was (23.6%) and (22.2%)		+ N	2	1.01		8.06	. 1	11000	-		1.00			
res	pectively. The prevalence was not significantly different between	1. Sec. 1.	- 82°°	1	-		100								
put	blic and private schools (p=0.925).	Bernal union	214	100		10.00	100	10.00	-			1.000	- 101		
The	diana	Durrowigin	tie	22.46	38	1000	140	2141	-			10.10-00			
FIL	laings	Base.	100	(22.55)	26	22101	172	an	V411-550 0000112						
-		final	290	72010	178	790.31	112	(tice)	termen berg ettert tonet.						-
		Table (2): Factors	associate	d with o	verwel	ahtiobes	ity.	-							
· wh	ether the schoolgin was ever breastled or not showed no	among 775 adole	acant fam	alas in u	mhraria	de anali	ein l		the second second	- 53	5.55				
895	ociation with overweight/obesity: crude PR=1.32 (95%-CI: 0.81 -	among the addre	scentient	are s in a	in the second	one annany						0.15			1.1
	control that or a margine bound ; a base i the post of the r	20		inge	the set			-							
1.7	4], (P=0.214) and adjusted PR=1.07 [95%CI: 0.52 - 1.65], (P=0.813).	the second state	1.000	-		- posts		* 3							
E.		and Berrystrong provintion						-						and and real.	
 Type 	e of breastfeeding (exclusive, mixed, no breastfeeding) during	age to past.							1						1.2
1.00		10.17		8 13	-	10.20-110		-	And an other states of the state of the						
inta	ency was not significantly associated with overweight/obesity in		- 26	100	(24)	and the state									144
hot	th univariable (P=0 293) and multivariable analysis (P=0 589)	BUT LAWYS		10.1	**			1m. 3	1.1.00						
200	In entry an any an	the state of the second			296.000	101.00-100						B (B			1.1
1000		interest Agence Party of Strengther						-	and an in the part of the second						-
• The	ire was no significant association between duration of breastfeeding	Longers & Book	10	0.000	10.7	1 Powerse		100 10							
	overweight/obesity whether it was fitted as a continuous or a	The summer sale street.				10 24-10		-	-	1.1	0.000	10.00-00			
-	overweigneebeard, miteuter it was inten as a continuous of a	territy warrant or manipulate school	1.00	김 영화	(8.21	15.28-08									
cat	eporical variable as (\$4 compared to \$4 months of life) and also as	and the Dense shackers	r	0.053		18.22-191			an opening a set of a set of						
-		Training and party	-		10.00	- Personal	1		18-11-1 g.			10 10		17.10.10	1.1
(≦€	compared to >6 months) and conducted separate analyses.	Land Street		5 20	10.00	18 00-18			4-11		4.90				
		Bulan of unions initiation into													
		100 - 1 200m		8 S	0.8	10-101-100	8 8		Parameter and the set of the set						-
 Wit 	nether the participant was formula fed or not was not significantly	the subscription of the su		1 (#1	1996	10,02-102			the state of the s						- C
		The substitutes													
ass	ociated with overweight/obesity; crude PR:0.89 [95%CI: 0.64 - 1.15],	the distance where	-	100	10.00	- (100000)	8 - H	110 1							
1		These particular Phile			**	an pa-int									
(P=	0.410) and adjusted PR: 1.06 [95%/CI: 0.70 - 1.43], (P=0.758).	title g 2 march (model)		44.1		1 (Married)	. 1	100 3							
		The state of the state		ic saits		sacjula og		. 8							
· The	ere was no significant association between the age at which formula	Inter a 7 training out		:10.7	4.4	7 (99)(66)	· 8								
1		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	- 44	- 44	-	18 (19-14)		1							
mil	k feeding was initiated whether fitted as a continuous or a	and a prime prove		20	478	- THINKS	5 - 64								
eat	enorical variable (< 4 vs. > 4 months of life)	- 1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (14.48	10.24-14	-	-							
Lat	Station commune (2 4 12, 7 4 monetal of mic).														

Conclusions

In conclusion, we found no significant association between breastfeeding or breastfeeding duration during infancy and overweight/obesity during adolescence. Breastfeeding has other indisputable benefits for mothers and children and should be encouraged whether or not it is associated with obesity later at life. Further longitudinal studies that collect data on breastfeeding and other feeding practices prospectively from birth until adolescence are needed to elucidate the long-term benefits of breastfeeding in terms of obesity during adolescence. Such studies should collect data on potential confor such as genetic and epigenetic factors in addition to repeatedly monitor diet over the whole study period

Association Between Meal Program Participation and Protein Intake in US Adults 65 and Older: A Cross-Sectional Analysis of the NHANES 2013-2018

Sarah V. Collins, MPH, RDN, CHES, Robert A. Blanco, MPH, and Anika L. Hines, PhD, MPH Virginia Commonwealth University School of Medicine

MAIN FINDINGS

- There was no significant difference in protein intake by meal program participation.
- Race may play a role in protein intake among individuals 65 years and older.
- Non-Hispanic Blacks experienced a two-day average 8.82 grams lower than their white counterparts [SE:1.48; p<.0001], even when gender, income, age, and marital status were controlled.
- Hispanic/Latinos' two-day protein average was 4.29 grams lower [SE:2.05; p=0.0426].

CONCLUSIONS

- Cross-sectional, complete case analysis design limits ability to make causal judgements or recommendations.
- Our research suggests that public health professionals should aim for more complete collection of food frequency information, especially protein sources, during health assessments.
- This may be especially important for individuals 65 and older from underrepresented minority groups.

Estimated Regression Coefficients Parameter	2 Day Mean Protein Intake in grams (standard error)	Pr> t		
Intercept	94.43 (2.67)	<0001		
Site and Delivery	-2.87 (4.59)	0.5357		
Only Site Meals	-1.99 (2.13)	0.3566		
Only Delivery Meals	-2.15 (4.53)	0.6376		
Neither	reference			
80+	-11.27 (2.1)***	<.0001		
75 to 79	-6.8 (2.58)*	0.0115		
70 to 74	-5.93 (2.16)**	0.0085		
65 to 69	reference	- 84		
Other	1.93 (3.44)	0.5779		
Hispanic/Latino	-4.29 (2.05)	0.0426		
Non-Hispanic Black	-8.82 (1.48)***	<.8001		
Non-Hispanic Asian	0.98 (2.66)	0.7146		
Non-Hispanic White	reference			
Under \$20,000	-8.44 (2.47)*	0.0014		
\$20,000 to \$44,999	-7.37 (1.8)***	0.0002		
\$45,000 to \$74,999	-3.91 (2.08)	0.0661		
\$75,000+	reference			
No Partner	1 (1.62)	0.5411		
With Partner	reference	122723		
Female	-19.29 (1.31)***	<.0001		
Male	reference	1.1		

Boldface indicates statistical significance ("p<0.05, ""p<0.01, ""p<0.001)

REFERENCES & ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

All references available upon request. Thanks to Peter Conningham, PhD and Juan Lu, MD, PhD, MPH for contributing to the creation of this research question and for valuable discussion and feedback.



- Protein calorie malnutrition (PCM) is a significant problem affecting up to one-third of adults aged 65 years or older.
- Up to 3% of adult inpatients experience PCM, which accounts for 12% of aggregate hospital costs.
- Despite the impact of malnutrition on hospital costs, little research has been done to examine protein intake among older adults who participate in meal programs.
- We used data from the National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (NHANES) to analyze the pattern of protein intake among individuals aged 65 and older who provided an answer regarding their utilization of home-delivered meals or congregate site-accessed meals.

PURPOSE

 The purpose of this research is to provide a better understanding of the relationship between meal program participation and protein intake.

METHODS

The analyses in this study:

- ntilized cross-sectional data on 2,845 individuals aged 265 years ald who participated in the NHANES during 2013-2018 and provided data for two days of protein intake and at least one question assessing program utilization.
- examined relationships between meal participation and covariates (sex, race, marital status, income, and age) on protein intake using multiple linear regression in SAS, Version 9.4 for Windows.

protein_aug= $\beta_0 + \beta_1$ program $_1 + \beta_2$ race $_2 + \beta_3$ income $_3 + \beta_4$ marited $_4 + \beta_5$ set $_5 + a$

RESULTS

- Protein intake did not differ significantly between individuals who participated in meal programs and those who did not.
- Race, income, age, and gender were significantly associated with decreased protein in take.
- Bivariate analyses significant difference in complete two-day protein data by race (p<.0001).




Examining Motor Outcomes of Infants in Three Virginia Regions

Michaela Schrever, MS31, Lisa Letzkus, PhD, RN, CPNP-AC2, & Katheryn Frazier, MD2

UVA Health SCHOOL OF MEDICINE



BACKGROUND

- ♦ In 2018, 1 in every 10 babies was born premature (<38 weeks gestation)1.
- ♦ Six to 25% of premature babies with low-birth-weight. (<2500 grams) develop major neurodevelopment impairment, the most common being cerebral palsy: "a disorder of motor development attributed to nonprogressive disturbances occurring in the developing fetal/infant brain" 15.
- The Hammersmith Infant Neurological Examination (HINE), in combination with other assessments/CNS imaging, allows physicians to identify children with persistent motor differences and diagnose cerebral palsy at younger ages than historically detected?.
- The HINE physical exam measures 34 items (total of 78) points) to assess tone, motor patients, spontaneous movements, reflexes, cranial nerve function, and behavior, and can be used for children aged 2-24 months to predict motor outcomes 1.
- UVA Children's has a Level 4 Neonatal Intensive Care Unit with an extensive multi-disciplinary NCU developmental follow-up clinic. UVA Children's serves patients across the state of Virginia, especially from the Piedmont, Shenandoah Valley, and Southside Regions.

OBJECTIVE

The aim of this project is to determine if region of residence predicts HINE scores of infants in the UVA NICU follow-up dinic.



Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development[®]

Fear, Frustration, and Fatalism: The Association Between Cancer Beliefs and Colorectal Cancer Screening Compliance in Virginia Monique Rajbhandari, MPH Candidate

University of Virginia School of Medicine

BACKGROUND

- · Colorectal cancer (CRC) is the second leading cause of cancer-related deaths among men and women in the United States.¹ In Virginia, CRC is the third leading cancer in incidence rates and mortality rates among men and women.²
- + CRC screening is recommended to begin at age 50-the preferred modality for screening is. a colonoscopy performed every 10 years.¹
- · Despite recent increases in screenings, many age-eligible adults remain unscreened and rates remain below the state's goals of an 80% CRC screening rate
- · Past studies have drawn correlations between certain negative cancer beliefs/barriers to access and screening compliance.
- · Knowledge, attitudes, concerns, and perceptions about CRC and CRC screenings contribute to decision-making on screening compliance and adherence



OBJECTIVES

No Virginia-specific studies have been conducted to assess cancer beliefs/barriers with screening compliance

This study aims to measure CRC screening compliance assessed by several, specific cancer beliefs and behaviors among Virginians: perceived causes of cancer, perceptions on cancer prevention, cancer fatalism, and frustration experienced when informationseeking.

METHODS

- · Cross-sectional design: 2020 University of Virginia and Virginia Commonwealth University Cancer Center Catchment Area survey data
- · Awarded by the National Cancer Institute in which each center surveyed populations in its catchment area using Health Information National Trends Survey (HINTS) questions to generate state-wide estimates of cancer beliefs and behaviors
- · Collect estimates for the state of Virginia to guide health policy decisions, as HINTS is only available at the regional level





Variables used:

- Self-reported up-to-date colonoscopies ("Is your colonoscopy up to date?") o Questions on several cancer beliefs.
- experiences, and perceptions Demographic data
- Independent variables were derived from agreement/disagreement with the following statements
 - "Everything causes cancer"
 - "There is not much you can do to lower your chances of getting cancer
 - "You felt frustrated during your search for information
 - o *When I think about cancer, I automatically think about death"

RESULTS Bivariate analysis showed lower rates of upto-date colonoscopies among the those who agreed with the following statements:

Teble 7. Population Estimates of Lip-to-Dete Colonomopies by

"When I think about cancer, I automatically think about death"	Colonoscopy Up-to-Date	Colonescupy Nat Up-to-Date
Apro	52.09%	47.91%
Disagree	58.15%	41.85%

Table 2. Population Editivates of Up-to-Date Colonsacopies by

Causes causes	Colonoscopy Up-to-Date	Colonoscopy Net Up-to-Date
Agree	48.35%	51.65% (48.09% - 85.21%)
Disegree	62.52%	37.48%

Table 3: Population Estimates of Op-to-Date Colonoscopies by Agreement with "Twine in Rev Mach Hau Eas De to Lawer Your Chances of Getting Concert" $(g^2(\tau)$ = 3.98, ρ = 0.04)

"There is not much you can do to lower your chances of pstilling cancer"	Colenoscopy Up-to-Oute	Golanoscopy Not Up-to-Oste	
Agree	49.82%	55.64% (H 30% (15.9%)	
Disagree	56.39% 101.01 - 89.7%	43.61% (#27%-44.0%)	

- · A slight lower prevalence for up-to-date colonoscopies was also observed among those who agreed with the statement "you felt frustrated during your search for information", but the difference was not significant ($(\chi^2(1) = .46, p = 0.50)$
- Controlling for sex: across all four independent variables, men had a higher prevalence of up-to-date colonoscopies than women. In almost all cases, the majority of men had updated colonoscopies despite acreement with the statements.

DISCUSSION

· Lower prevalence rates of up-to-date CRC screenings among respondents who expressed more fatalistic or negative beliefs about cancer and prevention

· Stratified by sex:

- · Men showed higher rates of up-to-date CRC screenings than women
- · A majority of men had updated screenings despite agreeing with fatalistic/negative cancer statements. where as a majority of women did not.

These findings highlight the need for interventions, policy, and emphasized provider input on addressing patient's fears, misconceptions, and increasing access to relevant cancer information in order to increase CRC screening compliance among populations in Virginia

Addressing sex differences in CRC screening compliance in targeting these interventions is necessary given the similar prevalence rates of CRC among women and men in Virginia.

LIMITATIONS

- · Given the limited scope of this study, other social determinants of health such as race. rurality, and socioeconomic status were not addressed, but should be assessed in future studies
- NoVa sample not large enough given region size, not covered by UVA or VCB cancer centers
- · Only assesses one type of CRC screening (colonoscopy)

Acknowledgements

· Faculty advisor: Rajesh Balkrishnan, PhD · This work was funded by the National Cancer Institute through grant P30CA044579-2785

American Cancer Society, 2021 Virginia Department of Health, 2018 ⁹Cancer Action Coefficer of Veginia, 2018



Maternal perceptions of the child's weight in relation to the actual body weight of preschool children: Missed opportunity for health promotion

Sharaf Alddin R, Algaoud N, Akpinar-Elci M, Al-Taiar A. Healthcare Analytics and Delivery Science Institute, Eastern Virginia Medical School, Norfolk, VA, USA.

Introduction

Purpose

This study aimed to assess maternal

perceptions of the weight status of

preschool children and link it to the

actual objectively measured body

weight using data from Kuwait

Nutritional Surveillance System

(KNSS), which is funded by the

government to provide nationwide

status on all age groups over time

information on the trends of nutritional

- · Childhood obesity is one of the most important public health issues globally.
- Habitual food consumption and physical activity are key modifiable factors to mitigate obesity. While schoolchildren may have independence in selecting the food they consume or the amount of exercise, mothers shape these habits. completely in preschool children, which highlight the potential of modifying maternal perceptions of the child weight status in preschool children.
- · Previous Studies, that have attempted to link maternal perceptions of child weight and subsequent weight gain, have shown controversial findings. However those studies were on schoolchildren, the age at which mothers have no much control of their children's diet or physical activity.

Methods

Study Site and Participants:

We used data collected by Kuwait Nutritional Surveillance System (KNSS) preschool children from primary healthcare centers when attending for vaccination from 2015 to 2019.

Data Collection

- · The weight of preschool children was measured by a digital scale to the nearest 100 pm. While the Height was measured to the nearest 0.1 cm using a height scale
- Mother's perception of their child's weight status was assessed by personal Interview using the following guestion "Do you think the weight of your child for his/her age is normal weight, above the normal weight, or below the normal weight?" with the options "Normal for his/her age", "Above the normal for his/her age", "Below the normal for his/her age" or "I don't know",

Statistical Methods

- BMI-for-age z-scores were calculated using STATA "zanthro" package.
- We defined obesity as BMI z-score 2+3.00 SD and overweight as BMI z-score ≥+2.00 SD but < 3.00 SD.

Results

- This atudy included 5,188 preschool shildren (2 to leas than 5 years) from 2015 2019 of whom 2,812 (51.57%) were males and 2554 (48.43%) were females.
- The mean (SD) age was 3.14 (0.84) years.
- The prevalence of overweight/obesity among the study group was 9.65%.
- Forty-eight children were excluded. Therefore, this analysis comprised 5119 preschool children of whom. 4624 (90.33%) were normal weight,163 (3.18%) and 332 (6.48%) were obese and overweight respectively.

Findings

- Of 4,624 mothers with a normal weight child, 1,350 (29.20%) perceived the weight of their child as below the normal weight.
- Of 163 mothers with obese child, 79 (48,47%) thought their child was normal weight and another 16 (9.82%) thought their child is underweight.
- Of 332 mothers with overweight child, 220 (66.27%) and 39 (11.75%) perceived their child as normal weight or underweight respectively
- Maternal perceptions of the weight status were not significantly different between boys and girls children among obese (p=0.554), overweight (p=0.414), or normal weight (p=0.103) children

Figure (1): Maternal perceptions of the shift weight status or weight among 5119 preschool (2-5 years old) children



ILlower than normal weight for age # Don't know

Conclusions

Mothers generally underestimate the weight status of their preschool children in particular mothers with normal weight children. In fact, from every 10 mothers with normal weight child, 3 perceived their child as underweight, which may motivate mothers to overfeed their children. Because most of children at this age are normal weight, this likely to have great potential to increase childhood obesity. This highlights the importance of correcting mothers' misperceptions of their child's weight to combat childhood obesity. Every primary healthcare encounter including for vaccination is an opportunity to reassure mothers of normal weight children about their child weight.

University of Lynchburg

Sexual function and Exercise in Perimenopausal and Postmenopausal women

Dhrumi Shah, MPH, Brooke Bouza, PhD

Results



Department of Health Promotion and Public Health, University of Lynchburg, Lynchburg, VA

Introduction

- . Women are living nearly 1/2 of their total lives post-menopause
- Menopause is marked by physiological and
- psychological changes including sexual dysfunction a Sexual function includes desire, arousal, frequency, satisfaction and orgasm without any pain or discomfort-
- · It is a public health initiative to improve health during menopausal years.
- Healthy People 2020 included 5 objectives for improving the health of this population
- · Pharmaceutical options for treating sexual dysfunction are limited for postmenopasual women-
- · Exercise is safe to perform during menopause and can help ease sexual dysfunction

Purpose

To summarize the current literature on exercise and sexual function in perimenopausal and postmenopausal women and provide recommendations for future research on this topic.

Methods

- Search engines used to find relevant published
- research articles:
- PubMed EBSCOhost
- Google Scholar.
- The following search terms were used:
- (menopause, menopausal, postmenopausal, climacteric}
- a {exercise, physical activity, fitness, aerobic training, yoga, strength training, cardiovascular training)
- = {sexual function, sexual dysfunction, sexual wellbeing, sexual problems, sexual health, sexual difficulties, sexual satisfaction}

Exclusion criteria

- · Published before 1999 (n=5)
- · Focused on pelvic floor muscle exercises (n=4)
- · Analyses did not differentiate between males and females (n=1)
- · Participants were women who were surgically induced or medically induced into menopause (n=7)

Construct	Association with exercise/PA
Urogenital symptoms of	Two positive association in observational studies.
menopause.	
	Two positive association in experimental studies.
Sexual symptoms of	No study found association in observational studies
menopause	ousei vauonai siuules.
100-100 (Constant)	Three experimental studies
	reported positively associations.
Vaginal	Two studies found positive
lubrication	association.
Pain/dyspareunia	One positive relationship.
	One found no association.
Sexual satisfaction	Three studies showed positive association.
	Three studies showed no
	association.
Orgasm	Two studies found positive association.
	One study found no association.
Sexual desire	Two studies positively associated.
	One study found no association.
Frequency	One study positively associated.

Discussion: Orgasm and Vaginal Lubrication

- Because exercise improves cardiovascular health, it may
- contribute to increased genital blood flows
- Blood flow to the vasculature of the clitoris and vagina is often needed to achieve an orgasm.³
- When blood diverts to the vagina, it causes a transudate of plasma into the vagina, which contributes to lubrication.
- vagina may result in greater lubrication.

Discussion: Sexual Desire and Frequency

- Exercising immediately before sexual activity increased sexual desire more than not exercising before sexual activity.a
- Basson's model of human sexual response poses that desire is only one aspect of what motivates a woman to engage in sexual activity.
- Other reasons are emotional intimacy or closeness
 - Sexual activity can be dyadic or solitary.
 - Dyadic sexual activity is dependent on a partner's sexual desire
 - Work or family responsibilities, may impede a person's opportunities to engage in sexual activity irrespective of having the desire to do so.

Conclusion

- The results may not be generalizable to all menopausal women.
- Exercise/PA most helpful to for urogenital symptoms and vaginal lubrication
- It could also improve sexual desire, sexual satisfaction, orgasm, sexual symptoms of menopause.
- ė. Sexual pain may not be improved from a exercise program, data is limited.
- There is not enough research to develop specific exercise prescriptions to improve their sexual function.
- · Yoga is the only form of exercise that has been replicated to improve sexual dysfunction
- Exercise can safely to added to most treatment plans for menopause-induced sexual dysfunctions as long there are no medical concerns.

Citations

- Bern Lib and out & COVE. Find out to 2010.
- Marcin, K. K., & Backward, K. (2010). Engineeric and invariant second acquired second significant in the Project. J. Materials, R. (2010). J. (2010). Engineeric and Evolution of Neurolan Acquired Second Sec
- A Assessed Coopper Direct Materia, Nameson, N.H. Jamier, N.F. & Passado, I. & Harr, 2010, 20201 p. and president (Mirel, Epstein) Million, 6 (Mire).
- Practicencia N. J. & States, H. R. (2000). History Institute 400, 409-415.
- Restau C.C. Better, B. Berley, E. Statut, D. Grannige, J. strat. B., & Hull, H. (1998). The Federation Transition of the Family deletion. The Journal of Dataset Restau Rest. 701, 1010–1010. [pp. 1010.010]. Constant A. L. Steppi, V. K. Annes, A. B., Farles, R. A. Carles, E. B. Stein, J. L. Sarre, J. R. Jan, P. Allano, K. K. (2000). Disk of related to a stepping block and constrained and stepping and stepping and stepping dynamics in stepping spectra dig. In Internet: 1927, 1974. Vol. 94 (2019) 1974 (2019) 1974 (2019).
- Loons, K. J. (2006). For the south spin of suggest internation. Based one manufacture signal field hash back contractions.
- Lawren A. & Menter, C. M. (2014). Discovery one: Phys. Rev. 64.
- W. Annue & passi former former of

Thus, the ability to effectively divert blood flow to the



Support and Depression Amongst Black Men



Francesca Whitfield University of Virginia MPH Program

Background

- Depression affects individuals from all different socioeconomic statuses, ethnicities, and cultures
- Intersectionality of ideology, culture, and institutionalization promotes gender socialization, racism, and systematic oppression, defining barriers that hinder positive mental health outcomes
- Theoretical applications of syndemics, social cognition, and social support provide evidence of taboo in mental health communication, education, and literacy in the Black community

Methods

- Cross-sectional study design
- Target population: African American males aged 18 40 years old
- Population estimates calculated using survey responses of mental health and social support categories from the 2016 - 2019 Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System



Results

- Reported responses show that 44.0% (40.3% 47.7%) of African American men experienced poor mental health
- No reported responses of social support from the BRFSS survey

Discussion

- African American men experience some form of mental health, but there is no comparative category to determine the degree
- Absence of responses to the social support categories can be indicative that data collection stopped short of receiving those responses, or the respondents did not want to respond and failed to document
- BRFSS should create a method that would encourage responses from African American men for the social support categories

Limitations

- Only included African American men who were not incarcerated or homeless
- Required that the respondent identify as male, but this is not exclusive to birth assignment

References

Watkins, D. C., & Neighbors, H. W. (2007). An initial exploration of what 'mental health' means to young black men. Journal of Men's Health and Gender, 4(3), 271-282.



The Impact of Military Base Presence on Tobacco Retailer Density in Texas

Jeannie Taylor, MPH Candidate Spring 2021



Tobacco Retailer Density Around Military Bases

- The results show no statistically significant relationship between the density of tobacco retailers within 0.5 miles and the presence of a
- military base. RUCC appeared to be a significant predictor of tobacco retailer density, which is expected as more populated invest have higher RUCC values and than would likely have more retailers to meet the demands of a larger population.

Conclusions

successions While the results do not show a statistically significant relationship hetween the density of solucco realities and the presence of a military base, this is an important factor for the Department of Defense to consider in efficient to reduce tobacco use in the military

Future Studies

- Future studies are needed to study the density of retailors driving distances of military bases as opposed to the 0.5-mile walking distance used in this study. • Bases in the other states of the U.S. should be studied to provide a
- generalizable result for this relationship.

Continuation of project.

- This project will be continued through May 2021 in the UVa MPH program
- · Further data analysis, visualization, and quality improvements will he made and written into a formal paper.

Literature & Limitations

- Limited data on current tobacco retailers on basen because they are exempt from tobacco taxes thus excluded from the registry of licensed tobacco retailers for the state of TX.
- Limited data the demographic characteristics of bases and control census trach
 Education data came from Amarican Community Survey
 - 3019
 - Propulation density came from AreGIS Hub layer of US population density at the trust level in 2012
 BUCCs were obtained from the courty level using data
- from 2013 published by the USDA The radius around census tracts was set to 0.5-miles at this was considered the maximum reasonable walking distance. However, it may not be valid to assume people walk to the nearest tobacco retailer. Inclusion of a wider radius with reasonable driving distances may provide additional insight on this relationship.
- · Limited data on e-eigarenes and tobacco products sold online to military members and control census tracis.

Acknowledgements Special thanks to Dr. Kristen Wells, the MPH finality advisor for this project. Thomas Strift for sharing his separates, and Dr. Meliwa Little and Dr. Ammda Keng for their guidance and support.

addresses methods and add, its land added in the second second from the second



Undergraduate Food Insecurity at a Private Liberal Arts College

Roanoke College, Salem, Virginia

- Introduction The USDA defines fined lecurity as "Inning enough food for an active, healthy life at all times Food rescurity must home is 11.81 Food rescurity must discover a students students is 44%

- Objectives + The objective of this study was to determine when of food inequility on Roanolee Collegels campus and to compare characteristics of food inequility before and after the COVID-
- Institutely before and after the CO 19 permitting Additionally, this study seeks to determine best practices for implementation of an assistance program for students experiencing food insecurity.

Methods

- needs assessment survey was eveloped in Fall 2019 following a
- n review Rem tool was distributed via os to 925 students and 204 nor staff members following asked questions

- sculp staff members be initial survey asked questions bout food related behaviors and acrossmographic mitamation 22 responses were received, a second survey was administered to make subgroups in Fall 2000 gam. 926 stadents and 204 staff remains were sent surveys his 14-item tool included two dictional questions about COVID-19 he responde rate was 14.1%

- Sample Survey Questions
 Survey 1 (Fall 2019)
 In the last 12 months, while there days that you did not
 ant balanced mesh because of Immicial concerns?
 In the last 12 months, did you even skip meshs or out
 the size of your meshs because there wasn't enough
 money for food?
 If you were to use a food particly of free result wopes in
 the damp hal?
 Survey 2 (Fall 2020)
 Identical to the first survey, but added two CCVVID-19:
 specific question:
 Hay the COVID-19 particlemic changed you or your
 temby's soling to official addent to use a food
 mesh?
 Do you first an blocch you an more likely to use a food
 mesh?



- Results
 39.2% of Fall 2019 surveyed Roanoke College Students reported eating unbelanced or unheeldby meals because of francial concerns (Figure 1),
 30.2% reported cutting the size of their meals becaus of financial concerns (Figure 1).
 Juniors and samors ware most likely to be impacted (58.8% and 46.2%, respectively).
 79.9% of food insecure respondents in Fall 2019 suported that they would prefer her meal wriges over protect that they would prefer her meal wriges over any available. reported that they would prefer have meal swipes over a food parity on campus, with similar results in Fall
- 2020 (Figure 2). In Fall 2020, 15% of studerns indicated that ther family's ability to pay for food had changed 29.5% of respondents and they would be more likely to seek food assistance new than before the CDVID-19 associations.



College in Salem, VA.

Discussion

- Food insecurity at small, private whoch is frequently overlacked.
 Trics research shows that there is a need on Roanoke College's campus that is not being met.
 29.5% of assidents indicated that they were more likely to use a food exidence program now that before the pandemic, indicating a new and urgent need.
- segent need. Students greatly prefer moal swipes to a Yourd partry (79.9% to 20.2%), tholy because of reduced stigma and the append of the camput community found in damp halls.

Recommendations

The concerns raised by this research show a clear need for intervention. Based on our findings, it is recommended that Roanoka College implement a meal wepe collective Le-Meak for Mancerol to reduce the prevalence of food insecurity among its students.

- taaroos College, Salero, SA Smith futbouille sait martoke edu

74

101

Maroons



Understanding undergraduate students' face mask use through the lens of the Theory of Planned Behavior

Ren Mengci, RN, MPH Candidate; Adam Moore, MS, MPH Candidate & Brooke Bouza, PhD Department of Health Promotion and Public Health, University of Lynchburg, Lynchburg, VA

Introduction

- Early March 2020, WHO had declared the COVID-19 pandemic world widely.
- CDC recommends social distancing and mask-wearing to slow the spread of the virus
- Students at the University of Lynchburg are required to wear masks and keep social distancing while on campus.
- There are some difficulties in maintaining the mask-wearing behavior, issues of proper education, and ideological differences arose.

Purpose

To understand student's feelings about mask-wearing through the lens of the Theory of Planned Behavior.

Methods

- · An online survey of the University of Lynchburg students was employed
- · The survey questions were limited only to students 18-25 years of age.
- Survey questions were purposefully designed using the Theory of Planned Behavior to ascertain students' perspective on maskwearing
- Data were analyzed using SPSS V. 27



Results – Theory of Planned Behavior

Attitudes Toward the Behavior







Results - Demographics

- A total of 144 survey responses were included in the analysis
- 95.1% reported they always and almost always wear a face mask
- 73.6% women, 22.9% men . 81.3% White, 5.6% Black, 13.1%
- other races 32.6% seniors, who had the highest
- participation rate 74.3% participants live on campus,
- 25.7% participants live off campus

Conclusion

- Subjective norms and control beliefs are conducive to mask-wearing
- Behavioral beliefs could be improved upon to increase mask wearing in this population
- It is important to note, that TBP can be used to better understand feeling about face mask, but should not be used to predict mask-wearing since it is mandated and therefore not strictly under volitional control

Citations

- Chu, D. K., Alu, E. A., Duda, B., Solo, K., Yaacoulo, S., Schummenn, H. J. (2020). Physical distancing, face masks, and eye protection to prevent person-to-person transmission of SARS-CoV-2 and COVID-19. A systematic review and meta-analysis. The Lacoot, 355(10242), 1973-1987. doi:10.1016/s0140. 5739(20)31142-9
- -11-march-2020. -11:mintri-solutio 3.2hang Y. Z. Holmes, E.C. 2020. A genomic perspective on the anger and emergence of SARS-CoV-2. Cell 181 (2), 223– 227 https://doi.org/10.1016j.cell.2020.03.035

•

University

Lynchburg



Variations in Obesity Across the Lifespan: Why Zip Code Matters in the Roanoke Valley



Bryn Haden, Dr. Adam Childers, & Dr. Liz Ackley Center for Community Health Innovation · Roanoke College, Salem VA

Background

- Due to the indust methodial in a reson motion of the Parene Protection and hillordoble Care. Are, margued's bospitalis are impaired to complete a Groomarity Health Node, Nassanner 2018; Al every three parely and the influence of "place" no-health or begins to energy from this data. Receively authors have found disputition in addit releases hereaven any redsky, and artificiale this to Allermones in access methods the benefits tasky beath and second concernence status? While this endergoarding is important for improving population health, is is fasting because CHNAs fisces while on the adult population.
- To fully understand of the areport of place on Arabh, it is important to report moradiance characteristic and age proper Shoritore, and intending the impair, of "place" on youth provide upportunities for metamatizes to develop place-based strategies to prover poor height encourses in youth which is important for finite height encourses.

Purpose

The sits of this study was to equival our current anderstanding of the reflective of "plan" on weight attack in the Roasside Valley by sophisting the inhammality between up toole and obserint concorners in portfit.

Methodology

- In a prior analysis, bitwortal logistic regression was applied to the 2013 Reasolie Valley CLDSA* to applies the radiationing between zip code and alark obesity across the rity of Rearchic Using top radia 24013 or the enteriors up to dod, the likelihood of obesity arrang adults use found as to bestore in 24001 (20%) and highest in 24012 (31%), 24017 (40%), and 24013 (21%) core Table 1).
- To explore the relationship forman up code and observe in searth, data was derived from the 2017 Romatic Valley Commenty Healthy Leng Index (RVCHLP, The RVCHLF is a yarily stryards surveillance system that some direct insections of RME for age to implicit the additionable between eight regression was used to regime the minimular burster and yards observe surveillance surveillance and health continues in minimular burster and yards observe surveillance and the strategies the minimular burster in product and yards observe surveillance and these trainings was compared to thereto observed in the 2015 Romatic Valley CDNA⁴ to look for partners in sequent strate, strate of ender. patterns in weight status across ap ender-



dgeneer: This study was supported by the Corner for Community Studdi Innovation at Reasolar College

- ditension J., Stoh, D., Leng, C. J., Elligaro, J. J., & Kayam, V. (2015). The party Six for participating Ava. Afficientity: Care: Ann. and Linux? Houlds: Hoperturner: Accordination-granitomic influencing enclastancies parametry in sourcements that assessments and responsesses injuncting? Assess Public Health Interaction and Province 2013. (2017). Enteroint frees.
- Brunnmerick, A., Robert, C. D., & Nolex, B. (2007). Departities in disably more analysis by ZBP code area. Social Science of Medicine, 60(2): 2109-240. Retrieved Does
- 1. Natilian, Sterns (2007), The Remarks Volley Community Hould: Nonle Assessment Dip Code Analysis.
- Chaptelinizat Monter Bouly
 Ackley, T., Dell, & Doller, H. (2019). The 2019 Research Maley Community Healthy Living Index. High's Name and Proceeding Sciences. It Rolling: Interpretation and Proceeding Sciences. In Proc. Name 2019; Neurophysical and Proc. 2019; Neurophysical Sciences (Neurophysical Sciences).
 Shan in the workplast status of Kin 2014 Journal on (Poly Marc Index (1904) (Sciences), apr. 19-17 (2014).
 Shan in the workplast status of Kin 2014 Journal on (Poly Marc Index (1904) (Sciences), apr. 19-17 (2014).

	Adult Obesity (2015 CEENA)			Child Obesity (2012 REVCHLA)		
Zip Cinte	30	Oberity Prevalence	Adj. Oads (99% (3) compared to 24103	0.1	Obeny Prealines	Adı Olda (99% C) companit to 24103
24012	170	52%	0.95 (0.47, 1.94)	170	31%	0.96 (0.45, 2.05)
	156	43%	and the second second	79	3254	
24014	125	35%	0.60 (0.27, 1.33)	92	12%	0.29 (0.30, 0.83)
24015	123	29%	0.76 (0.36, 1.62)	139	15%	0.38 (0.16, 0.91)
	146	38%	0.85 (0.39, 1.81)	.51	29%	0.90 (0.35, 0.46)
24017	248	481%	1.13 (0.55, 2.32)	148	25%	0.72 (0.33, 1.59)
		32%	ा सन्द	-	25%	
		1999			1996	

"All odds ratio comparisons are made to sip unde 24003 for consistency with the 2015 Roscola Valley CHNA"

Figure 2: Zip codes with howe likelihood of adult and child

Figure & Zip codes with highest Relifiered of adult and child



Results

Lapine regiminin indicated that site code does capital observe prevalence in roots. Compared in other site order, intersty Woldbood in rooth was been to 30101 (2025) and 30100 (15%), and Jugture in 24013 (12%) and 26012 (315); our Table ().

· the failure are the out with the 2015 Rounds Valley CHNA The Code Car many an insulation with the 2015 building only CHAN (apply our hardpair which found that adding and 2004) or 2015 Indiversal Backhood and these residing in 24052, 2005, or 24003 had hereand obsery likelihood.

Conclusions

- Whit stip only explained little variance in abilit and ethel obcomy, containing in place linear parameters were related. Across Boarooke eisy, zip codes, serior than half demonstrate abilit obcomy providence error and run 1.5 times the once across for obcomy advances

- providence rates from that 1.5 trace the state arrange for obserie, whereas involution decomment (righthereas) presidence research than two-times the state average for yourd. Practitioners and prolegradient should tanget their efforts to implement summise to besen the prevalence of obserie within 24100, 24107, and 24003 monitor to reduce the providence of obserie attractions of moderns. Forum research should resource additional workshow moderns. Otherworks and head the providence of obseries and attractions of body works a step onder to be observed. influences on childhood olasin

2021 Virginia Public Health Association Conference

Causes of Healthcare Disparity in Appalachia and What Needs to Change

Chris Martin, Virginia Tech

Purpose

- Provide insidgt on what some of the causes of health disparity are in the Appatchia area
 Given the information found provide the needs of
- the area and what needs to be done to combat the rise of continuance of health disparity in the area



Methodology

Inclusion Criteria

- (1)Area in question must be the Appalachian area (2)Studies needed to discuss: (a)Healthcare (b)Social Norms

- (c)Health Education Exclusion Criteria
- (1)Studies not older than 15 years

Findings

Health Disparity in the Appalachian Area has many causes

Main area of health disparity

· All of the Appalachian area has issues, rural areas the worst

- Lack of access to healthcare
- Distance to good healthcare
 Healthcare is expensive
- · Health insurance is expensive · Lack of access to computers
- and internet

Social Norms

- Other ways of healing such as religion
 Poor eating due to social gatherings
 Body image



Health Education

- Individuals around the area don't bust healthcare
 Think there are better ways to heal
 Don't understand how a treatment works
- . Don't understand how the illness is caused or how ti works.

. More to health disparity in the Appalachian area

Summary

- than lack of access to healthcare
- Lack of health education is part of the issue and causes individuals not to seek out healthcare if they don't trust it because they don't know enoug about it
- · Social norms in the area also cause issues for people's health. One example of this is that in social gatherings it is expeted for there to be a lot of food and for everyone there to partake in eating together and having fun. Typically, this food is on the unheatthier side.

Conclusion/Recommendations

- Communities need to be educated about issues and about the lifeness that they are most likely to get Communities need better ways to get access to healthcare whether that be in person or through online means

- Accommendations Teaching students in schools more about health and giving them offormation that they will need to know later on in life Holding semicars for communities so that they can learn more about filences that may affact them Spreading information through the use of posters and other advertisements around the area for online screenings give an area in a central part of town so people have access to the internet

Sources

Improving Health Equity with Community-Based Actions: A Literature Review

Talayha A. Gilliam, Masters of Public Health Candidate at the University of Virginia School of Medicine Department of Public Health Sciences

Introduction

Health equity is defined as valuing each other, addressing injustice, and reducing disparity in health and healthcare. Researchers have have illustrated how the United States has failed to significantly improve health equity and health justice over the past decade.² The commitment to achieving health equity aims to reduce and eliminate health disparities that are influenced by social determinants of health (SDOH). SDOH are the primary driving forces of health disparities. and health inequity. There are five key areas of SDOH: economic stability, education, social and community context, health and health care, and neighborhood and built environment.3 There is an interplay between these key areas of SDOH affects health outcomes and resources on an individual and population level. The impacts of SDOH should be addressed to improve health equity by reducing health disparities.

Purpuse

The purpose of this study is to explore how community public health organizations work to achieve health equity.

Methodology

Preliminary searchers were conducted to develop a strategy to capture publicly available reports and documents from state and local public health organizations in the United States. The researchers searched for reports and documents in Google using a combination of the following search terms Health Equity, Social Determinants of Health, Public Health, MAPP Assessment, Health Departments, and Community Health. Reports and documents were examined based on the programs that organization implemented to reduce health disparities and improve health equity. The codes and themes emerge from coding sessions and discussions of the reports and documents with my research advisor, Dr. Aaron Pannone.



commun.

Public Health Organizations:

- Provide direct services to their target population by offering resources to facilitate changes in health behaviors
- Utilize their knowledge, experience, skills, and partnerships to assist their target population in developing programs that would reduce health disparities
- Use their positions to amplify the communities' voices in local government to affect policy, community resources, and funding.

Conclusion

Community public health organizations improve health equity by implementing programs that address the SDOH in their target populations; however, the majority of the organizations did not provide data to support their progress towards achieving health equity. Collecting data on the program's effectiveness based on health improvements, amount of resources provided to the community, and/or perspectives of community members actively engaging with the program may help improve their efforts to decrease health disparities and improve health equity.

Recommenda

Future research must explore using data as evidence to support organizational in achieving health equity.

References

- Office of Disease Prevention and Health Promotion. (a.d. a). Healthy People 2020 Transavork. *Health People* 2020. U.S. Department of Health and Harran Services. https://weith.am.health.people.abeat.healthepeople.2020-transavort
- Zimmerman F.J., Anderson N.W. (2019). Trends in Health Equity in the United States by Race/Ethnicity. Sec, and Income, 1995-2017. JAMA Network Open. doi:10.1001/jamanetworkopen.2019.6386
- Office of Disease Prevention and Health Promotion. In. d.). Social Determinants of Health. Healthy People 2029. U.S. Department of Health and Harman Services.
 - https://www.healthspeorie.gov/2220.about/foundation-healthmeasures/Origanities

Acknowledgement

I would like to thank Dr. Aaron Pannone for the mentorship and the guidance he provided me with for this projects. OLD DOMINION Racial Disparities Among Early-Onset Colorectal Cancer Patients in the United States: A Review Emily Varvil, BS², Georges Aduniin, PhD², Hadiza Galadima, PhD³

2. Department of Pharmaceutical, Social and Administrative Sciences, McWharter School of Pharmacy, Samford University

Background

Colorectal cancer (CRC) is the third most commonly diagnosed cancer in the United States in both men and women. According to recent studies, the incidence and mortality rates of early-onset CRC (EOCRC), defined as CRC diagnosed in individuals younger than age 50, is steadily rising in comparison to CRC in patients greater than 50 years of age. CRC routine screenings are usually conducted at the age of 50 and above; however, this excludes the vounger population, leaving them susceptible to later staged diagnosis, more aggressive treatment strategies, adverse histologic features, and increased incidence and mortality rates2. Studies have shown an increase in EOCRC incidence; however, little is known about the racial disparities that persist in EOCRC populations.

Purpose

To determine whether racial disparities related to health outcomes exist among early-onset colorectal cancer (EOCRC) patients.

Methods

We conducted a search of studies published between January 2000 to January 2021.

Three databases (MEDLINE, Cochrane Library, and PubMed) were searched for English language publications describing studies on EOCRC. The search terms used included colorectal cancer, young onset, early onset, and United States. A study was eligible for inclusion if it reported information on EOCRC and racial disparities.



- Ten studies were included in this review.
- The results of the synthesized data show that African Americans (AA) are disproportionately affected by adverse EOCRC health outcomes.

- Compared to Non-Hispanic White (NHW), AA have worse survival rates (reported by 8 out of 10 studies), higher mortality rates (8 studies), and higher EOCRC incidence rates (7 studies).
- Many of the selected studies also showed that minority groups have more advanced stage EOCRC at diagnosis than NHW patients.
- One study determined that Hispanics and Asians/Pacific Islanders had significantly higher survival rates that NHW.
- The studies have not clearly documented the exact factors that contribute to EOCRC health disparities.

Conclusion

There is evidence to support the claim that there are racial disparities present within EOCRC populations. A few articles mentioned potential factors (access to CRC treatment, insurance coverage, environmental factors, and bereditary factors) that contribute to the racial disparities that persist. However, most of the articles mentioned that further research is necessary in order to determine the underlying causes of racial disparities and rising EOCRC incidence among minority groups.

References

VIRGINIA COMMONWEALTH UNIVERSITY



Application of Whole Health Using the Donabedian Model During COVID-19 at Veteran Administration Facilities Lynnsey Boldt, Dr. Christine Booker CHS Department of Kinesiology and Health Science

Abstract

Methodology

Veterans Affairs is a specialized form of healthcare us it is dedicated to those who have provided military service and those affiliated with them. The aim of this project is to define three forms of healthcare administration; holistic health, person centered care, and whole health, and identify the practice at the VA. The Donabedian model will be used to analyze the application of the Veterans Affairs administration of health care (Whole Health). This project seeks to identify what stages of the Donabedian Model continued to be assessed at the flagship sites during Covid-19.

Introduction

Holism, termed by Christian Smutz, is the practice of viewing the body as a whole rather than as individual parts. Maintenance of the body is accessed in the form of a patient's physical, social, mental, and spiritual wellbeing because ill symptoms are the result of something being off balanced. Patient centered care, first introduced in the 1900's by Carl Rogers, serves the objective that the patient is the expert in their care and is given the power to choose what is right for them. The goal of patient centered care is that giving a patient the power to choose will increase patient compliance and therefore, increase the patient's quality of life. Finally, whole health began implementation in 2017 and embodies health in all areas- physical, social, emotional, and spiritual. This project seeks to identify what stages of the Donabedian Model continued to be implemented at the Veterans Affairs locations initially selected to implement Whole Health, termed flagship sites, during Covid-19. The Donabedian model provides a framework for examining health services and evaluating quality of health care through three measures; structure, process, and outcome. The structure measure is the process a facility will instrument to provide high quality-care and is the basis for the process measure (what will be done to implement high-quality care) and the outcome measure (the impact the care will have on the patient). A patient coming to the VA for care will be asked to complete a personal health inventory as means of assessing eight areas of self-care identified in the VA's Circle of Health depicted below. The process of identifying the patient's desires aligns with the Donabedian's structure measure.



Results/Discussion

A publication from The Comprehensive Addiction and Recovery Act (CARA) reported there was a correlation between opioid addiction and veterans. This finding stimulated the push for Veterans Affairs to provide more integrated care. Veterans Affairs designated various locations as design sites to develop what would embody a Whole Health model. Across the United States, there are 170 VA facilities. Eighteen of which were dedicated as "flag ship" sites to begin implementing Whole Health in 2017.

Conclusion

It is unclear how the VA will follow through with the patient's personal health inventory to achieve goals and facilitate a better quality of life during the COVID 19 pandemic. More research will need to be done to identify how the process and outcomes will be achieved.

Works Cited

 Administration, V. (2011, August BJ, Vennusse affairs. Topics/seven sugary-held/follocities.pp.
 Herneld, H., Ken, D. (2005, Nucl. 6). Transing the quality of MEDICAL. Contr. Topics/seven activities. Source and His Discrites of MEDICAL. Contr. Topics/seven activities. Source and His Discrites of Elektron. Topics. (1995). Theory, source of Source Networks (1994). Topics. (1995). Theory, source of Source Network. Topics. (1995). Theory, source of source Networks (1996). Topics. In Intel Professional Control (1997). Topics. Intel Medica Control (1997). Medica Control (



W Chang, J Cheng, J Allaire, Y Xie, J McPherson. Shiny: web application framework for R. R package version, 2017

We thank VDH for providing updated COVID-19 data on their website. For further information, please contact Dr. Silverman at rsilverman@vt.edu

Can be used to inform public health response

COVID-19 Trends & their Impact on Populations in Portsmouth, VA



Charting a Course for Good Health

Abstract

MASTER OF PUBLIC HEALTH

The COVID-19 pandemic has significantly impacted the daily activities, health, security and general well-being worldwide. The Portsmouth health district has placed emphasis on identification of occurrences of health disparities within the city's population.

EVMS

Introduction & Purpose

The Portsmouth Health Department (PHD) is a compilation of various community initiatives designated to deliver advocacy, health education, and services to its residents. The goal of this project was to identify COVID-19 trends of the residents of Portsmouth, in comparison with other Hampton Roads health districts, and create a health communications plan.

Methods

 Quantitative comparison of Portsmouth and Hampton Roads COVID-19 trend comparisons utilizing the VDH public database by age, sex, race, and vaccine status.

Arnell Jackson Jr.

Results

Health District	Tetal Positivity %		Completed Vaccination
Portsmouth	12.57		
Chesapeake	11.22	By Ethnicity	White (5,135) Black (4,281)
Va. Beach	ch 8.82	Latino (252)	
Norfolk	8.60		N. All(10)
Western Tidewater	10,51	By Sex	Female (8.5.17)
Peninsula	7,87		(d,342) Male (5,417)
Hampton	9.67		

	Age (Grp)	Six	Ethnicity	
Cases	20-29 (1,408)	Females (4,085)	Black (3,703)	
Hospitalizations	70-79 (129)	Females (311)	Black (388)	
Deaths	80+ (44)	Males (73)	Ellack (85)	

Discussion

The purpose of the project was to determine potential populations facing health disparities due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The PHD plan targeted future COVID-19 interventions and how to best serve the populations at greatest risk. Findings were utilized to tailor the development of a health communication plan and help obtain a grant opportunity that would provide funds to put the plan into action. The health communication plan was developed to increase health literacy concerning the COVID-19 vaccination to counteract larger levels of misconceptions and mistrust of the vaccine. It important to note that the data does not reflect current COVID-19 trends.

Potential IPE

Direct interactions with other professional did not occur due to COVID-19 impact. All interactions were via email correspondence. The health communications plan could potentially be utilized by community/outreach workers to distribute and disseminate the importance on receiving COVID-19 vaccinations.

Acknowledgements

Thank you Anne Dumadug, MPH, Population Health Planning, and Improvement Coordinator, for your guidance and assistance through these trying times and to Dr. Kim Baskette, Ph.D., CHES for a push in the right direction.



Effects of the Pandemic on Nursing Schools in Virginia

Benjamin Gersbach, Dr. Christine Booker

Virginia Commonwealth University

Abstract

see: This stock came is discovery shering students are chosing to apply to rate our school in c of the incorranty the products has brought, and have these ratebars might coopies of the almost matters in the ours of Wegnan.

proputational statistics in the same of "Pagesa. **Ordersko:** It carry a distribution of the page of the statistics meaning. Programs in Vegen is seen statistical solution of the Videous granting and the page of the statistics provide the statistical distribution. The Videous Televis and the statistical of the Videous provide the statistical distribution of the Videous statistical of 21 from a total of 21 from pages on these statistics of the videous the **Orderski**. (2014) and the statistical of 21 from the page of the Videous the statistical and a Statistical Distribution of the Videous the Statistical Order and the statistical and the statistical and the statistical of the statistical of 21 from the statistical of 21 from the statistical and the statistical and the statistical of the statistical of 21 from the statistical of 21 from the statistical and the statisti

«Conclusion: With the restricted transmit, it is specified that this will also interest for comparition in Reconference Noving programs, experising when according the field reportenees of the neutron applicants due to the lask of valuation and internality opportune 2013 Internation of CIVETS, 19

Introduction

The Corona into Pandemic has completely disrepsed the lives and routines of everyone, most of all frontline workers. Is doing so, saidelines have been rewritten and countless procedures have been changed to accorrenodate this parademic. It has also shined a light on several problems the healthcare industry has been starting down for years such as the Numing shortage and Telehaulth disparities. The need to address these problems will only continue to exponentially increase and may lead to radical duarges in medicine (Wang, Bhat, 2020). One report found that traditionally, in times of mession with high onemployment, college enrollment surges. However, in the state of Washington enrollment have in fact fallen almost 12% overall (Kvastyre, Kibert-Crocker, Landgren, Painon, 2021, 5-6). In commut, by looking at medical achool administers, some research suggests that virtual interviews lowered requisitements large make programs some more accessible for applicants (Bfust, Bfust 2020, I-2). Board on the available research, there is a road to address the shortages in number school admissions as well. The purpose of this study is to see what effect the pendernic has had on Naming school applicants in the state of Virginia.

Methodology

G Using a mixed Methods approach, the primary method of gathering information seasthrough two dichotomous quastions. Over the source of several weeks, even admissions department of each Notiong Program currently offlaring a bactabacreate degree in Vogisio were surveyed and asked the two research questions. This was done either directly over the phone or via email when necessary, as many departments are now either working at home or temporarily farloughed. Depending on the answer to research on two, sabsoquent qualitive data was collected

Results/Discussion

- When Responding to RQ1, of the 23 Nursing BS programs sampled, 13(23 or 65.2% saw as increase, 6/23 or 26.1% saw no charge, 1/23 or 4.3% saw a decrease, and 1/23 or 4.3% Chose Not to respond.
- When Responding to RQ2, of the 23 Norsing BS programs sampled 1% changed their process on some Level, 11/23 or 48% made No changes, and 3/23 or 13% Chose Not to respond.
- Of the 9 schools that had made changes the responses were as follows. 4 waived testing requirements, 3 made simple electronic formating dianges 1 had a major overhaul of tech done, 1 offered completely remote TEAS testing services, and I fowered GPA entry requirements

Research Questions

- 1. Have the number of Nursing applicants changed from 2019 to 2020? (yes or no)
- 2. Have there been any changes to your admissions process from 2019-2020?



General Changes in Application frequency

Applicants the
 Change Neglagable
 Mon-response
 Applicants Oppin

Conclusion

- One would think that in the middle of such accountic handdhig. College and Naming School admissions would stagger or full significantly, my findings however, have indicated otherwise for the state of Virginia. With the job market suddenly being flooded with experienced unemployed or farloughed applicants, data suggests more and more students are considering extra schooling. This has a few critical implcations for future and currently applying stadarta. Though a significant percentage of programs have related requiriments, this is likely to serve only in make these programs even more competitive and increase the value of whatever limited skills the applicants may have gained through prior experiences.
- This approach had seenal Lorentoons, therefree, his o pilot study. Small Sample soo borg the first at a low of just 23. Due to the relatively small simples of this study, a questitative approach own used to record responses. In addition, several of the universities were not able to provide many estimation details beyond the question shall. In many cases a change was able to be confirmed, however the exact quantity of change remains mostly unknown. Overall, the quantity and quality of responses
- receeded expectations. This conclusion is reinforced by the fact many of these schools easily fill their programs with qualified stadents, turning away almost as many qualified applicants as they admit. In the figure, it would be interesting to compare this data to the eithre East Coast, or the country, Considering a deferrer level, when it comes to fighting the spread of Covid-19. Virginia do roken volt better than score states such as Florida, Town and California and it would be insteaming to use what the admissions rates when in these states to see whether the responses men response was a direct result of COVID-19 itself, or a ripaking according effect of statewide structural charges due to the lockdown, etc. It is likely that the

Works Cited

er is a mix of b

- Devel, B., McKanner, M., & Tikloh, A. (2011). The largest of COVID-10 Pathemic on Molacul School Advancement: Chillingue and Scholanis. *The Journal of comprol research*, 208, 113–218. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.am.2020108.072</u>
- Wang, X., Bhan, D. (2009). CIVID-109 An Unconsolial Funct for Modical Benefitiated Journal of Instatus Cardiology 32(6) 51-63. Kristyn, L. Kössel-Chuckus, E., Landguss, M., Josson, S. (2021) full fluorihaster Engent. Exploring for Ingenet of COVID-19 in Informationality (Interdiscont in Washington Washington Vision Architectures Consult 3-13.

Acknowledgements

I would blue to thank, Dr. Booker far har mentiodile advance the har given rate throughout the recountly periods, and far the opportunities the har provided out over the part flow possible to develop and explore any career options.



Evaluating the Effects of the COVID-19 Pandemic and Telehealth on University Student Access of **Mental Health Resources**

Grace Duncan

Graduate Program in Public Health, University of Virginia

Background

- The ouset of the COAID-19 pandemic and resulting change in Bieryle elicited many concerns about menual health and provision of menual health services.
 In Spring of 2020, most colleges shifted audemic entirely miline and removed in-person services, including university menual health services.
- · Early surveys conducted by universities reported
- significantly higher incidence of amore, depression, and other menual health issues among college students.
- Prior to the COVID-19 paraketis, television had been gaining traction as a solution to summersus health system issues including cost, physical harriers, and provider descents. derrages
- However, dispattion in access once quickly identified, primarly geniaric patients, those with poor internet access, and those in areal of nour intensive treatment.

Objective

To examine key changes in student and appointment demographics at a large public state university's Student Health Courseding and Psychological Services program during the OCATD-19 paintenic as many students returned houre and all appointments transitioned to telehealth.

Methods	
Data. The University Student Health and Wellness Datates (is a fully according buildcare facility and the primary origination modular (this for the university student papellation,	sHDW)
 Conneling and Psychological Services (CAPS) is a subsection of SHW and provides countering psychic 	inters.

- subsection of SHW and provides counseling, psychiates, curr management, ersis support, and mental health outenach services in students. Souderst bealth data was linked and de-identified using the IRB-approved Student Health Research Dotabase
- Health data (ICD-10 classification for mason visit, date of visit, provider sens, etc.), student demographics (e.g. age, nare, citizenship, tas dependency), and academic information (you; academic program, etc.) were provided
- in a de-identified dataset.
- Anatysis Chi squared and two sample totom were performed in SAS to evoluate the charge in health, demographic, and academic attributes CAPS uniform before and during the pantlenic drift to virtual visita.

Readout .			
	fs8.2899	Full 2KH	Test Statistic and Prophet
Characteristics	(#=1540)	ia - 1010	for test of difference
Application	23,36899, 4.02	12 3614, 4 55	T ~ (2.803) ~ 6.081)
Fendant Northe			1-2016-0-mil
Guiate	10.0851513	81.5854-0418)	
Cologistian	080475312800	KEAPSLITER	
Grafter			g- 8.771p- 01001
Misle	34,095,1945	30.54%(37%)	
Tarrak	14 78% (1922)	10/205-0031	
Citorebip Name			g2=834(p=8.003)
Naha	81745(198)	10,175	
		111408	
Nonii 3 ad soni	1230/01284	#ARADINE	
Super	0.475189	8.425(1)	
order of	1110.42146	1411.1.91	T<-286(g=6.00)
interesting of the second second			
and the			design of the second
a superior and superior	NIN IL	1000	Training the county
Alata	a section		
Area	12/03/56 (2218)	121214-0481	
Hadi at Attucat Airconcas	6.50%+11581	1125(00)	
Higanic	A3PL(DH	\$GPL(W)	
Viel-Bart	A APPLITUDE	1005130	
New Tenders (Mar	12.525.1798	e vitra (81)	
	12411-1948	TRANSMENT.	
41.81		and the second sec	
Takana	EXPLANE!	4 7152388	
Tuktored	ESPLANE	4 715-1381	
Taktorina geskilterina lanacetrikaler	Kalt Store Kalt Store Unit Stole	4 755238) 8143 3000 14 - 5468)	
Tabarra generations familiaritation map Appointation map	a toris andi Kale detri Geri Della	4 7/5238) Kali 300 (x = 5468)	32 - 28 Th (y - 10000)
Takana generaten kana kontaka may Agentakanar ana	EXPLANE Fail Store (HTDNs)	4 7/5-138) Kali 3000 (w = 5488)	yt - 24 m (y - 10400)
Thisses paintees heraterides may Appelitese also Tal Ap	E SPELING FAR JETT GETENG GETENG LESSEN (NIK BESCHLESSEN)	47%(38) 84(300 9(-546) 10%(40) 838(40)	g-ang-awa
Thissen Thissen publication map Appeldiment inter Table National National	1.375, 449) Tail 2019 (447046) 100055 (2015 100055 (2015	4 7551381 641300 14 - 56681 11 3551402 11 3551402 11 3551402	g-2009-0000
Thissen Thissen periodenia map Appeldiacar map Appeldiacar Ma Tai Ma	1.20% (44) Fail (1877 (47)295(24) (12:095(24)) (12:095(25))	4 75%138) Hati 300k (x + 5688) T 35%1400 KLAD% (5600)	g - 31 Tray - 00000
The set The set period set and Appenditions also The Set Appenditions The Set Appenditions The Set Appenditions The Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appenditions Set Appen	1.20% (000) Full 2007 (001295) 10.20% (245) 85.22% (000) (2.20% (000)	4 75%134) Hali 300 (x + 5668) T 35%14(2) KLAP% (1900) TL 35%4(712)	y2 - 34 Tr (y - 10000) y2 - 344 Weg - 00001)
This area particular trap Appelation trap Appelation the Na Sease the factoring Traps Car, Vangaron	2.345, 249 Fait Serr 18:095 (245) 8:025 (245) 13:385 (246) 13:385 (246)	4 254(188) Rui 3000 Is - 5660) T 254(140) KLAPA 1560) T 254(170) L 254(170)	gt - 31 Trig - 10000. gt - 34 Weg - 10001)
Livianos periodosos heradosidos erap Appelditació ilas las herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados herados her	2.34% (44) Fait 2417 (41)2417 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42)2418 (42	4 254(189) Rui 3000 (x - 5660) T 254(140) KLAPA (1860) T 254(170) L 254(170) 2 424(190)	32 - 33 75 (y + 00000) 32 - 344 Weg - 0000 ()
reactions (particular) management have been not become the construction of the become the construction of the become the construction of the become the construction	1.275, 200 Fail 2017 (ar-1294) 12.205, (205 ar-22, (205) 1.207, (205) 1.207, (205) 1.207, (205) 1.207, (205) 1.207, (205)	1254130) Fabi 3000 (x - 5468) 12541442 42,654 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 12641425 1264145 1264145 1264145 1264145 1264145 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415 126415	gi - 31 Tray - 10000. gi - 34 Weg - 10001
rease particular particular managentitation man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak man tak tak tak tak tak tak tak tak tak tak	1395,000 Fail 2017 (0704) 10095,005 10095,005 1395,000 1395,000 1395,000 1395,000 1395,000	41%(3) Fal300 (r+360) 13%(40) 414% (100) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40) 1.9%(40)	4-20.94(-0000) R-20.9((-0000)
There are a set of the	1395,000 Fail 2009 (00 ¹⁰ 209) 10005(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005 10055(2005)) 10055(2005 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005)) 10055(2005))	17553) Fall 300 (e - Sad) 17954402 KLAN, 1995 1995400 1.995400 1.995400 1.995400 1.995400	21-23.9(9+0000) 21-23.9(9+0000)
Thinson Thinson packaterial packaterial may apposite the apposite	1394,000 Fail 2009 (001504) (2009) (201) (2009) (201) (2009) (201) (2009) (201) (2009) (201) (2019) (201) (2019) (201) (2019) (201) (2019) (201)	17553) Fall200 (x-566) 17953402 Karly 1995 1995 1995 205529 205529 205529 205529 205529 205529 205529 2055200	11-21 W(F-0000)
Thisman packater packater internet and a man man man man take man take man take man take take take take take take take take	2395,000 Fail 2007 (00 ⁻¹⁰ 2095,000) 100095,000 10095,000 10095,000 10095,000 10095,000	175530 Fail200 (x-560) 1295340 61455 1295340 1295320 1295320 1295320 1295320 1295320 1295320 1295320 1295320 1295320 1295320 1295320 1295320	21 - 24 W(g - 0.0001) 25 - 24 W(g - 0.0001)
Tanana Questioned hearantendin may Agentifican tas and Lucostar Progr Caretalanten Caretalanten Caretalanten Caretalanten Caretalanten Caretalanten Caretalanten Silo (Santo Mala Parti	23%, an Fat Stri (ar 134) (209%, (20) (339%, (20) (339%, (20) (339%, (20) (339%, (20) (39%, (2)) (39%,	1755-30) Nation In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-State In-St	21-23.75 (y + 10000) 21-24.76 (p - 10000)
View of This and packation of hear periodic may Appediate the hear the hear thear the hear thear thear the hear thear thear t	23%, au Fat Stry (ar Don (ar D	175530 Fail 200 (x - 588) 1295340 KLANy 1295340 LLANY 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 12953400 12953400 12953400 12953400 12953400 12953400 12953400 12953400 12953400 12953400 12953400 12953400 12953400 12953400 12953400 12953400 12953400 12953400 12953400 12954400000000000000000000000000000000000	2-24 w/t-0001
Tanana Tanana Tanana Marakatika Marakatika Marakatika Marakatika Can Mangarika Can Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Mangarika Manga	234, 200 Fat 300 (2009), (201 2009), (201 2019), (201 201), (201 201), (201 201), (201 201), (201 201), (201 201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201), (201),	175530) Rai 200 (175540) 12953402 4285 4285 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340 1295340	1-20.9(y-0000)
Television Television Second States Second States States Second States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States States	2395,000 Fail 2017 (000%)(2016 1000%)(2016 1000%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016) 100%)(2016) 100%)(17%33) Nai 200 In-Sado Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls Carls C	32-33.75 y + 0.0001 32-34.76 y - 0.0001





Conclusion and Recommendations

- + CAPS has continued to serve a large student possilation
- CATS has commons a series a large student population dimonglocular the paradimic after a shift to solely virtual menul boath appointment in a todicates that there may be benefits to a virtual appointment model including improved across, raw of a transing appointments, and more appointments delicated to talk therapy.
- However, they also bring up concerns that some groups are not adequately reached by services that are only provided virtually. Men, younger students, some minority propagation or analysis of the propagation of the propagation of sprops, and those in critics shouldons are autoring these groups who now significant decreases in the propagation of visits during the shift to telebradth.
- In continuing the number offering during and after social distancing guidelines are related, efforts should be made to remare equitable coverage.
- Limitators include ourcerus about the acof the population reached by student health in the Fall 2020 mucsur given restrictions on virtual visits act lines and inconsistency between providers inputting reason codes

Acknowledgements

Datak you to the University of Vinginia Elour brackets Houlds Croner man, specifically Di Uniterplace Holenge, Kanad Tanate, and Saunian Rogi robust of ann this project rendd ant fant here possible



Physical and Mental Health Care Recommendations for Healthcare Personnel During COVID-19 from January 1st, 2019 – April 24th, 2020 : A Systematic Review Presenter: Octavia Goodman, MPH I Advisor: Mariana Szklo-Coxe, MHS, PhD

College of Health Sciences | Old Dominion University, Norfolk, VA



1(7)

ODU

Shifting from In-Person to Virtual Program Delivery: Lessons Learned from the COVID-19 Pandemic

Cara Tonn (MPH student), Mya Achike, MPH, Michele Kekeh, Ph.D., Muge Akpinar-Elci, MD, MPH Old Dominion University, Center for Global Health

introduction	Pro	ICEBI	Parapoctive
he Global Health Herces program Beginning in 2016, to teach children positive health belaviors with the intertion that the kide will use these new skills and share them with their tamly and thends. The program design is an interactive on-site experience that includes information and activities high spring the importance of glood nutrition, recycling, and higherse. Program facilitators measure pre-existing knowledge with a cre-test and information comprehension's with a poet-test. On-site implementation is the perponsibility of a Center for Global Health representative with assistance from ODU interms and on-othe employees.	The Center used this opportunity to reinforce the Centers for Disease Control guidance on reducing COVID-19 spread. The virtual lesson cansists of: • A discussion on the meaning and importance of Global Health. • Engagement with the children on reducing the spread of germs to gauge existing innovelage. • Side series with viteos • A choice of activity acquering to fixeds and fixed, the importance of not spreading germs, social distancing, or wearing in mark. Buch as • storyboard, mind map, poster • poor, song, or a social media post.	Vitap-up - the opportunity to reinforce lesson there and to answer questions Issuance of a certificate of completion and secept of healthy snacks Global Health Heroes Certificate of Achievement UP UP	The Center for Global Health piloted the virtual program with 20 students from the Boys and Girls Club. While the program's implementation was a success, the Center learned valuable leasons to presentations. • Compared to the provious face-to-face program format, sciontaneous teachable moments are absent. • The virtual program benefits from an on-site facilitation to assist in the leason's flow and provide direction.
Sarting in September 2020, the Center began kdspting the Global Health Heroes program in seponse to the changes in dely routines brought in by the COVID-19 pandemic. • In December 2020, the Center for Global Health successfully jeanched to final-ever virtual Global Health Heroes program, via Zoom ploted with 20 students from the Rosemont Link Boys and Girls Glub.	Coportunities for children to present a completed project and receive feedback from the facilitators. Global Health Herces Slide Series Content	Global Health Haroes E-book	Facilitators and developers will need to continue to develop skills to utilize advancing ledniclogy to provide a more interactive, argoging experience for the children. Additional presentation software (Prezi and Vierne) Camification apps. Book widgets Poling software
The virtual program's objective is to ptomote heading hashes that reduce the sprand of germs by reinforcing the importance of social distancing, wearing a mask and fand biggene. To enfance the virtual session's theme, an e-book, accessible on the Center's website, is available to promote individual kerning and increase accessibley.	What is a filobal Health?	HEADERSCHEMEN	Conclusion The Global Health Hences program's purpose is to promote healthy behaviors and educate children on the positive outdoornes associated with those behaviors, not just for themselves but also for their finands, troved ones, and the community. The transition of the Global Health Hences program to an online platform during the COVID-18 pantemic reflects the Center's mission and vision of positivey impacting health and well-being by using its members' unique strengths to address community neards. Ulticities the information and using its members' unique strengths to address
	Shan 1. Survisand 2. Mari State 3. Natar 4. From		learned with the pilot program's implementation, the Center is motivated to continue to develop the virtual Global Health Herces program

VIRGINIA COMMONWEALTH UNIVERSITY



The Impact of COVID-19 on the Graduate Admissions for Master of Health Administration and Master of Business Administration Degree Programs in the United States By Diana Shoja & Christine Booker, PhD College of Humanities and Sciences Department of Kinesiology and Health Sciences

Abstract

COVID-10 has a Blook the way wireverse adversation across the county and considering preparement spatiants. This graduat adversations present for Moner of Headth-Individual counter and Moner of Headtern Adversationation degrees but about doing requirements for sametached a traiting and the adversation annularization trans accounts for sametached or groupsmen the adversation annularization trans accounts for applications to their programs. That is a collected by MISA and MISA pregions on a analytical or the group interaction. A collab of 20 MISA and MISA pregions on a analytic of by collecting data seguriting controloles and adversion from the application of the list of the pregionse have compared in adversion mission was interived. Their prepares for pregnets respond standardiced testing as a part of their adversion otheria. As the predimension mission measures, the spatiation of the MISA and a 4.5%. Regionments tray y particularity guidalines.

Introduction

Uncerscept adaptations across this control have about their application criteria the in-parameters across the comparison of the theory of the comparison of the compari

Methodology

In this research, an online guarantiative analysis approach is used to devide point propose remains the bioways. Report handly, morel happing, the analysis of whom guaranting and a chartering advances informations or mining related in information data on a data series to provide a device in the "Ability data gains have been ranker to data graduate advances in proceeds and in CUVID-1977.

The research question is explored by analyting call interpret/signeduce program galaxies and address to reparameters while the data is coloured density of the program whether. The data is been entered by contrast questions of the colocide determines. The data program is divided and to advenue and induced to impact of advance pre-convolution and information. The following involution whether the supercolution and information. The data was produced with data wavefolged information and the means. The following involution with a data wavefolged information and information. The following involution with a data wavefolged information and the data was printerious advances in advances in information in the data wavefolged and inford transcripts. Advances in superconduction is to compare the data was printerious and other advances of the formation in an inford to compare the data was printerious advances in the formation in the information of the data was inford transcripts. Advances in the information is main inford to compare the changer trans high ray and starts COVID-19.

Results/Discussion

In COUTS (in COUTS) and/or fig. (i) is a better determination of the strength one particular of the strength one particular (i) is the strength one particular (ii) is the strength one particular (iii) is the strength one parti (iii

to support the second s





Conclusion

This project was asseed to find the methor of progenies who do natriceptor any form of intradicture lost as a part of their advances requirements. Based on the 150 programs in which that was collected from. 77% of graduate programs required applicates to solve it fairs intraing space priors to COVID-19. A application galaxies was part of the advances reinstein in advances of the COVID-19. A application galaxies and an other of distances reinstein a final distance or number for the traditional states of a state of distances reinstein in addition to conduct an interview with the advances or advances and distances reinstein a galaxies to conduct an interview with the advances and matching distances and advances in galaxies to conduct an interview with the advances and matching of the matter of the products, it is in difficult to know a first-theor matter was a transmission and the galaxies of matterior the products, it is and the product in the state and the distance and matching of the matter of the products, it is and the product is the state of the advances of the conducted of matterior the products, it is and the product is the state of the conducted without the state of the products, it is and the state of the state of

Universities have observed their advantation extents to better adjust around the parabonic Programs have changed their standardized integra and interaction process due to the disk of Educkting. These characteristics and pipeling and interaction process due to the multiling an applicant to present a gradient degree. The parabonic bits affordist the very observative consistence are criterious polescial gradient applicants. Maving forward lines the parabonic state interaction operation of the parabonic bits affordist the very observative, interaction operators of gradient applicants. Maving forward lines the parabonic state in the 2012-1022 application excits an the requirements interaction operator lines are advanced as for requirements in transfordiated remains and the for 2012-1022 application excits an the requirements interaction operators.

Works Cited

Grappo, R. (2020, June). Attenuan Foreign Service Association. Represed April 10, 2021, from

https://www.afsecorg/cellings-administees-and-coval-19-evolving-landscape Levy, M. (2020, August 3), Applying to Gaulante School During a Paulienia

Retrieved April 5, 2021, from https://ackarolity.com/op/grad-ackool-sketog-pandamic html

Acknowledgements

) would like to express my special fluxiks of gravitude to Dr Christine Birooks who gave me the opportunity of this research project on the charges made to the 2001-2002 graduate administon process. I came to know about so may different subjects and I om fluxikfal for hermemorship.



Utilizing Community Health Worker Learning Modules to Increase Preventive Services During the COVID-19 Pandemic

Alexa Gallagher BSN, RN, Doctor of Nursing Practice Candidate Rebecca Sutter DNP, FNP-BC School of Nursing George Mason University

BACKGROUND

 The beginning of the COVID-19 Pandemic led to a 60% decrease in ambulatory services

 The drop in ambulatory and preventive services may lead to future adverse health outcomes, particularly in vulnerable populations

 Literature shows that vulnerable populations have increased rates of DM/CVD and mental health disorders after disasters and increased community support leads to better health outcomes

PROJECT PURPOSE

 Reduce the burden of disease resulting from the COVID-19 Pandemic by increasing social support and access to preventive services in the community
 Utilize targeted learning modules to educate community health workers (CHWs) on topics relevant to health concerns during the pandemic

- Increase community support through CHW education



METHODOLOGY

 Four evidence-based learning modules: diabetes and cardiovascular disease, mental health, community resources, and COVID-19
 Disseminated to VA CHWs through the Institute for Public Health Innovation and the Virginia Certification Board
 Completion survey with modified USE Questionnaire and three

qualitative questions. Data collected over four weeks, n=19 respondents



RESULTS

 100% responded positively that the program increased their knowledge and helped respondents be more effective in their work
 COVID-19 and community resource modules were the most useful
 Respondent comments: "Great program, user friendly, informative, and easy to follow," "CHWs can benefit from more of this training program." "Make all trainings this easy to do"

 Respondents would like more links to resources and applicable educational resources

RECOMMENDATIONS

- Educational interventions during COVID-19 should be targeted and succanet
- Provide resources for CHWs regarding community resources and COVID-19
- Consider utilizing a similar format for additional trainings in the future

 Consider utilizing evidence from previous natural disasters when addressing challenges during the COVID-19 Pandemic

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Thank you to the Institute of Public Health Innovation and the Virginia Certification Board for their assistance and support during this project. Thank you to Dr. Rebecca Sutter for her guidance and expertise.

REFERENCES





🔼 University of Association Between Mold and Asthma in Minority Children in the Urban Setting

ter and inflagues

Judith K. Muir

Master of Public Health Candidate, University of Lynchburg, Lynchburg, VA



Introduction

Asthno Risk

Astima can affect individuals of an age, but the amet of asthma is most typical in childhood. The provolence of authers is highest in minorities, especially Poerto Ricars and African Americans. The risk is also elevated when liking in an urban setting due to substandard outdoor and indoor of quality, powerty conditions and poor access to health care (Asthma and Allergy Foundation, n.d.: Brant-Stephens, 2009: Kercsmar, et al., 2006).

Indoor Mold

Building dampness and mold can increase the risk of asthesa and other related respiratory linesses by 30 to 50%. Approximately 21% of all asthma cases are attributable to housing dampness and reald which leads to an annual cost \$3.5 billion dollars (Wendel et al., 2011).

Purpose

[IPA nd]

This literature review will examine mold exposure in urban children in order to determine (I mold leads to the increased risk of asthma, especially in oxidiren of minority renter households in urtian setting).

Methods: EPA Process

EPA Risk Assessment Process This literature revise followed the EPA process for conclusing a hurter health



.

2

· amont think

· totali piter

F \$300 100-

Google Scholar was searched for studies published in Engli keywords: mold, itempress, asthrau, risk, triggers, minority, children, artura, tanant, landord, renediation, autik health. A total of 20 articles were inviewed.

Hazard Identification

Fungal Species and Growth Conditions

Fungal general most associated with the development and exacertation of asthma include: Aspergillius, Penelikum, Alternarile, Stockybornys, and Cladosponium. Mold may grow inside houses and rental properties when warm, moist conditions exist (Califaud et al., 2018; Mendell et al., 2011).

	- 84-4		-	A		
меня не	10,000	i na	mar.	nor a	CON 106-0	۰.
PERMIT LAN	14 11 10 10			184. 781		

The risk for anthrea sitile to mold is documented in numerous weidence-based studies. Collaud and colleagues (2018) conducted a systematic search of ed asthma literature published between 2006 and 2017 and concluded that the collective data support a causal relationship between mold and asthma in children. A graphic depiction of the adjusted odds ratios from the various studies unamined are shown to the right. AND CARTING CONTRACTOR

vc33	att
Inh Assessment Princess	39
	and chi
Name + Holding	
Colorador 1	Ne
ish after 2000 using the	Dai

have an increased percentage of renters and minorities. When looking specifically at renting versus severing, motes were much more likely to have asthma triggers (innova, musty odors, leaks, mold, peits) in their Nousehold; than individuals that owned their residence. Allow examining the 2015 American Housing Survey, Skoper, 2017 noted that "initial occupied households with school-age children with orderna were nor-than backs as likely as owner-occupied households to be expected to smoke, marky smoke, and evidence of cockroaches or rodents at least monthly over the past year Among households with a school-age shild with asthma, those exposed to smole in

The Norme of Least monthly were more (Ref) to report an ER or utgest care visit Month When which have a figure to be a set of the s

(30.1 vi 18.8 percent), at were those expected to mold in a bedroom during exposed to mold in a bedroom durin the part year (44.4 vs 20.2 percent)" Key results are shown to the right. Children upend significant time in

particularly troublesome at night,

(Basch, 2011; Garvesh et al., 2015).



and parents. The strongest result odor and highest levels of mold were associated with "34 times increased odds of new-onset wheating compared to hones with no radid or odor. Ray results are shown above. Other Mold & Asthma Relationships

Mold Dose-Response

A case-control study by Sho

(2017) was conducted in 150 children

no history of wheesing. Visible mold and mold

researchers, an independent building assessor

Accumulation of Asthma Triagets - Cumulative risk for asthma is higher in minority children in the orben setting due to elevated environmental triggers such as mold, tobacco smoke, rodents and cocloraches. Elevated triggers may lead to more hespitalizations / ER wisits and missed school days (Ganesh et al., 2015).

Neuklo Care for Asthmatic Children - Cumulation effect of risk factors is reflected in the while of minority children with authrus. Prevalence of authrus and IR-estated from works is going up for all children; however, TR vicitation rate is its grooter in ck vs Wilke children. This health disportly is worsened by the fact that White virialis childree use primary care physicians 150% more often than Black asthmatic draw (Basch, 2011).

Exposure Assessment

nters in the Urban Setting

ngriess and mold may be a greater concern in urban areas where the households

for their youngest child with asthma

their rooms and asthma san be sp documenting mold in their bedroom

strates elevated exposure risk



the ability to concentrate enal levery, may make children less likely to attend extracarritualier activities and may least to an increase in absences from school. This results in poor test scores, less of a connection to school activities and loss of time in the academic setting. This poor academic performance may have life-long inspacts on future employment and financial prospects (Basch, 2001).

Risk Management & Recommendations

Risk Characterization

Mold and dampness are known risk factors for childhood authrea that is backed by

evidence from multiple epidemiologic studies & allaut et al., 2018: Ganesh et al.

2015; Mendell, et al., 2011; Skoper, 2017). The association between indoor mold and childhood asthma cannot be overlooked.

Prevention and Remediation of Mold

Overall Statement of Risk

Homeowners, landfords and tenants must do all they can to reduce dampness as It is a critical step in reducing indoor mold and other damptions related issues rtometownens & Londilonth Advice - 1) eliminate all leaks, 2) remove & repla

building materials domaged by dompness and recid, 3) meintain gutters properly 4) verif bathroom fam, stown and shywn, 5) properly maintain heating & cooling systems, and 6) provide dehumabliers or require tenants part hase one.

Tenonts Advice - 1) report all leaks, mold growthis or musty odors, 2) use indoor bathroom and stove fans, 3) use a dehumidifier, and 4) throw out old books and rewspapers (Kercsmar, et al., 2006; Mahonay and Spear, 2003).

Public Health Recommendations

Until technology can rapidly identify mold, a team approach of scientism, doctors, epidemiologists, and engineers should assist public health officials in providing guidance to homeowners, landlords, and texants about the dangers of motif and how to deal with contamination to reduce the risk of asthma in urban setting.

References

Inel 23 (21) Adams had will itseed of

ant, C (2011), indices thereine has Hand JT. Laborat, H. Andrichk, D. & Sold, S. (2019). Diver south registrated states, between National Terrors, 77,148, (70) 7 trainer, plan of main height

of street likeling

and S. Rolls V.C. Bougs, L. & An Phys. (1997), The eliticating forward binary particulars using prior 2017 Interface Descept Texas, No. 5 West-Station.

mann (19), Andren, H.J., Selantar, M., Sin, J., Restory H.J., Selantari, A., Martin, Sanang, H.J., Sana, S.J., Salah, L. (2000). Matchine in other models: to definition or total of their constraints and resistance assess. Devenues and Real-Orientation, 71400 (2014). In Proceedings, 2014 and in the state of the state o

Mang, U. A. Space, G. 2010. Western a second and application framework of a space 2010. Address of the space of the spa

Comparing Source-Specific PM2 5 Between Rush Hour vs. Sporadic Commuters Charlotte Joannidis, Jenna R. Krall, Karlin D. Moore – Department of Global and Community Health – George Mason University Figures tr-PM25 **Objectives & Methods** Figure 3. Difference in source specific PM_{2.5} in log µg/m³ (95% confidenc Figure 2. Average minutes spent in-vehicle for traffic-related fine particulate matter = tr 714, Objectives: to cluster commuters by intervals) between rush hour and sporadic commuters using linear models. each hour of day per participant, with participants Fine particulate matter (PM _) + any particle that is less. without adjustment (Unadjusted) as well as adjusted for residential PM 15 type and to identify associations with grouped by cluster. than 2.5 micrometers in diameter (Figure 1) from 12 a.m. to 4 a.m (PMNight). increased tr-PM25 exposure PM25 is traffic-related when sourced from traffic including Methods: particles from brake/tire wear, road dust, and talipipe Commute data consisted of emissions) unscripted personal vehicle trips of Figure 1. 6 PM25 45 commuters in the Washington, Many minutes PM2.5 D.C. metro area over 48-hours, with 30 50-7944 Image * * # a total of 320 trips (source + Uniter Commuter types were identified epa.gov) & PUts using sparse K-means clustering N dumr13 x Source-specific PM23 was estimated both in using Positive Matrix Factorization these - T Linear regression was used to estimate differences in sourcespecific PM₂₅ by commute cluster Hour of day (HOD) nce in source-specific PM_{2.3} (log µg/m THE BEACH SAND Diffe Discussion/Conclusions Acknowledgements Results Special thanks to Dr. Knall for her leadership and This study is unique as it identifies the association Clusters 1-3 were combined to create two Introduction guidance throughout this project and to my team commuter clusters: rush hour commuters tr-PM2c has been associated with adverse health Frank you to co-autions: Dr. 10-Ching Lee, Dr. Anna outcomes such as cardiopulmonary morbidity and Z Palade, Dr. Michele McCostas, Dr. Jonathan montality In-vehicle tr-PM25 exposure contributes to total the day) (Figure 2) eerligrant from George Mason University and The personal pollution exposure commuters Integrated Black carbon (BC) was higher for mas F. and Kate Miller Jeffrens Memorial Trip characteristics, such as time of day, day of the Further research may elucidate whether commuter rush hour commuters (median = 3.1 µg/m³ Rath of America Troots week, and traffic congestion, are associated with characteristics are an efficient way to identify (IQR = 1.5)) compared to sporadic increased in-vehicle PM_{3.6} exposures individuals with highest tr-PM_{2.0} References commuters (2.0 µg/m³ (IQR = 1.9)) Previous studies have identified commute exposures associated with commuting characteristics associated with pollution Mixed mobile PM25, consisting primarily of The time of vehicle commute is a modifiable Previous studies have used K-means clustering tailpipe emissions and brake/tire wear, was behavior approaches to analyze commute data higher for rush hour commuters (2.9 µg/m1 If the type of commuter with the highest exposure (IQR = 1.6)) compared to sporadic can be identified and these commuter commuters (2.1 µg/m3 (IQR = 2.4)), though characteristics are modifiable, more effective air this difference was not statistically pollution exposure mitigation strategies can be

developed.

significant (Figure 3)



Exploration of the Spatial Relationships between Lead and Pesticide Exposures and Neurodegenerative Disease Age-Adjusted Mortality Risk in North Carolina

Maci Keaton, Kathleen Poole, Ph.D., RD, MCHES, Ashley Stoop, MPH Department of Health and Human Performance, Radford University, Virginia 24142

UNIVERSITY

RADFORD

Introduction & Data

Neurodegenerative diseases, Parkinson's disease, Alzheimer's disease, & Amyotrophic Lateral Sclerosis (ALS), are progressive disorders that affect the motor neurons of the brain and spinal cord. Genetics accounts for a small to moderate portion of causal factors, but the rest is left to be explained by environmental toxins.

(1) Combine the three neurodegenerative diseases to look for clusters. (2) What is the strength of the relationship between all

three diseases and exposure to lead and paraquat?

Data is provided by CDC Wonder, NC Vital statistics, US Census Bureau, State Center for Health Statistics Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Program, and Pesticide National Synthesis Project.

Lead Exposure

Children are exposed by ingesting lead paint from a home or from a parent due to an occupational hazard. Exposure to pesticides, in conjunction with lead, led to a severe increase in risk for neurodegenerative disease development by at least 50 percent (Gunnarsson & Bodin, 2019).

> North Carolina Childhood Blood Lead Surveillance Data 2013-2017



The researcher considers occupational, chronic lead exposure in adults, but needs original data from the CDC ABLES Program to add to the analysis.

Neurodegenerative Diseases

Spatial autocorrelation is confirmed with a Moran's I value of 0.418 at 0.0 sig. level, meaning the pattern within the data is not random.



Pesticide Exposure

Pesticides are chemicals used on plants or crops to kill insects, weeds, rodents, bacteria, or fungi. The herbicide paraquat is used by farmers.

North Carolina **Paraquat Use Low Estimates** 2008-2017

ansson, L., & Bodin, L. (2019). Occupational exposures degenerative diseases—A systematic Terrature review analyses. Anternational Journel of Environmental Resea net Public Health, 16(3), 337. doi:10.3390/ijerph18030337

the the Diffuse of Update



Results & Conclusions

North Carolina ive Age-Adjusted Mortality Risk 2008-2017 And Child Blood Levels 2013-2017



Linear Regression Analysis - Lead Adjusted R Squared: 0.045 at 0.018 sig. level (p<0.5)

Order Least squares Regression - Lead and Paraquat Adjusted R Squared: 0.054 at .026 sig. level (p<0.5)

The results successfully explained 5.4% of the variation in neurodegenerative disease age-adjusted mortality risk by exposure to lead and paraquat.

Evaluating the Impact of Work Environments on ADHD Presentation in Adults

University Lynchburg

1

Adam Moore, MS, Master of Public Health Candidate University of Lynchburg, Lynchburg, VA



Introduction

Four out of every one-hundred American adults live with Attention-Deficit/Hyperactivity Disorder, or ADHD.1 ADHD is a neurodevelopmental disorder characterized by continuous, disruptive patterns of inattention and/or hyperactivity.² Compared to those in children, ADHD symptoms in adults present differently, as restlessness and impulsivity are often internalized.^{2,7} Even so, ADHD negatively affects work and educational outcomes, as well as personal life decisions.1 Total Worker Health (TWH) initiatives are policies and programs that advocate for worker health by protecting. from work hazards and promoting illness and injury prevention. TWH recognizes that work is a social determinant of health and that any positive change in work environments or conditions can improve overall health.4 The purpose of this study was to determine how vocational settings impact the mentality and behavior of workers with ADHD, in order to improve their overall health and success.

Methodology

A risk assessment was conducted following the Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA) human health risk assessment process This method is depicted in Figure 1.5 Information and data utilized in the risk assessment was obtained through a review of existing literature. Articles and studies were found by searching "adult adults," "occupational environment," and "manifestation of adhd" in Google Scholar and the National Institute of Health's PubMed database. Searches were restricted to sources from 2000 - 2020. Sources were restricted to free-access and subscriptions obtained through the University of Lynchburg.



Figure 1, EPA's Human Health Risk Assessment Process



Environments that feed symptoms of institution, restlessness impulsivity, and distructibility pose a unique hazard to ADHD-burdened workers. These symptoms manifest in many ways, as depicted in Figure 28



Figure 2. Symptoms and Respective Prevalence in Adults with ADHD

Based on TWH principles, four work environment bazards were identified as threats to workers with ADHD through the Health Risk Assessment Process."

Sedentation

- · Sedentary behavior is characterized by duration, pattern of behavior, and context of behavior.8
- High-Demand Taska
- · Includes time pressure, number of tasks, work overload, and emotional demands.³

Work Environment

· The principle of "heterarchy" suggests that aspects of one's environment are linked to a person's whole dynamic.16

Distractions

· Contributors include lack of meaning, mental underload, constriction of personal behavior, and monotonous jobs."

Risk Characterization

ADHD adult workers may be at increased risk of experiencing negative health effects from some occurational environments. Sedentation increases restlesaness in ADHD adults, which can lead to poor work performance and/or job loss.3 Long-term sedentary behavior can contribute to the development of mental illness, many of which ADHD individuals are predisposed to.11 Workers with ADHD have a difficult time attending to key details and completing routine tasks under timed conditions. Difficulty accomplishing these tasks puts these workers at risk for humout.3 Work environments impact psychosocial health and work engagement. Work engagement is directly related to productivity.12 Distractions, attributed to boredom and inattentiveness, decrease mood and increase irritability. This can lead to personal distress, substance abuse, and occupational accidents.9

Risk Management & Recommendations

Sedentary behavior should be interrupted every 20-30 minutes by switching tasks or moving to a standing position.⁸ Giving workers more control over their job can reduce stress and burnout.¹² Courselors can teach workers better organizational techniques and habits to counter their ADHD symptoms.¹⁰ Headphones and optimizing workspaces can reduce distructions and improve mental stimulation.19 Finally, Xond Workey Health policies should be implemented in all workplaces to improve worker health, safety, and productivity.

References

- labor et al. 2015. 7013, 17(8), 491-495. CDC: 2028. Symptomic and Diagnostic of
- CHC 2005, Straption and Diagnosts of URID
 Tried et al. 2012, Paychaper parameter, 2005.
 Strad et al. 2014, Paychaper parameter, 2015.
 Strad et al. 2014, Paychaper parameter, 2015.
 Strad et al. 2016, Paychaper parameter, 2015.
 Strad et al. 2016, Paychaper parameter, 2016.
 Strad et al. 2016, Paychaper parameter, 2016.

8. Straint et al. 2016. Stalowary work: Delivera

- When et al. 2009. The Journal of Linear providence 2010, 1525–1540.
 When et al. 2009. The Journal of Linear providence 2010, 1525–1540.
 Schaler, 2017. Stard Rester Models. Message 2010, 556–554.
 Schaler, 2017. Stard Rester Models. Message.

CALIFICA

Fierra in the Deployer Well-Bring Pacific St. 1-17. Louis, MIE St. Louis Ana: Basiness Hould 33, NMM, 2013. Azerolian Deficit/Nyperactivity



Outdoor Air Pollution and Cancer in African American Men

Introduction & Purpose

African American men have the highest death rate and the lowest survival rate for most cancers (Desantis et al., 2019). Some of the highest cancer death rates in the US are found in Louisiana. Outdoor air pollution and particulate matter is considered carcinogenic to humans and has been linked to lung, bladder, and kidney cancer (Turner et al., 2017). The purpose of this literature review was to investigate the relationship between outdoor air pollution and increased incidence of cancer in African American men

Methodology

A literature review was conducted using Pubmed and Google Scholar to search for peer reviewed articles. Key terms were: Residential Segregation, Discrimination, African American Men, Cancer, Outdoor Air Pollution. A total of 14 articles were reviewed using the EPA's Risk Assessment Process.

Figure. 1. EPA Risk Assessment Process. [EPA, 2017]



Findings: Hazard Identification

Industrial factories are located near low income and minority communities, which may lead to disproportionate health effects for residents due to air toxins (James et al., 2012). The communities in these areas are also predominantly African American (Terreli & James, 2020). High cancer rates among African American men in Louisiana may be connected to the industrial belt referred to as "Cancer Alley". This is an area along the Mississippi River between Baton Rouge and New Orleans, which contains numerous industrial plants near predominately Black communities.



Fig. 2. Map of Louisiana's industrial belt. (Wildgen, 1998) Megan Coles, MPH Candidate University of Lynchburg

Findings: Dose-Response Assessment

Outdoor particulate matter can come from many different primary and secondary sources such as industrial processes, vehicles and coal-fired power plants. Factors such as exposure duration and individuals' susceptibilities to other diseases determine how harmful outdoor air pollution will be. Studies have shown that there is a 9% increase in risk for lung cancer per 10 ug/m3 increase in PM2.5 concentrations in the outdoor air and an 8% increase in risk for lung cancer per 10 ug/m3 increase in PM10 in the outdoor air (Turner et al., 2020). Studies have also shown that chronic exposure to air pollution is associated with increased CVD risk and mortality (Ergou et al., 2018).

Findings: Exposure Assessment

A study conducted by Kravitz-Wirtz et al. (2016) found that Black and Latino neighborhoods had concentrations of PM2.5 and PM10 that were between 7% and 32% higher than in White neighborhoods. A study by Erqou et al. (2018) found that African Americans had significantly higher exposures to air pollutants in a community-based cohort of adults in Western Pennsylvania. African Americans tend to live in areas with greater exposure to air pollution due to decades of residential segregation (American Lung Association, 2020).

	18798		20.844		-1494-		
	10.0		100		104		
14 gai	194	18	194	. 10	114	10	
(magene)	-	110		-	-	- 14	
(Baylor)	.14	1.4	40	140	140	-14	
*	140		41	1.00	4.0	-	
of previous participation of the second seco	14	1.44	- 14	1.00			
(may add to deal to see them.)	-	**	144	-	1.0	. +4	
Section and the sector of	1.00	1.4	1.0	14	14	1.4	
Real Providence D	1.00	1.4	- 64	-		- 14	
(mines	10	1.4	14	14	14	1.4	
the rest of the second second	10	1.00	44	140	1.0	-	
the same internet.	1.4	1.4	110	1.00	1.0	-	
This start is sufficiently		14	1.10	-	- 10	-	
increased.				1.44		100	

Fig. 3. Block-level exposure to NO2, PM250 and PM16 respectively, by race/ethnicity and time. (Kravitz-Wirtz et al., 2016)



Table 1. This table presents

descriptive statistics, by

race/ethnicity; for all the

analysis. (Kravitz-Wirtz et al.,

variables in the

Conclusion & Risk Characterization

Black communities and African American men are disproportionately affected by outdoor air pollution and cancer and is linked to residential segregation and increased risk for exposures from industrial plants and factories. According to Baurick et al. (2019), new industrial plants are being planned for the industrial belt in the Baton Rouge area of Louisiana. Many companies locate their plants and factories in disadvantaged areas because the residents do not have the political power to oppose their placement. Since these residents lack political power, they lack advocates or lobbyists representing them at the national level (James et al., 2012). Predominantly black and poor communities also deal with other social issues such as crime, drugs, and poverty. Because of this, the community residents aren't likely as focused on environmental issues. Residents of these communities cannot easily relocate due to economic, educational, and social barriers (James et al., 2012); thus, continuing their exposure to outdoor air pollution and increased risk for cancer.

Risk Management & Recommendations

- · Prevent industrial factories from being built in the industrial beit of Louisiana and near other predominately Black communities
- · Create stricter air pollution standards for industrial factories
- · Encourage residents to limit time outdoors when pollution levels are elevated (Laumbach, 2010)
- Encourage citizen involvement in environmental policy
- Create more mixed income communities (Rice et al., 2014).

References

Krawt-Writer et al., Out-Not-Merker-Social Science Research an Pierre 2016, 21, 2. Laurhaubs, Choldreic He Pollutatina and Pierreth Houth, Amfren Physicsco. 2016, 20, 3. Roo et al. International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health. 2016, 11, 3. Terrel & Laures. Environmental Antiker. 2020, et al. 1009/1009/1020200211 Terret et al. C. An Gener Annales (Pacifications 2018, Action 2020), 21622 Terret et al. Understanding Antiker. 2020, pp. 101–3322/2020, 21622 Terret et al. Understanding Antiker. 2020, pp. 101–103322/2020, 21622 Terret et al., Understanding Antiker. 2020, pp. 101–103322/2020, 21622 Terret et al., Understanding Antiker In Louisland Science Antiker Monember 14, 2020, from https://blags/doidow.

University of

Lynchburg

Particulate Matter Concentration Around Lamberts Point & Railroad, Norfolk, VA

 Shobha Subedi College of Health Sciences, Old Dominion University, Norfolk, VA





The Utility of Perceived Neighborhood Environments as a Predictor of Childhood Obesity

Kavya V. Iyer, Bryn M. Haden, & Elizabeth I. Ackley, Ph.D. Center for Community Health Innovation. Roanoke College, Salem VA



- Complete data was available for 574 students (age = 7.27 ± 1.77 years).
- Children who perceive they live in a low food/physical activity environment are more likely to be overweight or obese than children who perceive they live in environments with high levels of access to both resources, or some combination of high/low access (X² (3, N = 574) = 12.933, p = .005, Cramer's V = .15).

Conclusions

Future Directions

Results

- Students that perceived that they had higher access to resources supporting physical activity and healthy eating tended to have a lower BMI-for-age.
- The magnitude of difference in obesity rates between Low PPAE/Low PFE and High PPAE/High PFE was 26%; Saelens et al. (2012) found an 8% difference between objectively measured high and low physical setivity and food environments.
- Variability in the magnitude of difference could indicate that studying perceived access to resources supporting healthy living may play a better role in understanding the impact of social determinants of health on youth weight status.



- Our data suggests that utilizing perceived access to neighborhood healthy-living resources may provide a more robust understanding of the impact of social determinants of health on youth weight status.
- These findings indicate the usefulness of studying perceived neighborhood environments and may be used to guide localized policies to reduce youth overweight and obesity.



Background

- Past research has shown that individual neighborhood environments play a role in youth weight status.
- Both food environments and physical activity environments have been considered to understand caloric balance in youth.
- Sadens et al. (2012) demonstrated that food and physical activity environments played a role in youth weight status, but the study only considered objective measures of the environment. These included GIS audits of neighborhood proximity to parks and other recreational facilities and to supermarkets and fast-flood restaurants.
- By only researching objective measures of access to healthy resources, there is the potential to miss the influence of social determinants of health on youth weight status.
- Carroll-Scott et al. (2013) proposed that the utilization of perceived access to resources supporting healthy living allowed for insight into the impact of social determinants of health on youth weight status, but natritional environments were not considered.

Purpose

The purpose of this study was to explore the relationship between perceived neighborhood physical activity environments (PPAE) and perceived food environments (PFE) on weight status in youth.



Methodology

- Perceptions of neighborhood access to physical activity and food resources, along with objective measures of BMI-for-age, were gathered from the 2017 Roanoke Valley Community Healthy Living Index.
- Responses to prompts such as "Food stores offering healthy foods are in walking/biking distance from home or are easy to get to by bus" and "Parks and other areas are available for people of all ages to be active in the neighborhood" were used to thematically code neighborhood PPAE and PFE as low or high.
- Chi-square analysis was used to analyze the relationship between joint PPAE/PFE environments and youth BMI-for-age.



Neighborhood Type Healthy Weight Overweight/Obese

Weight Distribution Amongst Youth



Overweight/Obese Healthy

Perceived Access to Neighborhood Resources



Low PPAE/Low PFE
 Low PPAE/High PFE
 High PPAE/Low PFE
 High PPAE/High PFE

Conducting Research as a First-Year Medical Student

Siri Tummala, Gary Kesling

Background

During the past twelve months, in response to COVID-19, there has been evolving societal expectations and values, including some transformations in academic health sciences education and training to ensure that those graduating from medical school will be better equipped to deal with the demands of modern medicine and further education. The TCU and UNTHSC School of Medicine has immersed its students in research early to develop physicians who are life-long learners capable of critical inquiry and in medical information literacy to produce physicians suited for patientcentric care. Through self-directed discovery, students develop skills needed to understand and use evidence-based approaches for basic and clinical research.



Discussion

The study (The Impact of COVID-19 Restrictions on Caregivers of Individuals with Dementia) used qualitative methods comprising of structured interview questions. The findings show that, despite a world-wide pandemic and the demands of beginning the first year of one's medical education, it is possible to effectively engage in scholarly evidencebased research. Medical schools need to ensure that students are provided with early exposure to environments that allow for the exploration of meaningful interactions by increasing opportunities to 'stand in' to the role of a researcher, even as students.

Acknowledgements

We would like to express our sincere gratitude to the faculty at the TCU and UNTHSC School of Medicine.

Establishing a Research Lab in Public Health: Opportunities and Challenges from a Faculty and Student Led Collaboration

M. Achike, MPH, B. Berumen-Flucker, MPH, A. Dumadag, MPH, T. Edwards, MPH, H. Galadima, PhD, M. Kekeh, PhD, M. Akpinar-Elci, MD, MPH

REACH Lab, Center for Global Health, College of Health Sciences, Old Dominion University

Introduction

In Sectember 2019, Old Dominion University. (ODU) faculty and doctoral students began conceptualizing a Health Sciences Issearch laboratory The REACH (Research, Education, and data Analysis for Community Health) Lab was created and serves as a multiclisciplinary research laboratory housed in the Center for Global Health in the College of Health Sciences at ODU. The Lab enables faculty, researchers, community partners. and students to conduct insearch for the advancement of health and wellness in Hampton Roads, the Commonwealth of Virginia, the nation and the world.

The Life also recognizes the importance of combining expertise and capacities of multiple institutions disciplines and professions in addressing complex health problems. The Lab savely to cheate a productive and itiendly ent in which it can educate and train future generations of public health researchers and o wide a vehicle for unique public health ch anit programs that do not fit more traditional academic structures.

Quick Facts

The REACH Late

- Has a mission to use a public hearth lens to conduct rewarch related to social justice, economic, human resource and environme issues of interest, educate and mentor students in their development as future missischers, and to use data and evaluation to solve proble that affect our communities.
- Has a vision to be the preeminent community health services laboratory tasked with advancing scholarly and community-based research.
- through interclisciplinary collaborations, is co-facilitated by both faculty and Health Services Research PhD students

Process

The REACH Lab was piloted in Senuary 2020 with 3 faculty mambers and 2 Health Services Research PhD Indextern table process of Ethics were drafted and approved and have been in place to quite liab operations. Since Fail 2020, the Lab have grown with additional collaboration from two dectoral students. The Lab, from the beginning, has committed itself to convening biweeky to discuss research collaboration. support, and progress and to identify areas of potential research collaboration. Detailed notes are taken during each meeting and shared afterwards.

The Roles/Responsibilities of Each Current Member Include:

- Faculty members Mentor students and identifying sreas for
- eludent involveme Provide opportunities for student to participate
- in ressarch · Write joint grants (RFAs RFPs, etc.) with other Lab
- · Co-advise students with other Lab memb
- Co-author grant proposals and journal articles with other Lib members
- Master and Undergraduate Student
- Perform literature reviews
- Co-author orant proposals and/or journal articles
- with/under the guidance of other Lab members Commitment to sharing resources
 - - Lab Values Research integrily, internation, and excellence Result operity locephring.

Evaluation and Education The Lab offers an abation services and learning opportunities to rook as increasing demand for data evaluation at both the

unitersity and in the Harmonics Hands community

Real World Experis.

The Latransition the importance the undergradiant and guideds dockets to receive a franchismant and ambient experience in Haudin Sciences research and applicables.

Challenges and Opportunities

- The Lab provides many opportunities for students, faculty merilibars, and community partners. To date the Leb has provided
- · Research methodology and data evaluation
- support for griduate students Research support for faculty members · Data evaluation assistance to community partners
- While several accomplishments have been achieved thus far, there are several challenges that will need to be addressed in order to fulfill the
- Lab's mission and vision. These include Leveraging different research intakesta to maximize collaboration
- Managing conflicting promites and schedules to most the demands of ever-changing research demands
- Including community member participation at all stages of Lab operations through robust outreach and capacity building, as needed.

Conclusion/Next Steps

While establishing the REACH Lab has shown ome success, the team has learned valuable esons to foster more, intentional collaborations o meet the needs of all members, including ommunity partners. Moving forward, to accessfully work towards meeting its mission, the

- ab will be focusing on the following Engagement and buy in from community Derthers
- Dutreach to more PhD and undergraduate students, including those from other disciplines. Setting up research intervist groups/tracks to streamline collaboration
- increasing Lab presence on campus
- Publishing and presenting research accidities to larger audiences

articles with other cab members · Commitment to sharing resources Community partners Identify projects for collaboratio
 Mentor students when possible Serve as falson between REACH Lab members and community members

ervices for the Lab

PhD Students

Commitment to sharing resources

Mantor master or undergraduate students

. Co-author grant proposals and/or journal

· Deform therature reviews and other supportive

· Contrack) parameter · Inundisciplinary collaborations Stadent research skills-docatoprion

Expressions of Power and the Political Dimensions of Health in Global Pharmaceutical Pricing Claire Wulf Winiarek, PhD Candidate, MA

Old Dominion University cwulf001@odu.edu

BACKGROUND

The 'practice of medicine' is fast becoming, the prescribing of medicine. Pharmaceuticals, from vaccines to treatments to cures, have become a first line of defense against disease and illness, particularly those ranking high in terms of global health priorties. Reliance on pharmaceutical innovations, however, comes at a cost. With medicines fast becoming a growing component of total health spending and health spending a fastgrowing. Ine item of national budgets, greater and, polentielly unsustainable, public spending on pharmaceuticals can mute harmful polecy trade-offs for health and object wees the maxim of our womes, or the tip of the spear? The who-gets-what in the making of national pharmaceutical policy, which are expressly power-driven discissions, reflects complex political relationships and imparts global consequences, including for health equity.

OBJECTIVE & RELEVANCE

Emerging evidence suggests that when researchers overlook the practice of power, they can misatifibule reasons why policy decisions and policy implementation obtain certain outcomes. Power disparties, generally accepted as the not cause of health inequity, have deepened under globalization, resulting in non-state concentrations of power bent towards the advancement and preservation of economic interests, and global social increas oriented to the exclusive role of the individual in health and illness. But these power disparties are amenable to, as well as dependent on, political action

PREMISES

- Health is political because power is exercised over it (Bambra, Fox, and Scoti-Samuel, 2005)
- Power is relative, relational, and manifests at different levels unequally (Sore and Parker, 2019)
- The "special economics of health cars" make marketbased policies inefficient and more likely to result in imbalances and inequities (Markow, 2017)
- Global market integration continues to shrink the national policy space, which cause health to be subordinated to, onco-opted by, other public policy profiles (Laborite and Schrecker, 2007)

Virginia Public Health Association (VAPHA) 2021 Virtual Conference

Prospectus of Forthcoming Dissertation, Power and Politics in National Pharmaceutical Pricing Policy (August 2021)

RESEARCH QUESTIONS

- What are the collical dimensions of health capable of driving normative shifts?
- Are such shifts restricted to a certain level of action (global, regional, national) or can they be bidirectional?

METHODOLOGY

Research Design: Employs NV/wo to classify actors involved in select pharmaceutical pricing policies' development, negotiation, and implementation according to interests, preferences, and interactions with other actors, with acute altertion to actor type and hypology of power expressed consistent with the Campos and Reich (2019) and Arts (2003) constructs

Case Studies: External reference pricing of pharmaceuticals in Brazil, Canada, France, Jordan, and South Africa are examined, as are health technology assessment pricing policies as advanced by Australia, Germany, Japan, and the United States



PRELIMINARY FINDINGS

- Positive and negative externalities of health to society are transferable, indivisible, and nonexcludable, therefore, health is a public good
- Markets under-produce public goods relative to what may be socially optimal. State actors traditionally provide public goods, though reoliberal economic policies favor outsourcing
- Public goods theory acknowledges that achieving an ethical and equitable optimum is impossible within purely economy frameworks, political dimensions and determinant are necessary
- The prevalence and reach of neoliberal economic policies through globalization commodifies health, individualizes disease and illness, and globalizes disease—even for noncommunicable diseases
- Normative ambtion is a mechanism for centering ethics, equity, and values in international Political Economy, allowing research on distributional considerations for public matters like health
- Powerful actors in health policy and systems, whose interests are primarily motivated by economic, fiscal, and budgetary considerations, shape policymaking to protect those interests

leiner Reinnens Gem Banker, Debine Fox, and Alex Sont Samuel. Towarks a Pallex of Health "Health Praemium International 21, no. 2 (Jane 2005) 107–51) Real-Max we wel Reinner Phalemer Preserved Pallex o Health Polices and System." Oxide Palle Health 14, no. 4 (year) 2, 2015) 457–431, and 16 Grayer Mahaim The Economics of Healthcare. 2017

Virginia Journal of Public Health Submission Guidelines

The Virginia Journal of Public Health (VJPH) is published twice yearly, fall and spring by the Virginia Public Health Association. The VJPH welcomes research articles, professional articles and literature reviews for consideration for publication (Please see the specific formats for each type of manuscript listed below).

Deadline for Manuscript Submissions: Fall Issue: August 15th Spring Issue: February 15th

Journal manuscripts should be sent to **Dr. Kim Baskette, Editor (kbaskett@vtc.vt.edu)** as a WORD document, email attachment. In the cover letter or email, the corresponding author needs to affirm that the article has not been published elsewhere.

Manuscript Guidelines:

- 1. Follow the form of the Publication Manual of the American Psychological Association (APA), 7th edition (http://www.apastyle.org).
- Typed and submitted as a Word document; double spaced, 12 pt. font (font style should be in alignment with new APA guidelines in 7th ed), 1" margins.
- 3. Include a title page with the names and addresses of each author to include professional affiliation.
- 4. Include a title page <u>without</u> author identification (will be used for blind review).
- 5. Include a pdf copy of the Institutional Review Board approval if appropriate.
- 6. Include references at the end of the manuscript in **APA format.**
- 7. Have any figures or tables embedded in the manuscript; do not include at the end of the manuscript. Tables and figures should be **formatted in APA format only.**
- 8. Include an abstract containing 200 words or less with appropriate delineated sections.

Organization of Manuscripts

- <u>Research Articles</u>
 - Abstract (200 words): Purpose, Methods, Results, Findings, Conclusion.
 - Text: Purpose, Methods, Results, Discussion, Summary, Conclusions Recommendations, References.
- <u>Professional Articles</u> (position papers, public health policy, program descriptions)
 - Text: Purpose, Methodology (if applicable), Discussion, Summary Recommendations (if applicable), References (if applicable)

- Literature Reviews
 - Abstract (200 words): Purpose, Methodology (Data Sources, Inclusion and Exclusion criteria), Findings (Data Synthesis), Summary, Conclusions, Recommendations
 - Text: Purpose, Methodology (Data Sources, Inclusion and Exclusion criteria), Findings (Data Synthesis), Summary, Conclusions, Recommendations, References

Review Process

Manuscripts submitted will be sent to three members of the VJPHA Editorial Board for review. Reviewers will recommend (1) Acceptance, (2) Acceptance with Revisions, (3) Revise and Resubmit, or (4) Reject. The Editor makes the final decision and will notify the corresponding author of the manuscript disposition.

Questions: Contact Dr. Kim Baskette at kbaskett@vtc.vt.edu